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CHAIR'S STATEMENT

Delivering for the

UK economy

The British Business Bank
helps to drive economic
growth by making finance
markets work better for
smaller businesses,
wherever they are in the
UK and wherever they are
on their business journey,
enabling them to prosper
and grow.

In 2018/19 the British Business
" Bank began putting in place

" the enhanced infrastructure and,

. processes required by a rapidly

. growing organisation, while at the

same time delivering increased
' volurnes and diversity of finance
for UK smaller businesses.

" These smaller businesses are of huge

- importance to our economy: they

. pravide the majority of private sector

+ jobs and turnover, and they make up
over 99% of the country's business

{ population.

Chair's statement
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putting in place the

enhanced infrastructure

and processes required

- by a rapidly growing

organisation.
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" New objectives

From1 April 2018, our Shareholder

- assigned the Bank two new
- cbjectives:

, — tobethe centre of expertise on

smaller business finance in the UK,
providing advice and support to the
Government

- toidentify and help reduce regional

imbalances in access to finance for
smaller businesses across the UK,

. Inthe last financial year, we began

to deliver against these objectives.
This is detailed in our strategic report,

¢ which describes our programmes

toincrease finance - and awareness

. of finance options - in specific UK

regions, our delivery of a number of
cross-government programmes and

- amarked increase inour research

and analysis.



Chair's statement

As part of this, in February 2019 we
published our VC & Female Founders
reportin partnership with the BVCA
and Diversity VC, which identified
specific barriers faced by female-led
firms in accessing venture capital. Our
coordination and convening of 45 VC
firms to produce this ground-breaking
research was a good illustration of
how well placed we are to set the
agenda and lead the conversation, in
partnership with the finance industry.

Additional funding for delivery

Over the past year, the Government
has demonstrated confidence in the
British Business Bank's capability
to deliver for smaller businesses,

As well as an additional £20Cm of
funding allocated to offset potential
reductions in European funding to

UK smaller businesses, we have

been asked to supportup to £1bn of
smaller housebuilder finance, working
alongside the Ministry of Housing,
Communities and Local Government,
and Homes England. The Government
also committad to funding our

Start Up Loans programme until 2021
at the 2018 Autumn Budget.

We launched a new subsidiary, British
Patient Capital (BPC), in June 2018,
with £2,5bn of funding and a mission
to enable long-terminvestmentin
innovative UK companies so they
become successful world-class
businesses. We appointed the CEQ
of British Business 'nvestments,
Catherine Lewis La Torre, as CEQ of
BPCin Qctober 2018, bringing both
businesses under her leadership,
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Our people

We responded to our expanding

role and respensibilities by creating
over 80 new roles and growing our
colleague numbers to over 320,

This rapid expansion has required

us to upgrade our processes and
infrastructure, and alongside that we
have also developed a renewed focus
on enabling our people to develop and
grow along with the organisation.

We have continued the integration
of the 5tart Up Loans Company
foliowing our merger in April 2017,
This involved a greater sharing

of resources, and consolidating
our respective London operations
from two offices into a single new
premises in December 2018.

The Board

Caroline Green MBE stepped down

as Non-executive Directorin January
2019, and ! would like to thank her for
her vaiuable insights and contribution
to the werk of the Bank since 2013,

Five years on from the creation of
the British Business Bank, we have
built an organisation that is making a
substantial difference to businesses
across the UK. From the earliest
stages - funding start-ups - through
to providing the longer-term patient
capital that businesses at the larger
end of the SME scale require, we are
playing a cruciai part in enabling their
growth and success.

LA FLH

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair
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In 2018/19, we increased our support
for smalier businesses through our
national and regicnal programmes,
helping us to deliver successfully
against our objectives:

- e made new commitments of
£957m, contributing to an increase
of 27% in the total stock of finance
supported through our
programmes,

—~ We provided 91 5% of our support
through smaller banks, non-bank
lenders, alternative lenders and
equity providers, helping to
improve diversity and choice.

— Qurdedicated regional funds
supported over £160m of finance,
helping to address regional
imbalances.

- We saw awareness of the Bank
amongst businesses that may need
finance increase from 13% to 28%,

- We provided advice and support
to Government on an increasing
number of cross-government
projects, and published high profile,
ground-breagking research intg UK
finance markets, including important

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT research on gender diversity in the
Venture Capital sector.

Delivering more widely, s smsen
building our activity

target of 2.5%.

British Business Bank's financial
statements for the year show anet

) . operating profit of £42.4m (before
Our results for 2018/19 Atthe end of the lastfinancielyear. a5 ,cyment for ECF ioan commitments

show increased over 89,000 businesses were and interest payabie) and a profit

. benefiting from £6.6bn of finance hefare tax of £81.2m
performance and delivery  supported by the British Business '
for the UK's smaller Bank. As shown by the many examples

in this report, our interventions apply
to a wide variety of businesses of all
sizes and stages - from start up

Over the last five years, the British businesses wha received mentoring
Business Bank has built a strong track  and finance from our Start Up Loans
record, intervening toimprove finance  programme to high-growth scale-ups
markets for smaller UK businesses. accessing, perhaps, multiple later-
stage funding rounds.

businesses.



Chief Executive's statement

A growing regional impact

Our regional funds have begun to
make a significant contribution te the
areas they support, with the Northern
FPowerhouse and Midlands Engine
Investment Funds providing 16%

and 20% of the equity finance deals
in their respective regions in 2018.

We also invested for the first time in
afund wholly dedicated to businesses
located in Northern Ireland. Qur new
UK Network, which we set upin
autumn 2018, is providing valuable
feedback on regional and local

finance markets and promoting
ourinformation products to smaller
businesses across the country.

Working across Government

The Government increasingly calls
onour expertise in smaller business
finance markets to helpit fulfil
specific policy priorities. Last year,
this included support for new
housebuilding through our ENABLE
Guarantes programmes, and for
technaology to improve national
security through our National Security
Strategic Investment Fund. We alsa
continue to provide input into
impartant ongoing initiatives

such as the Industrial Strategy and
EU Exit planning.
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Providing valuable research
into markets

2018/19 was a strong year for our
research and analysis of markets,
with February 2019's VC & Female
Founders reportin particular setting
the agenda for the VCindustry. In the
coming year we wil increase activity
further, including publishing major
research intc export finance for
smaller businesses and the feasibility
of greater investment in patient
capital funds by defined contribution
pension schemes,

Building demand

Our provision of information to smaller
businesses underwent a step-change
insummer 2018 when we intraduced
our new online Finance Hub, which
encourages and enables growth
businesses to find, understand and
get theright source of finance they
need, As a key element of our new
Demand Development Unit, the Hub
has quickly proved its effectiveness,
with 779% of users saying they would
recommend the platform.

Delivering more patient
capital

Last year we putin place the last of
the measures recommended by 20175
Patient Capital Review, l[aunching a
rew £500m Managed Funds
Programme, a £100m Regional Angels
Programme and our £2.5bn British
Patient Capital {BPC) programme.
BPCis already delivering strongly,

and made 12 commitments rotalling
£333m over the year.

in 2018/19, the British Business Bank
has grownrapldly, both in scope and
delivery. The depth of that delivery -
from the Start Up Loans programme
providing £500m of loans since 2012,
our Enterprise Finance Guarantee
celebrating its 30,000 businesses
funded milestone, to patient capital
programmes to help ambitious
high-growth companies become the
world-class businesses of tomorrow
- means we are well placed to support
UK smaller businesses across every
stage of development now andin

the future,

L Ao

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

' { 4

The British Business Bank
has grown rapidly in both
scope and delivery.

' 4
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Strateqic report

Our mission and objectives

The British Business Bank's mission is to help drive
economic growth by making finance markets work
better for smaller businesses' - wherever they are
in the UK and wherever they are on their business
journey - enabling them to prosper and grow.

In 2018/19 the Bank had six key objectives:

Increase the supply Help to create a more
of finance diverse finance market
to smaller businesses where for smaller businesses, with
markets don't work well greater choice of options

and providers

Encourage and enable Be the centre of expertise
SMEs on smaller business finance
to seek the finance best inthe UK
suited to their needs providing advice and support

to Government

1. Businesses with a turnaver of up to £100m

Strateqic report

Identify and help to reduce
regional imbalances
in access to finance

for smaller businesses across
the UK

Achieve the Bank's other
objectives whilst managing
taxpayers' money efficiently

within a robust risk
management framework
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Our smaller business finance programmes

The British Business Bank provides
and manages a wide range of smaller
business finance programmes for the
Government. This includes programmes
bath on our own balance sheet and on
those of Government departments -
primarily the Department for Business,

Energy and Industria! Strategy (BEIS),

We act as agents for these other
programmes, which include the
ENABLE programme, Enterprise
Finance Guarantees and the
Narthern Powerhouse, Midlands
Engine and Cornwall and Isles

of Scilly Investment Funds,

QOur Shareholder, BEIS, measures
our success by assessing the
performance of all the assets we
manage, and this strategic report
takes the same approach.

Qur programmes are described below.

Debt

Start Up Loans

Loans and mentoring to
help people start their
own businesses or become
self-employed.

Enterprise Finance
Guarantee
Government-backed debt
finance for vizble smailer

businesses lacking security.

ENABLE Guarantees
Guarantees which reduce
the amount of regulatory
tapital that participating
providers need to hold
for thefrloans to small
businesses, so that they
are ahle to provide more
lending.

ENABLE Funding
Cost-effective access to
funding through the capital
markets for smaller lenders,
meaning they can provide
more finance to businesses.

Investment Programme
Support to increase the
volume and diversity of
finance for smaller
businesses by enabling
the growth of new and
alternative lenders.

Regional debt funding
Micro and small business
debt financein the
Northern Powerhouse,
Midlands Engine, and
Cornwall and Isles of
Scilly regions.

Average size of facility to smaller

businesses - debt
As of December 2018

Regional
Debt Funds
£313k

ENABLE
Cuarantees

£1.3m

Inyestmeant

S
Enterprise
Finance

Guarantee
£107k

| Start Up
l.oan
| £7.7k

y

Equity

Angel CoFund

Equity co-investment
alongside business angel
syndicates toincrease the
volume of early stage
finance available to smaller
businesses.

Regional Angeils
Programme

Support to reduce regtonal
imbalances in access to
early stage equity finance
across the UK.

Enterprise Capital Funds
Funds which increase

the supply of early

stage venture capital

to high growth potential
businesses and lower
barriers for fund managers
entering the Y market,

British Patient Capital
Investments in long-term
venture and growth funds,
enabling high growth firms
to develop into world-class
husinesses

Managed Funds
Investments into Funds of
Funds designed toincrease
institutional funding of
long-term patient capital
for high growth innovative
businesses,

Regional equity funding
Equity finance in the
Northern Powerhouse,
Midlands Engine, and
Cornwall and Isles of

Scilly regions.

Average size of facility to
smaller businesses - equity

As of December 2018

Managed
Funds*
n/a

~ British
Patient Capital
£3.4m

Enterprise
Capital Fund

Regional Elzm

Equity
Funds

Elm
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The state of the market

The number of SMEs fell to 5.7 million
at the startof 2018 - 0.5% lower
than at the start of 2017, and the

first annual reduction since 2000.
The econamic environment has been
challenging, and confidence has
declined. The Bank of England reduced
its econiomic growth forecast for
2019 to 1.2%, driven by weakening
investment intentions and EU exit-
related uncertainty. Nevertheless, our
2019 Small Business Finance Markets
report found that 50% of smaller
businesses aimed to grow in 2019.

Flows of finance to SMEs remain
strong despite uncertainty about
the economic environment

2018 saw total flows of finance

to SMEs nalch or exceed those in
2017 Grass bank lending remained
stable, while cther forms of finance
continued to increase, though more
slowly than in 2017 The value of
equity finance, asset finance and
market-based lending grew by 4%,
3% and 18% respectively in 2018,

Many smaller businesses remain
reluctant to use finance

SMEs' cantinued reluctance to use
finance is driven by attitudes towards
finance rather than circumstances.
73% aof SMEs are willing ta forgo
some growth to avoid borrowing,
and just 36%4 of smaller businesses
used external finance in 2018, down
from 38% in 2017 The cutcome of
this reluctanceis that new finance
applications are at arecord low.

By contrast, awareness of
alternatives to traditional finance
continued to grow in 2018, with
5¢2% of small businesses aware of
peer-to-peer lending, 70% aware of
crowdfunding platforms, and 69%
aware of venture capital (up from
47%, 60%. and b2% respactively
in 2017). This growthin awareness
is one of our key objectives and an
essential first step in enabling SMEs
to seek the finance best suited to
their needs,

Strateqic veport

Accesstofinanceis important

to enable SMEs to deliver on their
growth potential

Ensuring that growing businesses
can access the finance they need

is impartant for lang-term UK
productivity and competitiveness,
Of those scale-up businesses that
grew their annuai turnover by 100%
or more, 42% used equity finance
to help achieve that growth.

However, thereis still room for
improvement in the financing

of businesses with high growth
potential, Despite the increase

in equity finance as a praportion
of gross domestic product (GDP)
inrecent years, the UK remains
well behind the US, with equity
investment to GDP ratios at 0.29%
and 0.42% respectively in 2017

There are considerable challenges
in enabling viable firms in many
parts of the UK to access the
finance they need

The UK-wide picture on small business
finance markets masks examples of
notabie success in same local areas,
but also considerable challengesin
many parts of the UK.

Forres-based electronic design,
manufacturing and service support
company Makar Technologies secured
£50,000 of finance through British Business
Bank EFG partner DSL Business Finance.
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In terms of dedt, bank lending
volumes broadly match the regional
distribution of the smali business
population.

In terms of equity, high growth firms
are spread across the nations and
regians of the UK, but deals remain
concentrated in London. Almost half
(46%) of equity deals are in London
despite the fact that it accounts for
just 20% share of high growth firms.
Ange! finance and venture capital (V)
remains clustered in a relatively small
number of cities, This suggests that
there is more to be done to increase
the reach of this type of finance, and
to support businesses with growth
potential in many parts of the UK,

Theincreasing use of alternatives

to traditional bank loans means that
the finance markets are more diverse
than bafore.
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Our business model

Our expertise in finance markets for
smaller UK businesses allows us to
take an evidence-based and market-
led approach to addressing the
challenges faced by those businesses
when accessing finance, We need to
monitor finance markets continually
and have close engagement with
market players. This is increasingly
criticalin an uncertain economic
environment. Cur programmes are
reviewed reqularly and, where
necessary, we adjust our existing
programmes - and introduce new
ones - to respond to market
requirements and changes.

In doing so we are guided by both
public policy objectives and private
sector requirements, We maintain an
appropriate balance between the two

by providing policy advice to ministers,

Government departments and
public-sector agencies on the one
hand, and carefully structuring
interventions to unlock private
sector investment on the other.

In 2018/19, the Bank established
British Patient Capital (BPC)as a
separate commercial subsidiary

to enable long-term investment in
innovative companies acress the UK.

BPC was launched with a core team
transferred from the Bank's Venture
Sclutions division. it was seeded with
the VC Catalyst portfolio previously
managed by British Business
Investments.

The Bank has also created anew
Demand Develcpment Unit {(DDU).
This helps to stimulate demand by
engaging directly with smaller
businesses to inform them about
their finance options.

The Start Up Loans Company, which
merged with the British Business Bank
last year, has continuad its integration
by relocating, along with the Bank’s
London operations, to g new

shared office space.

'L 4

Our expertise in finance
markets for smaller UK
businesses allows us to
take an evidence-based
and market-led approach to
addressing the challenges
faced by those businesses
when accessing finance.

' 4 4
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OBJECTIVE

Increase supply of
finance in the UK

Why it is important

When we make markets work better and help
smaller businesses to secure finance that they
otherwise wouldn't get, we enable investment
that benefits the entire UK economy.

At aglance

£6.6bn

Stock of finance supported,
of end of March 2019

Strategic report

Stock of finance for smaller
businesses
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A key objective of the Bank is to

boost the supply of finance for smaller
businessesin areas of the market
that don't work well. We measure

our success against this objective by
measuring both how much finance

we ourselves deploy, and how much
the private sector contributes in
addition to this,

Each year, the Bank influences this
measurement by committing funding
through our programmes. Once we
have committed funding, our delfvery
partners typically take anumber of
years to draw the funding down as
they finance smaller businesses.

We then add the combined funds
drawn to the 'stock’ of finance.

When a borrower repays a loan or
aninvestment is realised, the funds
can be returned to the Bank and
otherinvestors and will be taken

out of the stock of finance measure,

89,000+

over 89,000
businesses supported
as of March 2019
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Inorder toincrease supply, we have
built up 2 wide range of delivery
partners who can get that finance to

the market. Over the past year we have

made new commitments of £957m.

As atthe end of 2018/19, we had

EGC Gbn of stock of finance supported,

anincrease of 27% from £5.2bn the
previous year.

This Increase was driven primarily

by the higher than expected leverage
across most programmes, with the
[nvestment Programme and the UK
Innovation Investment Fund doing
particularly wellin this respect, as
well as a higher number of ENABLE
Guarantees.

' {4

A key objective of the

Bank is to boost the supply
of finance for smaller
businesses in areas of the
market that don't work well.

V{4

CASESTUDY ‘
Yorkshire Dama
Cheese

Halifax
Yorkshire
& Humber

Programme: Start Up LLoans

Razan Al-Sous decided toset up
Yorkshire Dama Cheese after
fleeing war-torn Syria with her
husband and three childrenin
2012.

Arriving in Yorkshire, she struggled
to find work despite having a
degree in pharmacology. She
noticed how the halloumi cheese
sald in the UK was often of pcor
quality and decided to start making
halloumi cheese using Yorkshire-
sourced milk instead.

She useda £2,500 Start Up Loan
to buy the eguipment she needed.
Her products are available in
Morrisons and onfine, She has won
several awards including the Werld
Cheese Award Gold Prize 2016 and
was nominated by former Prime
Minister David Cameron for
recognition on International
Women's Day 2015.



CASESTUDY
Dartington Crystal
Holdings Ltd

Torrington
South West

Programme:
Enterprise Finance Guarantee

Based in Torrington, North Devon,
bartington Crystal was founded in
1967 andis a leading UK brand in
crystal and glassware.

N

As well as mouth-blown factory
products, Dartington also designs,
sources and markets quality crystal
and glass from selecied European
suppliers. The company services the
retail gift and table top sector as well
as many specialist BB and
promotional markets.

in 2018, Dartingtan needed funding
to finance a management buyout and
approached Barclays, an accredited
lender under the British Business
Bank EFG Scheme. Dartington
received the funding in November
2018 and is now focusing onits
future growth,
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Debt

StartUp Loans

Since it beganin 2012, the Start Up
Loans programme has delivered over
63,000 lcans, providing over £500m
of funding to an average of 25
businesses aday. The programme
has cantributed to the creation of
more than 75,000 jobs.

Combining the British Business

Bank with Start Up Loans in April
2017 has enabled us to take @ more
intagrated approach to supporting
microbusinesses, with the alm of
delivering the Covernment’s
manifesto commitment of 75,000
Start Up Loans by 2020. The
programme was extended fora
further year at Autumn Budget 2018,

Enterprise Finance Guarantee
The Enterprise Finance Guarantee

(EFG) is our flagship debt programme,

Since its launch in 2009, it has
supported the provision of aver
30,500 business loans to a value
of over £3.2bn.

It has a wide range of delivery
partners, including all the major high
street lenders, This means thatit has

a broad reach, which makes it a useful

instrument fcr quickly targeting
specific market requirements,

The EFG programme has continued

to add new delivery partners through

2018/19, including through its new
asset finance variant.
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ENABLE Guarantees

The ENABLE Guarantee programme
entered into £550m of transactions
with three lenders in 2018/18.

We expanded ENABLE Guarantees to
facilitate loans specifically targeted
at the housebuilding sectorin 2017
and launched a new ENABLE Build
variantin April 2019, funded by the
Ministry for Housing, Communities
and Local Government {MHCLG),

ENABLE Funding

This year we entered intc one new
transaction for a total amount of
£150m under our ENABLE Funding
programme, bringing the total funding
we have committed to smaller finance
providers to over £590m.

Since the first transaction in
September 2015, the programme
has supported lending to mare than
31,750 businesses,

" 4

We are working alongside
MHCLG and Homes England
to make available up to
£1bn of ENABLE Build
guarantees to increase
funding for smaller
housebuilders.

'd 4

CASE STUDY ‘

Bakedin

Basingstoke
South East

Programme: Start Up Loans

Joseph Munns and two friends
struck upon the idea of meking
home-baking kits, inspired by
the rising popularity of recipe
boxes. The kits include cooking
instructions, ingredients and
baking equipment. The trio
hegan selling the recipe kits at
school fétes, market stalls and
street food festivals,

After using a Start Up Loan to fund
their first professionat{abel run,
their products are now available
in hundreds of retailers across the
UK and as far afield as the USA,
Germany and Iceland. They have
iaunched The Baking Club, a
subscription service that delivers
a home-baking kit through the
door. The kits include recipes by
world-renowned French chef
Michel Roux.
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Equity

Angel CoFund

Now in its seventh year of operation,
the Angel CoFund has invested over
£280m in over 87 companies,
together with third party investors.
Its portfolio of high-growth businesses
is diverse, covering sectors such as
healthcare and life sciences, digital
media and information technologies
(including Fintech), creative
industries, and food.

In 2018, the Angel CoFund delivery
team, who had previously been
seconded from the British Business
Bank, became permanent employees
of Akerc Capital Partners, a new
management vehicle with greater
independence and the ability to raise
additional commercial capital.

' 4 4

There are now 28 Enterprise
Capital Funds, with a total

investment capacity of £1.2bn.

' 4

Enterprise Capital Funds

There are now 28 Enterprise Capital
Funds, with a total investment capacity
of £1.2bn, including £500m of private
sector commitments. In 2018719, the
ECF programme received in the region
of 85 enguiries, of which sixare
currently in early stage discussions and
two in the due diligence process.

British Patient Capital

British Patient Capital (BPC)launched
in june 2018, having been announced
at the Chancellor’s 2017 Autumn
Budget following the Patient Capital
Review. It supports UK husinesses
with high growth potential to access
the long-term financing that will
enabla them to grow into worid-class
businesses. Over the next 10 years,
BPC's investment gims Lo unluck o
total of £7.5bn of additional funding.

Strategicreport

BPC was seeded with around £400m
of existing and approved venture

and growth fund commitments from
British Business Investments (B6).

a commercial subsidiary of the

British Business Bank. In the past
year, 12 investments were completed,
with BPC committing to over £330m
exceeding the very ambitious targets
set by Government,

Managed Funds

The Managed Funds programme,

part of BBI, was launched in May 2018,
The programme aims toinvest £500m
in large-scale funds of funds to boost
the amount of patient capital available
to the UK's high growth potential
businesses.
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British Patient Capital made £333m of new commitments to 12 VC funds in 2018/19

Fund managers
CranellLLP

Dawn Opps

Draper Esprit

IQ Capital Il

Nauta Sidecar Tech |

NVM

Target market

Backing the next generation of ambitious inteliigent computing
founders, solving large problems for the enterprise.

Early stage VT firm based in London investing in sof tware-as-a-service
(Saa%)and Fintech companies that develop warld-leading technology
to improve business value chains and preductivity.

A London-based listed venture capital firm that invests in high-growth
early-stage and growth firms in the Saas, hardware and deep tech,
digital health and wellness, and consumer technology sectors,
Cambridge-based venture capital firm that invests in UK deep tech
across sectors including machine learning, Al, engineering and materials,
and data-focused propositions based on disruptive algoritoims,
Facusing on B82B software companies at late seed and

Series A stages.

Invests in ambitious UK management teams to help them accelerate
their growth and build successful businesses.

A furrtrher six funds have clbéed and are yet to be announced

_ Bank contribution

£25m

£49m

£30m

£33m

£11m
£20m

£165m
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British Business Bank:
helping to create Unicorns

The British Business Bank is the largest UK based
Venture Capital Limited Partner investing in UK VC,
A unicorn is a privately held VC backed company
valued at more than S1bn.

Strategic report

Through its investments the Bark has four UK companies within its current equity portfolio that have unicorn status.

Unicorn Description The Bank’s Programme

IMPROBABLE Platform for third parties Enterprise Capital Fund
to build vast virtual and
simulated worlds

Digital banking altermative UK Innovation
thatincludes a pre-paid Investment Fund
debit card, currency

exchange, cryptocurrency  British Patient Capital
exchange and PZP payments

)_7 ) Money transfer service British Patient Capital
TransferWise allowing private individuals

and businesses to send

maney abroad without

hidden charges

GRAF-HCORE Developer of computer Enterprise Capitat Fund

chips/ processing units
for use in Aland machine British Patient Capital
learning applications

Funding Partner

Amadeus

Balderton

Draper Esprit

Draper Esprit

Amadeus ASF

Draper Esprit
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The Bank's programmes have also invested in the following companies which became valued at more than S1bn dollars. These
companies were unicorns but are no longer privately held, having gone through a trade sale or listing on a public market.

Unicorn

&+ blueprism

MATCHESFASHION.COM

TRL FRmNDn POUHT BE it

mimecast

unified email management

PURPLE BRICKS I

Description The Bank's Programme

Developer of robatic process  Legacy Fund
automation software that

transforms core business

processes to drive innavation

High street and online British Patient Capital

fashion boutique .
d UK Innovation Investment

Fund
Leadinginternational Enterprise Capital Fund
company specialising
in cioud-based email
management
Online real estate agent UK Innavation
thathelpsits clients tosell,  Investment Fund

buy, and let their properties

Funding Partner

RisingStars Growth Fund

SEPV (Scottish Eguity
Partners)

SEP IV (Scottish Equity
Partners)

Dawn Capital

DN Capita!
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OBJECTIVE

Increase diversity of
SME finance in the UK

Why itisimportant

When we support a small business finance product,
or help an alternative provider, smaller businesses
benefit from better choices and better terms that
increased competition can deliver.

Ataglance

212m

ipport of asset
s ANCe

Strategic report

Percentage through
non-Big-Five banks
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16/17 data s far non-Big Four banks
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new delivery partners
announcedin 2018719

£275m

of facilities for three
allenager banks during



Strategic report

As well as bopsting the supply of
Tinance to smaller businesses, it's
equally important to spread that
supply across a range of products,
providers, and funding sources,
This diversity canimprove access
to finance for a wider range of
businesses, improve the terms
and ease of use cf finance for
small businesses, and increase the
likelihood that firms get the most
appropriate form of finance for
their needs.
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The main way we measure our
perfarmance for this objective is by
assessing the proportion of the stock
we support through smaller finance
providers. By increasing provider
diversity we alsa help with the other
dimensions of a diversified finance
market, as different providers will
offer a wider range of products and
tap alternative sources of funding.

In 2018719, we committed capital to
14 new funds across our venture capital
and growth capital pregrammes,
including to new and existing delivery
partners. Additionally, the Bank
announced new delivery partners
under its Investment Proegramme and
ENABLE procgrammes, and accredited
several new providers under EFG,

The total number of finance providers
wwe Now work with is over 130,

' { 4

A diversity of finance
options can improve access
to finance for a wider range
of businesses and improve
the terms and ease of use of
finance for small businesses.

' { 4

CASE STUDY ‘

Doctify

London
London

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Doctify is a healthtech platform
built by medics for healthcare
providers, doctors and patients.

it was founded by two NHS
surgeons when they spotted
the need for an online platform
that links patients with the right
medical specialist,

Doctify allows patients to search
for a health specialist for 47
different medical specialities,
including cardiology. oncology
and paediatrics, Patients canread
reviews fram other patients and
information about each provider.

Enterprise Capital Fund partner
Amadeus has 'ed the last twa
funding rounds far Doctify, with
funding used ta deveiop the
product, build the executive team
and fuel growth. Doctify is today
the UK's leading healthcare review
nlatform with sales doubling every
year for the past three years.
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CASESTUDY

FungiAlert

Rothamsted
East of England

Pragramme: Enterprise Capital Fund

FungiAlert provides soil and water
health screening. Their patented
technology, SporSenZ, is the first,
in-the-field sensor which samples
microorganisms in soil and water.,

Analy amples alerts growers
to therisk of infection before
visible symptoms appeas

to improved

siraregies, inc

improved sail-health,

In 2017, founders Kerry Weaver and
Angela de Manzanos r: £420,000
in a funding round led by Sussex Place
Ventures - £370,000 through an
Enterprise C hire new
team members, purcha 2y
eguipment and undertake tield tri

Afterlaunching their first product,
they raised a further £350,000 to
build an experienced sales team,
support product devel

research and to expand internationally,

EY

»
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-
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The Bank has worked to improve
diversity hy supporting finance
providers in the fcllowing areas.

Challenger banks

while 2018 saw a generally favourable
commercial market for capital raising,
we continued to work with challenger
banks, including investing £25min a
tier 2issue from Secure Trust Bank.,

FinTech

in 2018719 we committed £25m

to business cash advance provider
Liberis. As part of our ongoing support
10 the peer-to-peer (P2P) sector,

we extended the investment period
for Funding Circle and Market Invoice,
and made a £20m commitment to ESF
Capital {operator of the ThinCats P2P
platform), participating alongside
institutional and retail investors,
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Asset finance and asset-based b

lending

We continued our support for these
types of finance in 2018/19, including
a £1Zm commitment from our BBI
Investment Programme and £210m
through ENABLE Funding. We &lso
accredited nine providers under

the new asset finance variant of

our flagship Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme.

Direct lending funds

In 27018719 British Business
Investments made three transactions
with a total value of £115m. This
takes our direct lending lifetime
commitments to £529m.

'L 4

We accredited nine
providers under the new
asset finance variant of our
flagship Enterprise Finance
Guarantee programme,

' 4

CASE STUDY ‘

Bobbin Bikes

London
London

Programme:
British Business Investments -
FinTech

Founders Tom and Sian were
inspired to create Bobbin Bikes
after a trip to Amsterdam.

Back in Londan, they soon realised
that no shops were seiting the
hikes they had grown to love in
the Netherlands.

Founded in 2007, Bobbin Bikes
offers a range of bhicycles for
everyday cyclists across the
wcerid and is known forits
brightly-coloured bikes with
tong handlebars and baskets.

In 2016 the team decided to add
& new anline sales channel 10 go
with their shop. They needed
financial support to buy more
stock and fulfit their new orders,
After contacting Funding Circle,
a partner in British Business
Investments'FinfTech portfolig,
the team received £250,000 to
implement their growth plans,
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OBJECTIVE

ldentity and help

to reduce regional
imbalances in access

to finance for smaller
businesses across the UK

Why itis important

There continue to be regional disparities, particularly
in the availability of equity and higher risk debt
nvestment. These are further exacerbated by a

lack of awareness and confidence among smaller
businesses seeking finance, especially those
outside London and the South East,

This means that businesses in these regions,
and by extension these regions’ entire economies,
potentially miss out on growth opportunities.

Ataglance

Strategic report

Regional funds

£400m

Northern Powernouse
Investment Fund

£30m
Narthern
lrefand Crowth
Finance Fund

£250m

£40m - g Midland Engine
Crrnweali and sles Investment Fund

of Stilly Investrnent
Fund

Together with programmes which fund
businesses throughout the UK, ihe Bank alsc
supports four regionally-dedicated funds.
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Regional funds

The Bank has three regional
investment funds fecused on specific
areas of the UK - the Northarn
Powerhouse, Midlands Engine,

and the Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
investment Funds. In addition, in
2018719, we invested for the first time
inafund dedicated to Northern Ireland.

Northern Powerhouse

Investment Fund

We celebrated the second anniversary
of the £400m Northern Powerhouse
Investment Fund (NPIF) in February
2019, The fund has supported £203m
of finance for local smaller businesses,
including £93m from the private sector.

Midlands Engine Investment Fund
Inits first year the £250m Midlands
Engine Investment Fund (MEIF)
invested £41m through debt and
equity funds of which £17m came
from the private sector.

41m
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Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Fund

The Bank, working alongside the
Carnwall and Isles of Scilly Local
Enterprise Partnership, launchead

the £40m Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Fund (CleS} in june 2018,
The first loan from the fund was made
in December 2018, and the first equity
investment in January 2019.

Northern Ireland

December 2018 saw theiaunch

of the Bank's first fund focusing
exclusively on supporting small
businesses in Northern Ireland.

The £30m fund comprised a £10.5m
investment from the Bank, £7.5m
from Invest Northern Ireland, and
f£172m frem the private sector.

'L 4

In 2018/19, we invested
for the first time in a
fund dedicated to
Northern lreland.

'L 4

CASESTUDY
Locate Bio

Nottingham
East Midlands

Fund Manager:
Mercia Technologies

Programme:
Midlands Engine Investment Fund

Locate Bio Ltdis acelland gene
therapy company headquartered
within MediCity in Nottingham.

Following the appointment of

Nick Staples as the new CEQin fate
20118, the company sought funding
to expandinto the fast growing cell
and gene therapy field, utilising its
next generation proprietary
technolagies.

It received a £2m investment from
Mercia Technologies, with £400k
provided from the Midlands Engine
Investment Fund. Locate Bio used
the funding to help developits
current pipefine of high vatue bone
fusion programmes, to further
developits IntraStem nan-viral
gene therapy technolegy, and
employ six more team members.



CASESTUDY
Sign Solutions

Redditch
West Midlands

Fund Manager: Midven

Programme:
Midlands Engine Investment Fund

Sign Solutions, specialists

in providing high quality
communication support services
for Deaf and hard of hearing
individuals in the public and

private sector, secured investment

from venture capital firm Midven,
through the Midiands Engine
Investment Fund.

Historically focused an the provision
of face-to-face interpreters, BSL
translations and training, Redditch-
based Sign Salutions was founded
in 1998 and provides alf types of
interpretation services, for deaf
people nationwide, 24 hours a day,
seven days 3 week, 365 days a year,

Sign Solutions aims to use its current
reputation as one of the market
ieaders in this field to conguer the
rapidly growing video interpreting
market, With Midver's investment,
seven jobs will be created at Sign
Solutions over the next two years,
with further plans to invest in
developing Its service and make

it available in new areas.
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New programmes for
the regions

In 2018/19, the Bank launched two
new initiatives under this objective.
These were:

~ 3 £100m Regional Angeis
programme (October 2018)

- aUKNetwork (autumn 2018).

Regional Angels programme
Angelinvestors play a vitafrolein the
economy; they bring patient capital,
business experience and skills to
support the growth of smaller
businesses. However, The Treasury’s
consultation - ‘Financing growth in
innovative firms', highlighted
continuing difficulties for businesses
in accessing earlier stage capital in
some parts of the UK. Our new
Regional Angels programme is
designed to help develop clusters

of angels outside of London and

the South East.

In 2018/19 we received a broad
regional spread of interest in the
programme, with a varied set of
investors including angel networks
and syndicates, eguity platforms, and

angel funds and managers. We expect
to make our first transactions through

the programme in early 2019/20.
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UK Network

Our UK Network was launched in
autumn 2018, This was a major step
for the Bank, meaning for the first
time we have a geographically
dispersed field-based team, with each
team member focused on the smaller
business finance markets of their
particular region. The netwerk will
help the Bank to understand and
improve finance markets at regional
and sub-reqgional levels.

Over the relatively short period of
Time that the UK Netwaork has been
running, it has held mare than 800
meetings with smaller businesses

and their intermediaries, presented at
over 50 external events, and attended
150 more. The network will use the
information and insight it gains from
these meetings toinform the Bank's
ongaoing regional strategy, and to
identify opportunities to improve
collabaration and co-grdination within
and across regicns. It also provides us
with away to promoete our smaller
business-facing products such as

the Finance Hub and the Business
Finance Guide.

RN
[

S
e

LA MY T I 'l

-~

Kalopsia Collective CIC
Programme: Enterprise Finance
Cuarantee

Edinburgh based Kalopsiais a
social enterprise batch textile
manufacturer, Founded in 2012,
it creates white label goods with
the aim to produce ethical and
sustainable commercial products.
In 2018, it received funding
through Scottish Enterprise
Finance Guarantee partner OSL
Business Finance to expand its
number of employees and equip
the business with additicnal
machinery.

' 4 4

For the first time we have

a geographically dispersed
field-based team, with
each team member focused
on the smaller business
finance markets of their
particular region.

' 4
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OBJECTIVE Awareness of the Bank

amongst businesses who

Encourage and enable might seek finance
SMEs to seek the finance -
best suited to their needs - I

S

i

"

Why it is important + e 1
Seeking and finding the right finance, at the right e

time, can enable businesses to diversify, expand ;

or enter new markets, meaning they are more likely

to achieve their full growth potential. I —

Dataisfor Q4ineach year shown

At aglance

200,000+

visits to the Finance Hub

00,000+

unigue visits to the
Business Finance Guides’
chsite
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To help us achieve this objective, we
created a new Demand Development
Unit (DBU)Y in autumn 2018. The DDU
aims to help stimulate demand for
smaller business finance by engaging
directly with smaller businesses, and
encompasses Digital and Direct
Marketing, Brand, Fvents, Partner
marketing, and the UK Netwaork (UKN),
Itis headed by our first Chief Marketing
Officer, appointed in early 2019/20.

We group ourinterventions under
this objective under four stages of
a process aimed at driving demand
for finance amongst UK smaller
businesses:

~ Awareness - building awareness
of the Bank as a provider of trusted
information on finance options

- Consideration - becoming the
information provider of choice
for UK smaller businesses

- Usage - ensuring the content
we provide is easy to find and
understand

- Outcomes - seeing changes in
how smaller businesses seek and
use finance,

Awareness

In 2018, smaller businesses became
increasingly aware of the British
Business Bank, with prompted
awareness amongst businesses that
might seek finance growing from
13% at the end of 2017/18 t0 28%
at the end of 2018/19,

70%

Awareness of peer-to-peer
rowdfunding amongst SMEs
am 60% in 2017
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There are a number of measures
which contributed to this growing
awareness, including markating
campaigns, a new UKN znd

a programme of events.

Campaigns

We ran three major social

media campaigns in 2018/19 -
#Goodtolrow, #RejectRejection

and #SmallBizWonders - to champion
and celebrate smaller businesses,
while driving tratfic to our information
products, These campaigns used
mechanisms and channeis such as
Facebook live, Twitter chats and
sponsorship of Small Business
Advice Week.

#GoodtoGrow was particularly
successful, driving 2 479% uplift
insocial trafficreferrals to the
Finance Hub.

2018/19 also saw the first British
Business Bank-branded paid
campaign, with saciat media and paid
search helping to support the launch
of fts new Finance Hub, The paid
campaign drove more than 200,000
site visits and over 2,750 Finance
Finder Tool completions, with
advertising views of more than 80m.
We also continued to support the
Start Up Loans programme with paid
campaligns, driving over 200,000 site
visits through a mix of paid search,
paid social display advertising.

'L 4

#GoodtoGrow was our
most successful campaign,
driving a 479% uplift

in social traffic referrals

to the Finance Hub.

' 4
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CASESTUDY ‘
Hoverdale

Leicester
East Midlands

Programme:
Bank Referral Scheme

Hoverdale makes hard metals
and wear-resistant products for
the mining and manufacturing
industries.

For more than 40 years, they
have been the industry leaders
in hard-wearing conveyor

belt equipment

From their Leicestershire base
they supply materials across the
UK and internationally to some of
the world's biggest companies.

Reguiring growth capital to hire
new salespeogle, founder Michael
Parker was turned down by his
bank. Referred to Funding Options
through the Bank Referral Scheme,
he received £25,000 allowing
production and operations to
continue as usual,

(cntinued growth meant
Hoverdale next turned directly
to LendingCrowd, a peer to peer
lending partner of Funding
Options, for additional funding
ta cover their expansion.
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UK Network

We launched our new UKN in autumn
2018 introducing a new regional
operating model far the Bank - 3
geographically dispersed tearm, with
maobile field-based workers. This gives
us the benefit of having a presence
across the entire UK to support our
‘demand’ and ‘eco-system’ measures
within each English region and the
devolved nations.

Events

By attending events across the
country, we are able to speak directly
to smaller businesses, their infiuencers
and advisors, potential and current
delivery partners, and local finance and
business communities, This enables
us to raise our profile with these
audiences, as well as providing them
with information on finance choices,

Media profile

We raise awareness of the Bank and
its programmes through a pro-active
media engagement programme

for seniar spokespeople. By targeting
business, financial and specialist
media we deliver our messagestoa
high number of key stakeholders and
smaller businesses. Over the Course
of the year, the Bank was coveredin
nearly 5,000 articles across national,
regional and specialist print, online
and breadcast channels, The Autumn
Budget 2018 and our VU & Female
Founders report contributed
significantly to high volumes of
monthly coverage for the Bankin
Octcber 2018 (795 articles) and
March 2019 (578 articles).

ness Bank attendance
‘atevents ‘

Consideration

in 2018/19 we focused on providing
information through the Finance Hub,
the Business Finance Guide and Start
Up Loans.

The Finance Hubis aimed at
businesses looking to grow rapidly,
while the Business Finance Guide

is used mostly by businesses at the
start-ug stage. We alsg offer Start Up
Loan recipients dedicated mentoring
for 12 months so they can get their
new business off to the best start,

The Business Finance Guide was first
published in 2014 after the Bank and
the ICAEW identified a need to provide
clear, unbiased information on finance
options for smaller businesses. The
Finance Hub, launched in summer
2018 and backed by research into the
way today’'s aspiring business leaders
access infarmation in the digital age,
provides engaging, Jargon-free
content, infographics and videas,

as weill as event listings to alfow small
businesses to grow their networks.

Usage

Customer service surveys for the
Bank's main online direct channel -
the Finance Hub - have generated
vary positive responses: 69% of
respondents found the information
they were loaking for; 74% found the
information useful; and 77% would
recommend the site to others,

The Business Finance Guide is now
running on-site surveys, with initial
results showing the majerity of users
found the information provided useful
and easy 1o find

The UKN also engages with smaller
businessas and their intermediaries,
1o find out how our products are
understood and being used, and
provide feedback data so we can
refine and improve our offering.

Strateic report

Outcomes

We use our annual business finance
survey to measure how SMEs seek out
and use finance. As awarenessisan
essential first step in the process of
applying for finance, the survey looks
at the average awareness among
smaller businesses of six products -
leasing, venture capital, business
angels, peer-to-peer lending,
crowdfunding and mezzanine finance,
Awareness of these increased from
50% in October 2017 tn 56% in
October 2018.

Our 2019 Small Business Finance
Markets report alse found growih

in awareness of many alternatives

to traditional finance. Awareness of
peer-ta-peer lending grew from 47%
to 52%, of crowdfunding from 609%
to 70%, and of venture capital by 62%
to B9% year-on-year. These increases
are particularly encouraging, coming
ina year inwhich much of our focus
has been foward raising awareness

of non-traditional finance options.

Our followers on Twitter and Linkedin
grew by 43% and 123% respectively
during 2018718, comparing favourahly
with average growth of 11% for
corporate accounts on each platform.

' {4

Followers on Twitter and
Linkedin grew by 43% and
123% respectively during
2018/19, comparing
favourably with average
growth of 11% for corporate
accounts on each platform.

' { 4



CASE STUDY

Appa Me

London
London

Programme: Bank Referral Scheme

ImranUmar setup AppaMein 2010
to provide essential services for
Deaf and disabled people,
providing training and services

to councils, large corporations

and banks.

Hritis

Business Ban

b

To expand, Imran looked to his bank
foraloan. Because the business had
never borrowed before, alow credit
rating meant the loan was turned
down. After being referred to the
Alternative Business Funding

portal, Imran secured a £25,000
foan from Fleximize,

Theloanmeant Appa Me could
expand to a new office with three
training spaces, a dedicated job
search area, and room for remote
video Sign Language interpretation.

The larcer office means clients now
come from as far as Canterbury o
ACrass services,

= ARNUal RE
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OBJECTIVE Number of times the Bank
was discussed in Parliament

Be the centre of

times discl.ssrr

expertise on smaller

18e 174

business finance in the

1720

UK, providing advice

and support to the

20

Government

2016717

Why itisimportant

Being the centre of expertise on smaller business
finance gives us the knowledge and credibility

to achieve our other objectives, and to help the
Government deliver key policy priorities.

At a glance

6,300+

Downloads of our key reports b
and infggraphics in 2018/19 £1 n

orking with Homes England
and MHCLG to provide
a new ENABLE Build
programme, providing
n to £1bn of guarantees
to support smaller
cbuilder finance
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We use insights gained from our
extensive research and analysis
programme to produce publications
about UK smaller business finance
markets, take part in policy debates,
and to provide input into cross-
governmental projects,

The Bank's closeness to smaller
business finance markets makes it
uniquely placed to advise Government
on their workings. Many of our
employees also have significant
expertise and experience of warking
inindustries and institutions that
finance smaller businesses.

This allows us to work alongside key
Government, industry, academia,
thinktank and media stakeholders
toshape andinform access to
finance debates.

Our activities are grouped into four
linked areas of focus:

- Research and publicaticns
- Opinion engagement
- Policy engagement

- Projectand product delivery

Research and publications

In 2018/19 we published five major
reports, with positive national,
regional and specialist press coverage,
and social media driving significant
online views.

Our UKVC and Female Founders
report, published in partnership with
Civersity VC and the BVCA, gained a
particularty high profile, It featuredin
well over 200 media articles delivering
100% share of voice for the Bank's
spokespeople and §7% delivery of our
key message. It was referred to on
social media by Philip Hammond, Liz
Truss, HM Treasury, BEIS, Beauhurst,
and a range of well-known private
sector fund managers.
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Opinion engagement

Qur people engaged personally with
key policy makers in the Government,
and opinion formers in thinktanks, . e
mdgstry and a;ademla through a b ‘ ROXIMIX
series of meetings and events, , '
This enabled us to bring together
important groups, exchange views,
lead debate and raise awareness
of the Bank's position.

o

Where appropriate, we collabarated
with other thought leaders in smaller
business finance and other related
palicy areas to achieve this,

Ronimix Concrete
Programme: ENABLE Funding

Ronimix Concrete Ltdis an
Essex-based, batch on-site
concrete, screed and concrete
pump hire operator, running a
modern fleet of six lorries and
three in-line concrete pumps.

The Bank's activities were discussed
more than 170 times in Parliament,
with key themes including Start Up
Loans, European funding of UK smaller
businesses, digital and technology,
andthe rural economy, The Bank was
invited as a speaker for 32 events and
hosted 17 events over the course of
the year.

in 2018, Ronimix decided to
purchase three new concrete
mixer lorries, and received just
over £200,000 of asset-based

finance from Simply, supported by

British Business Bank's ENABLE
Funding programme,

Philip Hammond & @PhilipHammondUK - Feb 4
in #Budget2017 | commissioned research into barriers facing women in

l' accessing venture capital. @BritishBBank found #FemaleFounders pitching for

venture capital get less funding than male founders. We must address this issue

head on to realise the true potential for our economy.

Of all investment committee decisions:

CONSIDER CONSIDER CONSIDER
ALEL-FEMALE MIXED-GENDER ALL-MALE
TEAMS TEAMS TEAMS

BRITISH

#V({FemaleFounders

DIVERSITY vC BIC"“

151
Ia SINESS
'/A B.lf\lNK

QOur ground-breaking VC and Female Founders research was widely referred

to by influential opinion-formers on social media.
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Policy engagement Project and product delivery
We contributed to and supported a We alsc continued to develop new
host af Government palicy initiatives proeducts acrass Government and
in 2018/19, including: explored new ways of financing
‘ . for smaller businesses, including:
- Industrial Strategy - we fed into
the sector deals, and contributed — ENABLE Build - we introduced a
to the Industrial Strategy Grand new programme providing up to
Challenges £1bn of quaranteed support for

lending to smaller housebuilders,

- EUexitstrategy - we advised on working with Homes England

CASESTUDY iti ‘
D ‘ conditional Europeqn Invgstment and the Ministry for Housing,
Evezy Fund replacement {including C -
. ommunities and Local Government
venture and debt) and contingency
planning with HM Treasury andthe  — The National Security Strategic
Department for Business, Energy Investment Fund - we worked

and Industrial Strategy across several Government
. departments to launch an £85m
- Regional deveiopment - we fund to support leng-term equit
informed Whitehall discussions . pport’ 9 quity
s on the existing use of Europaean - ‘patient capital - investmentin
Birmingham d P advanced technologies which

; ' lopme .
Midlands RegpnalDeyeop ntEun.dsand contribute to the UK Government's
continue to influence thinking on . . o
naticnal security mission

future arrangements

— Defined Contribution Pension

: - it risk - lished, h . . .
P’°9ra'7’“’e' , Cred»tn'sk we estabiishe . O.StEd fnvestment in Patient Capital study
Enterprise Capital Fund and chaired a forum for credit risk . . o

. - we chaired an ongoing feasibility
.. management in the Government. ,
Birmingham based Evezy study to explore options for
is an all-inclusive electric car facilitating pooled investment in
subscription service, aiming patient capital by large defined
to accelerate electric vehicle contribution pension schemes.

adoption by providing a flexible,
transparent and hassle-free
subscription.

After sume initial investment, it
needed further funding in order
to expand ta new locations, invest
in technology and grow market
share, Evezy secured £2.1 million
in funding from Enterprise Capital
Fund partner Accelerated Digital
Ventures in December 2018,

Securing this funding meant Evezy
could increase its fleet hy aver
200%, vehicle collection points
from two to ten and its vehicle
models from two to six. It also
allowed the business to open a
new office in Leamington Spa,

and hire 18 new employees.

British Business Bank Non-executive Director
Piers Linney providing advice to Liverpool-
based Rejuiceinate as part of the Bank's 2018
Good to Grow campaign.




British Business

CASESTUDY ‘

FW Properties

Since lan Fox and Julian wells
founded FW Propertiesin 2011,
they have successfully completed
six developments of 80 residential

Norwich apartments and houses and have a
Eastof further three projects underway.
England

To fund development works for its
projects, FW Properties received finance
Programme: ENABLE Guarantee from Hampshire Trust Bank, supported
by the Bank's ENABLE Guarantee
programme. Hampshire's funding
structures minimise the amount of
equity that needs to be held by the
developer and the finance provider,
allowing a greater pipeline of housing.

Based in Norwich, small
housebuilder FW Properties
specialisesin developing distinctive
contemporary properties across
Norfolk and Suffoik.
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OBJECTIVE

Manage taxpayer
money efficiently

Why it is important

When we manage our programmes efficiently,

we deliver value for money, All UK taxpayers
benefit from our ability to deliver the most
positive outcome with the [east amount of
Government resources.

At aglance

£81 =111

Strategic report

Return on capital employed

Eid

,_
[

[ T T Y o o A e s B Vo

2016717 2017/18  Z018/19

£195m

cumulative excess return
of £195m
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All our programrmes, with the exception
of the grant funding and operating
costs element for Start Up Loans,
count towards cur financial return
target. The Bank targets achieving 4
return on capital at least equivalent to
the Government's medium-term cost
of capital. We have a target for the
end of March 2019 of 2.525%.

Adjusted return on capital
employed

The British Business Bank achieved

a 3.6% adjusted return on capital
employed in 2018/19, which was
higher thar our target for the year.
However, it is lower than the return
achieved in the previous year. This has
been caused by three key drivers: (a)
lower returns in the year from legacy
VCfunds of £7.2m {2017/18 £22.8m),
(b) write down in the value of assets
distributed by a single Enterprise
Capital Fund {£17.1m), and (c)
increased operating costs as the
Bank has continued to invest in order
to deliver on the new objectives it
was setlast year. The Bank has also
continued toinvest in systems,
controls and processes, While not
material for the results, the Bank has
seen anincrease in credit losses in
several of its debt programmes and
continues to monitor this area closely,

Average capital employed has
increased from £1,530m to £1,829m,
anincrease of £299m as the Bank
continues to investin UK smaller
businesses,
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Adoption of IFRS 9

The group adopted the International
Financial Reporting Standard IFRS 9
for the first time in 2018/19. The
return for the 2017/18 financial year
has been adjusted tc account for the
impact of the transition to the new
basis of accounting for the Group's
financial instruments. This transition
adjustment has resultedina £2.8m
reduction in the reparted return for
2017/18 Asindicated in the 2017/18
Annual Report, the Bank has restated
all of its historic return calculations to

take into account the impact of IFRS 9.

This means that historic changes

in fair value that impacted Other
Comprehensive Income {both the
assets on the Bank's halance sheet
and assets on the BEIS balance sheet
that are managed by the Bank) have
now been included in the historic
Adjusted Return on Capital Employed
as setout laterin this section.

CASESTUDY ‘

Grapeshot

Cambrldge
East of England

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Started in Cambridge,
Grapeshotis abrand safety
platform that helps marketers,
publishers and media
organisations target customers
more accurately in any language
and in real time, globally.

it required funding to continue
development of its products and
services, and grow key teams
within the business. [t received
initial investment from the Bank's
Enterprise Capitat Fund delivery
partner iQ Capital in 2009, and
several rounds of additional
funding, with the last round in 2017,

In 2018, Grapeshot was acquired
by Oracle for $325m, providing
asignificant return multiple

to investors.
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Summary of financial performance and calculation of adjusted return
Adjusted Programmes
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Adjustments British managedon
Audited forSULCo Business behalf of BEIS

Year ended 31 March 2019 (Em) Accounts and ECFs Bank pic  (unaudited) Total
Investment income
Investment Programmes 18.2 0.0 19.2 0.0 19.2
Lending Solutions 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Venture Capital 0.2 109 11.0 7.2 18.2
Start Up Leans 241 {24.1) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Guarantee and wholesale Solutions Q0 00 0.0 189 189

434 (13.2) 30.2 26.0 56.2
Management fee and other income 224 0.0 22.4 (13.5) 8.2
Grant income 17.5 (17.5) 0.0 0.0 0.0
SULCointercompany loan interest 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total operating income 833 (30.7) 526 126 652
Net investment costs
Investment Programmes 51.2 0.0 51.2 0.0 51.2
Lending Solutions .0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Venture Capital (4.7) 6.2 14 0.0 1.4
Start Up Loans (30.7) 31.4 0.7 0.0 0.7
Guarantee and Wholesale Solutions 00 0.0 0.0 (10.6) (10.6)

15.7 37.6 53.3 (10.6) 42.7
Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 73 (73) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Other operating costs
Staff Costs (27.8) 3.9 {£3.8) 0.0 (23.8)
Other Costs (36.2) 135 {22.7) a.0 (22.7)
Total operating expenditure (64.0) 175 (46.5) 00 (46.5)
Net operating profit before ECF loan 42.4 17.0 59.4 19 613
commitments provision )
ECF derivative gain (cash} C.0 3.8 0.0 38
ECF permanent diminution in value 0.0 06 0.0 0.6
Adjusted return 42.4 63.8 1.9 65.7
Average Capital Employed 1,828.7
Adjusted return on average capital employed 3.6%
Cost/income ratio 43.1%
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Audited Adjustments

Programmes
British managedon
Business behalf of BEIS

Year ennded 31 March 2019 (Em) Accounts far SULCo Bankplc  (unaudited) Total
Investment assets
Investment Pragrammes 1,145.8 0.0 1,145.8 0.0 11458
Other BBi Programmes 203.0 0.0 203.0 0.0 203.0
Cuarantee and Wholesale Solutions 1.4 0.0 14 203 217
Venture Capital 2325 0.0 23725 88.0 3205
Enable Funding 0.0 0.0 0.0 340.7 340.7
Start up loans ] 137.2 {104.6) 326 0.0 326
o 1,719.9 (104.6)  1,615.3 449.0  2,064.3
Investment liabilities
Guarantee and Wholesale Solutions C.0 0.0 0.0 (46.2) (46.2)
Venture Capital {139.4) 0.0 {139.4) 0.0 (139.4)
(139.4) 0.0 (1289.4) {46.2) (185.6)
Netinvestment assets 1,580.5 (104.6) 1,475.9 4029 1,878.8
Other assets liabilities
Cash 152.1 (3.4) 148.7 0.0 1487
Tangible and intangible assets 51 (1.5) 36 0.0 36
Loans and barrowings (711.3) 167.0 (604.3) 0.0 (604.3)
Net other payables 571.3 34 524.7 0.0 524.7
B - (328) 105.6 27 0.0 72.7
Total net assets 1,547.7 09 15486 4029 19515

The Bank manages a number of
investments on behalf of BEIS under
aservice agreement; these include
three regional funds, the ENABLE
Guarantee and ENABLE Funding
programmes and EFG. We also
administer the assets and liabilities
included on BEIS's balance sheet
relating to these programmes and
their performance is included in cur
performance measures,

The principle of the adjusted return as
set outin our Shareholder framework

is to provide a measure of financial

performance that excludes temporary,

non-cash fair value accounting
impacts, This allows a comparison to
the Government's funding cost. The
methodology includes returns from
legacy venture funds held an BEIS's
balance sheet but managed by the
Bank and distinguishes between

temporary, non-cash fair value
adjustments and permanent
diminutions in value for other
programmes, notably ECFs,
Permanent diminutions are included in
the adjusted return whilst temporary,
non-cash fair value adjustments are
excluded. Positive fair value
movements on our remaining fair
value assetsare alsoincluded.
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For the financial year ending 31 March 2019, the Bank has re-stated the historic numbers to take account of the impact of
the adoption of IFRS 9 the impact of which are shown in the table below:

IFRS 9 Restatement £m 7 2014/15 2015716 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Return on capital as previcusly reported 8.5 37.1 52.8 71.4

Other comprehensive income adjustments:

- assets initially owned by BEIS (UKIIF} 3.5 151 151 12.8

- assets owned by British Business Bank 139 209 20.7 99

Opening ECL adjustment - - - ) - .8)

Revised Return 25.9 73.1 88.6 91.3

Initial return 2.9% 3.8% 4.1% 4.7% )
Revised Return 8.8% 7.5% 6.9% 6.0% 3.6%
Targetreturn (%) 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%
Excess return (%) 6.2% 5.0% 4.4% 3.4% 11%
Excess return (Em) 18.4 4B8.4 56.1 52.7 196

Since the Bank was created in November 2014, it has generated excess returns ahead of its five-year target amounting

to £195m,

Overall results for the British
Business Bank 2018/19

— We generated a net operating
profit of £42.4m

-~ The value of investment assets
increased by £333m

- We made new cammitments of
£957m to funded programmes and
£550m to guarantee programmes

- Netassetsincreased by £355m to
£1,951m,

Key Drivers of Financial
Performance

As an investment business facusing
on generating appropriate risk-
adjusted returns on our capital
investment, our financial performance
is dependent on a number of
significant items, including:

- the amount of capital we have
committed and the time pericd over
which that funding is deployed

- the underlying performance of our
investments and their ability to
make interest and debt repayments

— over time, the ability to exit
investments successfully and make
a capital profit.

The investment portfolio comprises
of a mix of investments which
contribute towards meeting the
Bank’s overall strategic objectives.
Some investments earn a commercial
return whilst others generate areturn
which is below the market rate, itis
the performance of the commercial
investments managed by British
Business Investments Limited that
makes the greatest cantribution to
the Bank's overall return,

Our net operating profit was mainly
driven by £70.4m of returns from the
Investment Programme investments.
The Venture Capital programmes,
which include both market rate

and sub-market rate investments,
contributed £19.6m of income, £7.2m
of which arose fromlegacy venture
capital funds.

Whilst year-on-year operating costs
increased by £15.1m to £46.5m
iexcluding SULCo), this has accurred
in the context of an expansion in
activities and income generation
which shows that operational
efficiencies have been delivered. The
cost/income ratio at 43.1% (exciuding
SULCo) is higher than 2017/18's figure
of 32.5% (restated) reflecting the
increased activities of the Bank,

The profitbefore tax shownin the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive NetIncome is £81.3m,
compared to £11.3m the pravious year,
This is primarily driven by no new ECF
commitments heing made during the
year. wWhiist the Bank cid offer funding
to two ECF managers during the year,
these offers did not meet the level

of certainty required by accounting
standards far a financial liahility to be
recognised. The profit before tax of
£81.3m is higher than the adjusted
return of £65.8m. This is explained

by the exclusion from the return
calculation of ECF provision releases
of £44.4m, Nuclear Liabilities Fund
{NLF}interest of £5.6m and a number
cf other adjustments (including the
contribution from investments held
on the BEIS balance sheet but
managed by the Bank). Thisis set out
in the table showing the calculation
of the adjusted return.
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Funding

We reguire funding to make
investments and run our operations.
Depending on our requirements these
can be met from our investment
earnings, our Shareholder oran
external funder.

Tofund our capital investments,

we generally issue shares to our
shareholder and utilise available cash
from our operations, including asset
repayments, At 31 March 2019, the
UK Gevernment held shares totalling
£1,496m in British Business Bank plc,
cornprising the entire share capital of
the Company. This amount increased
by £125m during the year. We also
borrowed £600m fram the NLF and
part of this loan was used to fund our
activities.

Qur operating costs are funded
through investment income plus a
management fee charged to BEIS
for managing assets on its behalf.
Income received from this charging
mechanismwas £15.3m in 2018/19.

At 31 March 2019, British Business
Bank pic held £152.1m of cash
balances, generated partly through
its own operations and partly through
Shareholder funding. The Bank
maintains a cash balance of atleast
£50m to fund investments and can
increase this balance in line with
investment demands. The majority of
these funds (£134.7m) are held within
the Government Banking Service 1o
ensure that there is minimal cost to
the Excheguer.
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Our assets

Our programmes invest in a wide
range of products through private
sector partners, to enable us to
achieve our objective of providing
greater volume and choice of finance
to smaller businesses.

This is reflected in the split of these
investments;

- Assets designated at fair value
through profit and loss £1,288.8m

- BFP Mid cap £436.1m

— Investment Programme £297.0m
— UKIF £123.8m

- Venture/Growth £203.0m

- ECFand Venture Capital £228.9m

- Amortised costinvestments £431.2m
— BFP Mid cap £554m
- Investment Programme £233.5m
- StartUp Loans £137.2m
- Regional £4.9m

During the year to 31 March 2019 we
invested £571.5min assets included
onour balance sheet. Thisincluded
investments of £195.2m in the
Investrment Programme and £50.1m in
the BFP Mid Cap programme, £119.8m
in Venture/Growth and £92.1min
ECFs. The Bank has also experienced
significant capital and interest returns
in the year of £506.8m primarily in BFP
Mid Cap which amounted to £144.8m

and Investment Programme of £179.0m.

These returns reflect a large amount
of capital being available in the market
in the market place; a fall in M&A
activity; fund managers seeking
transactions outside the UK; and
companies making early repayments
tc refinance at lower rates,

For many investments, we make
commitments toafund and the

fund draws down cash as itis needed.
This means that there is, generally,

a delay between our investment
commitment and capital being

drawn. As of 31 March 2019, the
British Business Bank plc had further
undrawn commitments of £1,275.8m
to be invested across its portfolio.

o % PHOTONC
7 UL

Iy

CASESTUDY ‘
Photonic
Solutions

Scotland

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Originally established in 1999,
Edinburgh-based Photonic
Solutions distributes, installs
and provides technical support
of high powered, complexlaser
systems to the UK scientific
and industrial market.

Delivered by a team of highly
gualified scientists, Photonic
Solutions provides testing,
modification, user training and
servicing of equipment to its
customers,

In order to fund a management
buyout and purchase the company
from the retiring founders of the
business, the existing employees
sought debt and eguity funding,
and were introduced by a Non-
Executive Director of the business
to British Business Bank partner,
Panoramic.

Photonic are targeting 10%
growth per year over the next
3 years with the ultimate aim
of full ownership within that
time frame.
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Future developments

The British Business Bank's long-term priorities include
addressing both countercyclical and structural finance
market failures, as well as tackling geographical and

demand-side issues.

There are a number of areas of
shorter-term focus for the Bank that
are set out below. The Bankis also
focusing longer term on four areas
of priorities. In the near term we are
focusing on:

External review

The NAQ is undertaking a review of
the Bank, examining whether the
Bank is optimally delivering access to
finance support for SMEs and is well
prepared for future challenges.

In parallel, the Bank is working with
HMT and BEIS to assess its role, remit
and governance,

We will wark through the year ahead
to support these activities and
implement any recommendations.

£200m

Additional Government
commitment to address
potentlal loss of access to
European public funding

Economic environment

The UK is an apen economy and is
therefore affected by trends in the
wider global economy, as well as the
ongoing uncertainty from EU Exit. In
the last year, global growth has been
affected by concerns over trade
tensions and policy uncertainty which
has impacted the broad-based
expansion seen previously. As

part of our role acting as a centre

of expertise for Government, we

are actively monitoring the impact
this shift has had across our SME
portfolios, and have seen early signs
of a deterioration in credit conditions.
If this resulted in more widespread
constraints on access to finance,

the Bank are well placed to play an
important role in supparting smaller
business finance markets,

Building for the future

We will continue to build our
infrastructure, controls and
processes, This is essential to ensure
that the Bank can grow and remain
within its operational risk appetite,

as well as within its balanced mandate
of making smaller business finance
markets work better across the UK.

Strateqsc report

The Bank will also continue to address
longer-term priorities in four broad
areas:

Diversity of supply throughout
the cycle

Apprapriate finance should be
available through the economit cycle,
and particulzrly when the UKisin a
recession and supply is scarce. In the
coming year we will enhance our EFG
delivery capabhility through investing
inanew T system, to support our
delivery partners.

Structural supply of smaller
business finance

Itisimportant that all relevant

farms of smaller business finance

are available, including those that

are scarce inthe UK due to chronic
market failure issues, We will continue
to deliverinitiatives putin place
following the Government’s Patient
Capital Review and over the next year,
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we aim to invest an additional £200m
provided to us by Covernment to
enable us to step in where smaller
businesses have lost arcess to
European public sources of funding.

Appropriate geographical supply
of smaller business finance

The Bank has a range of programmes
to help ensure the appropriate supply
of finance for smaller businesses
across the UK, We are doing further
work on how to build on the Bank's
regional capabilities, including building
out the activities of the UK Netwark
tegm and development of the
Regional Angels Programme,

V4

We will continue to build
our infrastructure, controls
and processes.

' 4
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Building demand for finance

From a demand perspective, smaller
businesses need firstly to understand
that there are finance options
available to them and, secondly, to be
signposted as to how to navigate what
can be a complex customer journey.

In 2019/20 we are putting in

place a customer journey framework
which will track businesses’ journeys,
allowing us to develop a comprehensive
demand strategy. As part of this work,
we will develop a tracking capability
that is able to measure ourimpact and
the return on our marketing investment,

L AN n

Keith Morgan
11 July 2019

Chief Secretary to
the Treasury, Liz
Truss, spoke at the
launch of the Bank's
influential VC &
Female Founders
reportin February
2018.

CASE STUDY

Launch2?

London
Londcn

Programme: Start Up Loans

Launch22 supports young
entrepreneurs to pursue their
businessideas.

After securing a £10,000 StartUp
Loan, Tom Previte and two friends
set up a communal workspace

in tondon, providing mentoring
and networking events for

people who had faced barriers to
entrepreneurship. These inciuded
people with first-nand experience
of the criminal justice system, the
long-term unemployed, refugees
and people with disabilities. They
have since helped cver 700 young
people to start their gwn business.

Last year Launch2?Z launched its
incubator programme, designed to
aquip entreprenaurs with the skills
and networks they need to make
their business a success.
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Material risks: issues that could
prevent us from successftully

delivering our future plans

The directors confirm that they have carried out a
robust assessment of the principal risks facing the
company. We reviewed our risk framework during
2018/19 with a focus on how it operated relative
to the Bank's risk appetite. We continue to monitor
and respond to a number of material risks.

Political environment

The EU Exit and its eventuai outcome
may have an impact on the economic
environment and the behaviour of
smaller businesses in the UK. We have
already seen a decrease in confidence
due to uncertainty, which may lead

to reduced demand for finance by
smaller businesses. We are monitoring
this position. Due to withdrawal

or reduced activity of market
participants such as the European
Investment Fund, we may be asked

to make further market interventicns.

Economic downturn

External macro-economic and
political factors may affect both the
flow of finance to, and demand from,
smaller businesses. In these cases,
the Bank could experience cradit and
investment losses as end borrowers
have difficulty in meeting their
commitments. We are in the process
of agreeing a framework for the
Bank's approach in a downturn with
the Shareholder,

People and processes

(iven the relative complexity and
significant rate of growth of the
British Business Bank, there is a risk
of corparate stretch. The Board and
Executive are focused on ensuring
we have sufficient skilled resources
in place to manage programmes and
policy initiatives that the Bankis
undertaking.

In ordar to deliver its ambitious
growth plan, in 2018/19 the Bank
decided 1o move out of its operational
risk appetite. implamenting process
and control enhancements enabled
the Bank to return within operational
risk appetite by the end of the year.

As part of this work, the Bank has
mapped out its current operating
model and has invested significant
resources inimproving its operational
environment during 2018/19. The
Bank also undertakes risk and control
self-assessments to identify
weaknessesinits controls and
processes and plans remedial actions
where needed.

Demand

While the EU Exit or other economic
conditions may influence market
demand for products, thereis also
arisk that products - new orlegacy -
are not duequately designed to meet
et kel demands. The British Dusiness
Bank designs its products in a robust
fashion through both research and
market sounding, following our
internal product development
gOVernance Nrocesses.

Delivery partners

The British Business Bank's business
model is heavily reliant onits delivery
partners for the efficient execution
of its interventions and increasing
the diversity of funding for smaller
businesses. The consequential higher
level of reputational risk inherent in
this model is managed through the
Banlk’s due diligence precesses and
regular audit programmes, alongside
regular meetings with delivery
partners and service level
agreements.
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Renewal of State aid

The British Business Bank takes
account of State aid rules when

we develop all new products and
programmes. The Bank's State aid
permissions expire in December 2019
and we are working with the State aid
team at the Department for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
to extend our permission,

Information management
and security

The range and scope of data that we
collect, coltate, and control will rise as
our operations grow. This increases
ourinformation and datarisk and so
we have strengthened our systems
and defences,

To ensure that our IT infrastructure
is resilient enough to withstand
disruption without the loss of data
or functionality - as well as making
sure that we follow the requirements
of the EU General Data Protection
Regulations (GOPR) - the British
Business Bank has enhanced its
internal controls and cyber security
protection software. We hold IT
Cyber Essentials Plus accreditation
and IASME certification.

Small Business Saturday 2018 - British
Business Bank Chief Commercial Officer,
Patrick Magee, and Small Business Minister,
Kelly Tolhurst MP, meet Start Up Loans
recipient Alyssa Williamson of Brighton-
based Peach Blossam.
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Delivery on objectives

As anational development bank
wholly owned by the UK Government,
we are required to deliver on
Government policy objectives in
relation to smaller business finance,
Because of this, even though we are
operationally independent, some
processes for decision-making and
approvals rely on input from ministers
and central Government
administration,

If these structures change (due to
anew Government, new minister ar
machinery of Government changes,
forexample), there is & risk of both
achange to our mandate and delays
in decision making that would impact
our ability to operate as efficiently
or effectively as we would want.

During the period, the Bank has added
two new abjectives; ‘Expertise’ and
‘Regional’. To meet the first of these
objectives, the Bank isincreasing its
profile as a subject matter expert

for Government on smalier business
financing. To meet the second, we
have developed a regional presence
through our UK Network Team, and
we cantinue to deploy region-specific
funding through our Northern
Powerhouse, Midlands Engine

and Cornwall and Isles of Scilly
Investment Funds.

'L 4

The range and scope of
data that we collect, collate,
and control will rise as our
operations grow. This
increases our information
and data risk and so we
have strengthened our
systems and defences.

' { 4
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Our people

The British Business Bank has over 320 colleagues
each of whom plays a role in the successful delivery
of our objectives and strateqy.

Peopie are at the heart of what we do,

Overthe past year we have created
84 new rales and promoted 18
colleagues. To achieve success forour
business, we manage our people’s
performance, developing and bringing
through talent while ensuring we
operate as efficiently as possible.

We share common values thatinform
and guide our behaviour tc achieve
our goals in the right way.

Our people strategy, developed in
2018 to complement our business
plan, sets out the key actions that
improve the way we recruit, train
and develop our people.

The strategy has three pillars; culture
& engagement, leadership and
recagnition,

Together, these pillars support
our dasire to achieve outstanding
performance with inspired and
fulfilled people.

Culture and engagement

[tis important for us to have the right
rorporate culture, as we belleve our
long-term success depends on
achieving our strategic goals in the
right way - which means looking after
and championing the best interests
of our people, smaller businesses,

our delivery partners, and other
stakeholders,

Our annua! Colleague Engagement
Survey is an important taol to build

an actively engaged and committed
workforce, It helps us measure and
assess how our peaple feel zbout
working at the Bank, and to putin place
actions for continuous improvements
based on their responses.

Strategicreport

April 2018's survey had aresponse
rate of 656%, with an overall
engagement score of 76%. We
communicated the detailed results
to all Bank colleagues in May 2018.

At a Bank level, the main areas of
focus were career development,
recognition, reward and leadership,
and we have made good progress
with each of these.

For our 2019 survey, which ran from
mid-March to early April, we had a
919% response rate and anincrease in
employee engagement score to 77%.
We are putting action plansin place,
managed and owned by our leadership
team, and driving higher engagement
tc enhance cur people’s experience.

In a growing organisation such as
ours, thereis anincreasing need for
good colleague communications. As
part of that, we held two all-colleague
‘One Team' conferences in 2018/19

- events that give us the opportunity
to tell the story of our business as

we evolve, ensuring all our people
understand where we're going and
the role they play.
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Capability for performance

Driving & perfarmance culture is akey
objective for the Bank. In 2018/19 we
made several enhancements to our
performance management cycleto
clarify responsibilities, drive fairness
and consistency, and equip colleagues
and managers to understand and
maximise the value of the process.

We have also placed more emphasis on
managers taking more accountability
for the performance and development
of their pegple. At the end of the
performance year, facilitated
moderatian sessians fostered amare
consistent application of performance
ratings, which realistically reflected
the Bank's overall performance.
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For the start of the 2019/20
performance year, we have made
further enhancements to drive
closer alignment of each colleague’s
objectives with the Bank’s objectives,
encourage a developmental mindset,
and incorporate clear measures of
success, far both 'What' our people do
and 'How' they dao it. The fatter is set
outinanew'y created leadership
framework as described in the
Leadership section on page 46,

We have processesin place far
understanding and responding to
colleagues’ needs through surveys
and regular performance and
development reviews. We continue,
therefore, 1o work towards improving
our communication to colleagues

to ensure they are engaged with

the decisions we make, and so we
can respond to their feedback,

' { 4

For our April 2019
engagement survey
we had a 91% response
rate and an increase in
employee engagement
scare to 77%.

'L 4

Start Up Loans recipients discussing
their finance journeys at our most recent
‘One Team'meeting.

We also have a colleague forum
consisting of people from all levels of
our organisatfon which provides input
into policies and werking practices

10 ensure we support our Bank
colleagues employment needs.

Business developments are
communicated frequently to keep
colleagues well informed about
the progress of the Bank and to
understand the Bank's cbjectives.

Wellbeing

Wellbeing support to colleagues

has cantinued to be a focus in
2018/19 which has included
appointing mental health firsi-aiders,
introducing a cycle to wark scheme,
providing fruit for colleagues and
offering flu jabs and holding events
to promate general wellbeing.
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Leadership framework

Accountability and commitment
Delivers on commitments

and aspires to do more

Lead self

Trustand
integrity
Demonstrates
the values and
builds trusting
relationships

Talent

Enabling values

2 r ¢

Connecting

Openness
&'

Innovative

responsible

Lead the business

Execution and results

Drives shared outcomes and value
for clients and stakeholders

Leadership

Values and leadership framework
Our five shared values were reviewed
in March 2018. These values -
openness, commercially respansible,
connecting, innovative and talent -
shape and support our brand and our
core essence of ‘enabling’,

In early 2019/20, we built on this
foundation and created a ieadership
framework, which articulates the
behaviours that will help drive the
success of the Bank and reinforce
cur culture, The framework applies
to all colleagues and encompasses
behaviours grouned into leading
self, leading others and leading

the business,

To ensure that the leadership
framework becomes embedded
across the Bank and supparts
continuous improvemnent, it will be
integrated within all cur people
processes during 2019720, including
talent and succession, recruitment
and performance management.

Building talent and succession
Talent, as well as being one of our
organisational values, is akey focus of
our People Strategy. We are currently
developing an overarching and
infegrated approach to identifying
and building ‘bench strength’ across
the Bank - those individuals with the
potential to become the top talentin
our organisation. Strateqic outcomes
will include a clear understanding of
our top talent and leadership pipeline,
pricritised development themes
throughout the Bank, targeted
actions to mitigate talent and

Commercially

Collaboration

Shares information and
breaks down barriers

Lead others

Performance and
development

Enables high
performance and
a growth mindset

innovation

Fosters agility and
embraces change

succession risks, and a greater
emphasis on career growth and
internal hiring. This year we filled
19.6% of vatancies internally.

Succession planning is a twice-yearly
process that focuses onidentifying
successors forexecutive roles and
defining targeted development to
ensure readiness.

We are committed to grow aur talent
and capability and we know that the
development of our peaple is
fundamental to the success of our
business strategy. To suppart this
development we have invested in an
anline learning management system
which we will be introducing in
2019/20. This will give our employees
access to courses and arange of
pragrammes and support materials
10 enable their development onan
ongoing basis,
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Recognition

We understand the importance
of employee recognition in giving
employees a sense of awnership
and belonging and that they are
truly valued for their contribution.

Our discretionary bonus payments

are made on merit, and we believe this
approach encourages fairness and
drives our people to want to do a great
job. We also have ain place @ number
of ather recagnition schemes which
recognise and reward colleagues.

We have reviewed our reward
strategy to ensure that our reward
structure supports the recruitment
and retention of colleagues critical

to the successful delivery of the
husiness' objectives, Qur aimis to
align performance and reward so that
colleagues know what is expected

of them and feel recegnised for their
personal contribution and behaviours.

We recognise and reward the
performance of our colleagues by
offering a stake in the financial
performance of the Bank through
participating in the annual banus
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scheme, which is linked to both
corporate and personal performance.

Employee involvement

Qur Equa! Opnortunities, Diversity and
Inclusion policies support managers
and colleagues in creating a diverse
and inclusive culture where everycne
is welcome. Our policies demaonstrate
our commitment to providing equal
opportunities to all colleagues,
irrespective of age, disability, gender,
marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy or maternity, race, religion
or belief, sex, or sexual orientation.

Diversity and inclusion

We believe thatour successas a
business can only be achieved by
being truly inclusive and we have a
number of mechanisms to support
this, which include our grievance
and whistleblowing procedures,

our engagement survey and a visible
HR team in all lacations, allowing
employees to raise any concerns,

Qur diversity and inclusion policy
can be found on our website
www.british-business-bank.co.uk.

British Business Bank - gender balance

Board 7
Employees

Executive Committee* 5
Senior Leadership Team 8
Other Employees 168
Totalemployees 181

Board 3
Employees

Executive Committee 3
Senior Leadership Team 4
Other Employees 133
Total employees 140

Gender representation

The graphic below sets out the gender
diversity of the Board, Executive
Committee members, Senior
Leadership Team and employees

at 31 March 2019,

The British Business Bank has a good
gender balance averall. We recognise,
however, that we have more todo

to increase the number of women in
our senior management positions and
we are taking steps to make sure that
senior colleagues, when recruited,
reflect the characteristics of the
diverse workforce we seek to create.

Over the past year we have continued
to embed diversity and inclusion
within the Bank. COne of cur targets

is to aim for ali recruitment processes
atdirector and managing director level
toinclude a gender diverse shortlist
and interviewer panel. We also have
gender neutral advertising.

We have reviewed our parental and
maternity policies to encourage amore
family friendly culture to enhance
suppoert for all working parents.

In 2018 all the objectives of the
Executive Committee included gender
diversity targets to ensure the pay of
the senior executive team is linked 1o
gender diversity.

*includes 3 Executive Commitiee members
who are members of the Board
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QOur subsidiary, British Patient Capital
also announcedin February 2019 that
it would be seeking to spread best
practice by adopting the Institutional
Limited Partner Association (ILPA)
diversity template for venture capital
firms applying for its programmes,
This new initiative enables venture
capital teams to measure and report
the gender and ethnic diversity of
their teams by seniority and role,

and aims to encourage conversations
about issues around diversity.

Gender pay gap

We included details of our 2018 gender
pay gap in our 2018/19 Annual Report,
and will be publishing a full 2019
gender pay gap report later in the year.

Women in finance charter

In March 2018 we signed up to

the Treasury’s Women in Finance
Charter and our CEQis responsible
and accountable for delivering this
initiative. We have made considerable
progress in appointing women to
senior positions over the last three
years, but there is more to do to
increase diversity.

Our gimis to ensure that, by October
2021, 50% of our senicr leadership
team (bands 1 - 3) are female (within
a 10% tolerance). As at 31 March 2019
the overali split was: Male 649,
Female 3G6%.

Ethnicity

We value people frem all backgrounds
and have aninclusive approach that
celebrates diversity. We know that our
inclusive culture helps us to attract,
retain and develop our employees and
encourages them to bring their whale
selves to wark,

The British Business Bank has a
diverse workforce, with 14 different
ethnicities declared and with a further
group of 19% who did not declare
their ethnicity. White Britishis the
major ethnic group {48%) and Asian
the second largest (8%),.

Disability

The Bank works with calleagues,
including those with disabilities, to
adapt work practices where necessary
in order to help them work effectively
within the business. We are a
Disability Confident Employer as part
of the UK Government’s Disability
Confident scheme.

Human rights

We aperate in accordance with the
Universal Declaration of Human
Rights and take account of other
internationally accepted human rights
standards. We also promote human
rights through our employment
policies and practices, and through
the responsible use of cur products
and services.

Data protection

Across British Business Bank, the
privacy and security of personal
information is respected and
protected. Qur privacy statement
governs how we collect, handle, store,
share, use and dispose of information
about people. We regard sound privacy
practices as a key element of corporate
governance and accountability.

Corporate social responsibility
Colleagues from acraoss the Bank
worked together oninitiatives
focused on all three areas of our CSR
mandate in 2018/19 - charity work,
environment and volunteering.

Strategicreport

We continued our support for the
three charities nominated in 2017/18
foranather year:

— Shelter - our national nominated
charity.

- Bluebell Woed Children’'s Hospice
in Sheffield,

— The Trussell Trust in Londen.

Calleagues from across the Bank
took part in fundraising activities

to raise money directly for our three
nominated charities. These included
our annual ‘Great British Business
Bank Bake Off’, as well as sponsored
runs and bike rides.

Colleagues can also take a day once
ayeartoundertake voluntary work,
They used these days in 2018718 Lu
support a wide range of causes, which
included serving and packing Tood at
local food banks and supporting a
grant-making foundation with a variety
of financial topics. Many colleagues
also give their own time to volunteer
with charities and other organisations.

Colleagues are committed to reducing
waste and limiting our impact on the
environment at work by supparting
local suppliers, reducing packaging,
and hy recycling more effectively.

We alsa run a cycle to work scheme,
we will continue to run campaigns on
how to take simple steps to make big
changes for environmental impact,

Approved by the Board of Directors

V' OV O N

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11july 2019
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Directors' report

The directors present
their annual report on
the affairs of the Group,
together with the
financial statements and
independent auditor's
audit report for the year
ended 31 March 2019.

Directors

The Carporate Governance Statement

is setout on pages 54-61 and forms
part of this report,

The following information required by
the Companies Act 2006 can be found
in the following sections of the Annual

Report, which are incorporated by
reference into thisreport:

~ adescription of the principal
activities of the Group during the
course of this year is included in
the strategic report

- information on our employment
disability policies and on our action

- details of the significant events

since the balance sheet date are
contained innote 28 to the
financial statements

— information about the use of

financialinstruments by the
company and its subsidiaries is
given innote 26 to the financial
statements

the Bank has chosen toinclude
information regarding future
developments within the strategic
report because we believe it is
better placed there.

on colleague engagement are in the

‘Our People’ section

During the year the following individuals served as Directors. The appointment and removal of Directors is set out in the
Corporate Governance Statement found on page 54,

Director Position
Lord Smith

Christina McComb

Jonathan Britton
Neeta Atkar
Carpiine Green
Piers Linney

Amanda Rendle

Ceri Smith Shareholder

Initial Initial
appointment appointment
date expiry

Non-executive Director 05 July 2017
Non-executive Director 29 October 2013

Non-executive Director 28 April 2014
Non-executive Director 01 July 2016

Non-executive Director 24 June 2014
Non-executive Director 07 December

2017

Non-executive Director 07 December

2017
29 0ctober 2013

Representative Director

Keith Morgan

Christopher Fox
Patrick Magee
Dharmasﬂ\dis‘gl

Executive Director
Executive Director
Non-executive Director 01 May 2019

Chief Executive Officer 10 December

04 July 2020

18 November
2016

27 April 2017
30 June 2019
23 June 2017
06 December
2020
06 December
2020
13 Navember
2016

N/A
2013
13jenuary 2015 N/A
10March 2015 N/A

30 April 2022

Reappointment

effective Reappointment
date expiry

N/A N/A

18 November 18 November
20156 2019

28 April 2017 27 April 2020
01 july 2019 30 June 2022
20 uly 2017 19 January 2019
N/A N/A

N/A N/A

13 November

13 November

2016 2019
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
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Directors’ biographies

Dirertors report

Lord Smith of Kelvin
Chair

Lord Smith has led organisations in the
private, public and voluntary sectors.
He is a former President of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Scotland.
He is currently the Chair of IMi plc and
Alliance Trust plc, and Chancellor of
the University of Strathclyde.

Christina McComb
Senior independent Director

Christina has 30 years' experience of
investing in and supparting SMEs. She
is currently chair of OneFamily and
Standard Life Private Equity Trust pic,
Senior Independent Director of Big
Society Capital, a trustee of NESTA,
and a Non-executive of Nexeon Ltd,

Neeta Atkar

Independent Non-executive
Director and Chair of Risk
Committee

Neeta has 30 years experience

in financial services, working across all
aspects of risk. She is a Non-executive
Director of Nomura Europe Holdings
plc and of Yorkshire Building Society,
chairing the Risk Committees at both.
Shie has been a Magistrate for over

20 years,

Amanda Rendle
Independent Non-axecutive
Director and Chair of
Remuneration Committee

Amanda has over 30 years of marketing
and communications experience. She
was Glabal Head of Marketing for HSBC
Commercial Banking and Globa! Banking
and Markets. She is a Non-executive
Director for Tesco Bank and the
Government Communications Service
Ministerial Board.

Ceri Smith
Shareholder
Representative Director

Ceriis a Director at UK Government
Investments and the British Business
Bank on behalf of its Shareholder,
the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy.

He previously worked in

HM Treasury, the Department for
Business and the Foreign Office,

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

Keith has been CEC since 2013,

He joined ihe Bank from UK Financial
investments, where he managed
the Government's shareholdings

in Bradford & Bingley and Northern
Rock. Keith previously held senior
roles at Santander and spent 17
years at LEK Consulting.
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To see full Directors' biographies, please visit:
british-business-bank.co.uk/our-peopie/

Jonathan Britton
Independent Nan-executive
Directer and Chair of Audit
Committee

jonathan has over 35 years’
experience in banking, A qualified
chartered accountant, he was a
Non-executive Director of ICIC Bank
UK Ltd from 2011 to 2017 Heis a
Non-executive Director of Nomura
Eurcpe Holdings plc, chairing its
Audit Committee.

Caroline Green
Independent Non-executive
Director until 19 January 2019

Caroline is the Chief Operating and
Financial Officer at ReBOUND Returns,
having previcusly held CFO positions
in both private equity-backed and
listed businesses. Caroline also spent
eight years in private equity, initially
at 3iplc,

Piers Linney
independent Non-executive
Director

Piers has founded several businesses
and wan arange of entrepreneurship
awards, He has appeared as an
investor on Dragon’s Den and sat on
the Cabinet Office SME Pane! and the
Board of TechUK. He is a Trustee

of Nesta.

Christopher Fox
Chief Financial Officer

Before joining the Bank in 2015,
Christopher was Head of Banking

at UK Financial Investments, where
he oversaw the Government's
sharehaoldings in Lloyds Banking
Group, RBS and UK Asset Resolution,
Previpusly, Christopher spent almost
20 years at UBS.

Patrick Magee
Chief Commercial Officar

Patrick joined the Bank in 2014,
becoming CCO in October 2017 He fed
the team working on the Bank's set-
up, and represented the Government’s
interests on its Board. Patrick was
previously a managing director of
corporate finance at |P Morgan
Cazenove,

Dharmash Mistry”
Non-executive Director

Dharmash is an experienced venture
capitalist, entrepreneur and NED. Heis
currently a Partner at Lakestar VC and
co-founder and Chairman of blow LT,
Heis a nan-executive director of BBC
Commercial Holdings Ltd and was
previously a partner at Balderton Capitai.

*Appointed on 1 May 2015
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CASESTUDY ‘
B-Secur

Belfast
Northern
Ireland

Programme:
Enterprise Capital Fund

Northern Ireland-based B-Secur
is pioneering next-generation
biometrics, using the heart

to secure health & wellness
insights,

Its technology captures ECG signals
using sensors within ciothing,
wearables, or physica! touch points.
These signals provide insights

on the individual, canfirming who
they are to how they are feeling.

Uses include improving motaring
safety, medical monitoring and
improvements in worker
verification, and wellbeing,

As an early stage company,
B-Secur requires heavy R&D
investment. in 2017 it received
funding from ADV, an Enterprise
Capital Fund backed by the Bank.
B-Secur has since grown to gver

35 people, competing on the global
stage. In March, it raised a further
£4m, with ADV leading the round.

Directors’ indemnities

The company has granted indemnities
to each of its directers in respect of all
losses arising out of, or in connection
with, the execution of their powers,
duties and responsibilities as directors
to the extent permitted by law and
the company’s articles of association.
The company provides directors’ and
officers’liability insurance.

Going concern

The directors who served during the
year have a reasonable expectation
that the company and the group
have adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial
statements, Further details can be
found in the significant accounting
policies notes in the financial
statements,

Sustainability principles

The British Business Bank is
committed to promoting
sustainability. We are concerned
about the environment and we
believe that promaoting a breader
sustainability agenda is integral to
our professional activities and the
managemeant of the organisaticn.
We follow and promote good
sustainability practice, and we

are reducing the environmental
impacts of all our activities.

Directors'report

Greenhouse gas emission
reporting

Scope of disclosure

The British Business Bank reports its
Scope 1 and Scope 2 emissions based
onits property portfolio. The British
Business Bank plc occupies four floors
of office space and is able to provide
emission reporting from 2015 1o date
in respect of its premises and
company travel activities.

The reported Scope 1 emissions cover
emissions generated from the gas and
oil used in all buildings from which the
Group operates, and Scope 2 includes
its emissions from electricity. The
figures provided in Scope 1 and Scope
2 inthe table below are estimated
emissions relating to energy
consumed in properties where the
landlord cantrols the supply and
recharges the British Business Bank.
The reported Scape 3 emissions relate
to business travel undertaken by all
calleagues using rail and air travet
which has been booked through

our corporate trave! agent. These
results are summarised in the table
on page 53. We do notreport on

any other Scope 3 emissions at this
time. We have not included business
mileage in private vehicles as this

is ngt a significantly used mode

of travel.
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Assessment parameters

Baseline year for total repcrted CO; Emissicns
Consalidation approach

Boundary summary

Emission factor data source

Assessment methodology

intensity ration

2016

Operatianal control

All facilities under operational control
DEFRA (2016)

The Greenhouse Gas Protocol
revised edition (2004)

Emissions per full time employee (FTE)

GHG emissions

Scope 1 (Gas)

Scope 2 (Electricity)

Scope 3 (Travel)

Total

Total per average number of employees

2017/18 2018/19 Comparison
Scope CO, Scope CO; 2017718
(tonnes) (tonnes) to 2018/19 (%)
28 29 +39%
191 241 +26%
a5 83 -13%
314 363 +157%

1.25 1.1

Directors’ disclosure to
auditors

This information is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with

Section 418 of the Companies Act

Each of the persons who are a director >006.

at the date of approval of this annual
report confirms that:

Appraved by the Board of Directaors

- sofarasthedirector is aware, there
is no relevant audit information of m\:ﬂ"‘
which the company’s auditors are

Unaware

- thedirector has taken all the steps

that he/she cught to have taken as
a director in order to make himself/
herself aware of any relevant audit
information, and to establish that
the company's auditors are aware
of thatinformation.

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Gfficer

11 July 2019

53
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Corporate governance

Statement

The British Business Bank constitution consists of its
Articles of Association and a Shareholder Relationship
Framewark Document between the British Business
Bank and the Department for Business, Energy and

Industrial Strategy (BEIS).

The British Businass Bank plc
operates, sofarasis practicable, a
best practice corporate governance
framework, and complias with the UK
Corporate Governance Code ather
than Section E (Relations with
Sharehalders).

The UK Corporate Governance Code
is freely available from the Financial
Reporting Coeuncil. The 2016 UK
Carporate Governance Code arts

as a guide to a range of key issues
to ensure effective Beard practice.

Apart from those set cut in this
Annual Report, the Board is not aware
of any deviations from the relevant
aspects of the Code in the period since
1 April 2018 insofar as it applies to the
British Business Bank.

Role and responsibility of
the Board of Directors of
the company

British Business Bank plcis led

by its Board of Directors which in
consultation with BEIS is collectively
respansible for the long-term success
of the Bank. The Board, again in
consultation with BEIS, is also
responsible for the strategy of

British Business Bark plc.

As setoutin the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document,
the Board must have no fewer than
eight Directors including six Non-
executive Directars. Independent
Non-executive Directors are to
make up the majority af the Board.

Our Board and committees have

the appropriate balance of skills,
experience and independance

to discharge their duties and
responsibilities effectively. The

Board considers that the Chairwas
independent on appointment and that
all Non-executive Directors other than
Ceri Smith are independent for the
purposes of the Code. Ceri Smith is the
Shareholder Representative Director.

Although both Neeta Atkar and
Jonathan Britton are Nan-Exetutive
Directors of Nomura Eurcpe Holdings
plc, and hoth Christina McComb and
Piers Linney are trustees of Nesta,
the Board considers tham to be
independentin character and

judgement and therefare independent,

Directors’report

The Board reviewed the schedule

of mattersreserved for the Boardin
October 2018, The matters reserved
for the Board include strategy and
management, company structure

and capital, financial reporting and
controls, risk management and
internal controls, approval of majer
projects and contracts, communications
with our Sharehalder, Board
membership and other appointments,
remuneration, delegation of authority,
corporate governance, appointment
of professional advisers, litigation and
approval of averall levels of insurance.

Our Non-executive Directors
scrutinise the performance of
management in meeting agreed goals
and objectives. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for setting
appropriate levels of remuneration for
Executive Directors and other Bank
colleagues in consultation with our
Shareholder. This is further explained
in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
at page 68.
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The Chair is responsible forteading
the Board and its discussions and for
encouraging open debate and
challenge. The Chief Executive leads
the executive in the day to day running
of the business and the implementation
of strategy and is supported in this

by the Executive Committee and the
Senior Leadership Team.

As an organisation funded by
taxpayers’ money the Bank is required
to comply with the principles set outin
Managing Public Money {www.gov.uk/
geovernment/publications/managing-
public-maney).

The Chief Executive is the Accounting
Officer. The responsibilities of an
Accounting Officer include
responsibility for the stewardship

af the Bank's resources.

The Senior Independent Director

is Christina McComb. The Senior
Independent Director's responsibilities
are to:

- work closely with the Chair

— actasanintermediary for other
Directors as and when necessary

— meet with other Non-executive
Directors to review the Chair's
performance,
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Ouring the year the Board appraised
Lord Smith's performance as Chair by
questionnaire. The results were
discussed among the Non-executive
Directors, led by the Senior
Independenri Director,

Appointment and removal
of directors

The Sharehalder Relationship
Framework Document states that no
appointment or remeoval of a director
of the company, or appointment

or removal of any such director to

or from an executive position, can

be made without the prior written
consent of the Shareholder. The Chair
and the Senior Independent Directar
are appointed in a process chaired by
a commissicner from the Cffice of the

Commissioner for Public Appointments,

in line with the Shareholder
Relationship Framework Document.

The composition of the Board is set

out onpage 49 of the Directors' report.

55

' 4

The Board, in consultation
with BEIS, is responsible
for the strategy of British
Business Bank pic.

' { 4

Inlanuary 2019, Caroline Green
stepped down from the Board. Odgers
Berndison was appointed as an
independent search consultant for
the appointment of a new Board
member for the British Business Bank,
and in May 2019, Bharmash Mistry
was appointed as Non-executive
Director for a term of three years.

The full biographies of all Beard
members can be found at:
www.british-business-bank.co.uk/
our-people

Annual Director election

At the 2018 Annual General Meeting
(AGM) Amanda Rendle and Piers
Linney were elected and Christopher
Fax, Patrick Magee and Ceri Smith
were re-elected.
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Information to the Board

All directors are given updates on
corporate governance developments,
legislative and regulatory changes,
and relevant industry and technical
infarmation. The Board is supplied in
a timely manner with the appropriate
information to enable it to discharge
its duties, and any further information
is readily available to all directors.
Since 2015 the Board has received
board papers and information
electranically, to increase efficiency,
confidentiality and sustainability.

' 4

The Board has established
four Board committees to
ensure robust and effective
decision making.

' { 4

Board committees

The Board has established four Board
committees to ensure robust and
effective decision-making within

the group structure, namely Audit,
Remuneration, Risk and Nomination
committees. The British Business
Bank Board has approved terms of
reference for each committee.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committeeis chaired by
|anathan Britton. Neeta Atkar and
Caroline Green were also members

of the Committee during the year,
Caroline Green stepped down
following the October 2018 meeting
and Dharmash Mistry joined the Audit
Committee following his appointment
tothe Board in May 2019.

All members of the Audit Committee
are independent Non-executive
Directors. The Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk
Officer, General Counsel, Head of
Internal Audit and a Sharehclder
representative attend committee
meetings along with the external
auditars who are invited to attend
and report at all meetings.

The Committee aisc meets privately
with both internal and external audit.
You can find a full attendance record
on page 61.

Directors report

Role

The Committee’s role is ta review,
monitor ang make recommendations
to the Board relating to.

- the‘going concern’ nature of
the Bank

- theintegrity of financial reporting

- thefinancial statements and any
issues and judgements they
contain

- the zdequacy and effectiveness of
the internal and external contrals

— overseeing the relationship
with the Bank’s external auditor.

The Committee also has oversight of
the internal audit and audit planning
process of the Bank.

During 2018/1%, the Audit Committee
considered and approved:

- the oversight of the Bank's financial
reporting process and the process
for preparation of the consclidated
accounts

- the accounting policies adopted
to ensure the Bank as a whole
cemplies with the applicable
accounting standards and presents
consolidated accounts that are
true and fair

- methods used to account for
significant or unusual transactions
where different approaches are
possible

- the assessment of, and process
for preparing, the consolidated
accountis

- the extent to which the Bank has
complied with Shareholder financial
reparting requirements

— {FRS 9 accounting implications.
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Inrelation tointernal and externa!
audit, the Audit Committee considered
and approved,

- theintarnal audit plan and review
of progress against this plan

- thefindings of internal audit
reviews

— group and subsidiary audit
exemptions

~ the appointment of external
auditors

- thereview of external audit
planning and progress

- theexternal audit management
letter

In relation to governance and other
matters, the Audit Committee
considerad and approved:

interest rate risk

- fraud prevention

- controls relating to the ‘procure
to pay’ process and the
management of budgetary
pressures in respect of
Departmental Expenditure Limits

- the governance statement
submitted to BEIS.
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The Corporate Governance Code
requires that the Audit Committee
should make a recommendation

on the appointment of the auditor.
However, our Shareheider
Relationship Framework Document
specifies that we are audited by the
Comptroller and Auditor General,
which we helieve provides appropriate
safeguards for our Shareholder, The
Nationa! Audit Officer (NAQ) carries
out the external audit for and on
behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor
General. The external auditors have
not conducted any non-audit services
during the financia! year and the
Committee considers that the
external auditor is both objective

and independent.

Wildanet
Programme: Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly Investment Fund

Wildanet uses wireless radio
technaoloqy to provide superfast
broadbandinrural areas. The
business received a £750,000
equity investment through The
FSE Group, viathe Cornwall and
Isles of Scilly Investment Fund,
as part of a wider £1.5m package.
The funding will support
Wildanet's expansion into Devon,
targeting 12,000 new customers
and creating 3% jobs over the next
three years.

The significant issues considered
by the Committee, with input from
the external auditor, have included:

- methodoiogies and procedures
for determining asset valuations
and provisions

- significant accounting policies
— decisions and judgments

- the contents of the Annual Report
and the Accounts of the company

- IFRS 9 accounting implications.

The external auditors brought five
matters to the Audit Committee’s
attention in their 2017/18
management letter,

These were the:
- implementation of IFRS 9

- application cf Effective Interest
Rates for fund investments

— accuracy of payments to new
starters

- availability of audit evidence from
delivery partners

— planning for the delivery timetable
for 2018/19 accounts and audit,

All of these issues were addressed,
and their resolution discussed and
agreed by the Committee.

Signed for and on behalf of the
Audit Committee

Jonathan Britton
Chair of the Audit Committee
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Remuneration Committee — areview of market benchmarks Risk Committee
Th . for remuneration . . . .

e members of the Remuneration The Risk Committee is chaired by
Committee during the year were - publication of gender pay gapdata  Neeta Atkar. The other members
Christina McComb, Amanda Rendle ‘ of the Committee during the year
and Ceri Smith. It was chaired by - the equal pay audit were Jonathan Britton, Piers Linney,
Christina McComb until january 2019, — the Women in Finance Charter Christina McComb and Ceri Smith.
and since then by Amanda Rendle, and gender diversity target You can find a full attendance record
You can find a full attendance record ) - on page 61,
on page B1, - private medical insurance

- payment of performance awards Role
Role for senior executives departing the  1he Committee’s role is to advise the
The Committee’s roleisto set the Start Up Loans Company foilowing Board on the key risks to the Bankin
remuneration policy for all Executive the transaction with the Bank the pursuit of its phjectives, including
Directors, the Chair and other whether the Bank is operating
members of the Executive Committee, — exemptions frompublicsectorpay  within its risk appetite and the
including pension rights and any guidelines apprapriateness of the Bank's Risk
compensation payments. It also sets - the approach to remuneration Management Framework, [t reviews
the terms of the Long- and Short-Term at British Patient Capital the Risk Management Framewark,
Incentive Plans and any incentive taking account of the fact that the
schemes that the British Business ad-hoc salary pruposals for Bank is in the public seclor and not
Bank plc and its subsidiaries may run Exetulive Connillee members reguldled by Llie FCA/PRA.
in line with the Sharenalder — areview of the Committee’s terms
Relationship Framework Document. of reference.
During the financial year 2018/19, the
Remuneration Committee considereg,  >igned forand on behalf of the

Remuneration Committee
— the Remuneration Framewark

of the Bank e )

- annual confirmatian to the A /vq s {Z:E,

Sharehaolder cn remuneration A '

commitments made in the

Shareholder Relationshi

Framework Docimerr]wst " Amanda Rendle

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
— areview of the objectives for

Executive Directors and membhers

of the Senior Leadership Team ”

the annual pay review Before any appointment
- corporate performance ratings is made by the Board,

andannualbonus the Nomination Committee
- Short Term Incentive Plan and evaluates the balance

Long Term incentive Plan awards .
of skills, knowledge,

experience and diversity
on the Board.

— areview of the redesign of the
Long Term Incentive Plan

—~ the annual remuneration and
reward strategy review "
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During 2018/19, the Risk Committee
considered and approved:

- therisk appetite statement for
the Bank and its subsidiaries

- the updated Risk Management
Framework and the Information
Risk Management Framework

- the Bank's approach to Gperational
Risk, Spreadsheet and Model Risk,
Credit and Investment Risk,
Information Risk, Reputational
Risk and Market Risk

- the Bank's approach to Business
Intelligence and Operational Risk

— theoutputs of macroeconomic and
other stress tests on our portfeolio
and business plan

- the annual Governance Statement
and annual Money Laundering
Officer's report

— the Bank's positionin relation
to State aid

— the Risk section within the
Annual Report

- implementation of the Risk
and Cantral Self-Assessment
programme, General Data
Protection Regulation (GOPR)
and IFRS 9

- information security.

Signed fer and on behalf of the
Risk Committee

ﬂ\/}(m}ﬂ\f

Neeta Atkar
Chair of the Risk Committee
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee is chaired
by Lord Smith. Christina McComb

and Ceri Smith were members of

the Committee throughcut the year,
You can find a full attendance record
onpage 61

The UK Corporate Governance

Code requires that a majority of

the Nomination Committee be
independent Non-Executive
Directars, in order to safeguard
theinterests of shareholders when
making appointments. Our Nomination
Committee does not comply with this
as the Chairis considered independent
only on appointment and Ceri Smith

is appointed by the Shareholder and
therefore notindependent. However,
we believe the Shareholder's interests
are safequarded as both the Chair

and the Shareholder Representative
Director are appointed by the
Shareholder.

Role

The role of the Nomination Committee
is to review the leadership needs of
the organisation, consider succession
planning, and identify and nominate
Board members.

The Committee discussed and
considered:

— succession planning for Executive
and Non-executive Directors and
for members of the Senior
Leadership Team

— the appointment of Non-executive
Directors to the Boards of the Bank
and British Patient Capital

— areview of membership of the
Board's Committees,

The Sharehclder Relationship
Framework Document provides
that no appointment or removal

of adirector of the company, or
appointment or removal of any such
director to or from an executive
positicn, can be made without the
prior written consent of the
Shareholder, and appropriate consent
to each directorship was obtained
from the Shareholder.

The Board is committed to ensuring
the diversity of its membership.

The Nomination Committee’s duties
include requiarly reviewing the
structure, size and compasition
(inctuding diversity) of the Board

and making recammendations to the
Board about any changes. Before any
appointment is made by the Board,
the Nomination Committee evaluates
the balance of skills, knowledqge,
experience and diversity on the Board,

Signed for and on behalf aof the
Nomination Committee

LA FL A

Lord Smith of Kelvin
{hair of the Nomination Committee
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Other committees

A Board Sub-Committee was
established to discuss the approval
of the Annual Report and Accounts
for the Start Up Loans Company.

The committee previousty formed to
establish the British Patient Capital
subsidiary was wound down during
the year.

The Bank has a number of executive
committees including an Executive
Committee, Investment Committees
and the Product Development
Committee,

The Board, the Board committees,
and the executive committees have
been structured to provide robust
governance. The Board committees
and executive committees each have
terms of reference which set out their
respective duties and responsibilities,
All appointments to the Board, the
Board committees and the executive
committees are based on the diversity
of centribution, experience and
required skilis, irrespective of gender,
race or any atherirrelevant criteria.

Board and committee
attendance

The table on page 61 sets out the
attendance of directors since 1 April
2018 at each Board and committee
meetings.

Board performance

The Bank is committed to ensuring
that the Board and its committees
operate effectively and that they
continually improve. A seif-evaluation
of the Board and its committees,
including the Audit and Risk
committees, was conductedin

May 2019. A report - whichincludes
findings and suggested improvemeants
- has been accepted by the Board and
an action plan has been established
forimplementing key
recommendations during 2019/20.

The review concluded thatthe
Board and its committees operate
effectively.

Conflicts of interest

Each director has a duty under the
Companies Act 2006 to avoid a
situation where they have, ar can
have, adirect orindirect interest that
conflicts, or possibly may conflict,
with the company’s interests. As part

Directors'report

of our Canflicts of Interest Policy, the
Bank has adopted a formal procedure
for the gisclosure, review and
autharisation of directors’ conflicts
of interest, which requires written
disclosure of any actual or potential
conflicts of interest for all directors
and cther colleaques. The procedure
requires directors to notify formally
the Chair or the Company Secretary
as soon as they become aware of any
actual or potential conflicts of interest
with their duties to the Bank, or of
any material change in existing or
potential conflicts that may have
been autherised by the Boara.

The Board believes that cutside
interests can be heneficial for both
the executive and company and Nas
authorised the gutside interest of the
Chief Executive Officerinhisroleasa
Non-executive Director at UK Asset
Resolution and a Trustee of the
Design Council. The Bank has not
made any political donations or
incurred any political expenditure
during the financial year.
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Attendance at meetings

The tahle below sets out the attendance of directors at Board and committee meetings in 2018/19:

Board

Regular Shortnotice Audit Risk Remuneration Nomination
Total number of meetings ] 8 2 5 4 8 5
Lord Smith, Chair 7 8/8 2ie 55
Non-executive Directors
Neeta Atkar 8/8 /2 4/5 4/4
Jonathan Britton 7/8 0/e 5/5 4/4
Caroline Green 5/6 1/2 3/4
(stepped down 18 January 2019)
Piers Linney 8/8 2/2 a/4
Christina McComb 8/8 2/2 4/4 B8/8 5/5
Amanda Rendle 8/8 Q72 a8/8
Ceri Smith o 8/8 0/2 3/4 7/8 5/5
Executive Directors
Keith Morgan 8/8 172
Christopher Fox 8/8 2/2
Patrick Magee 8/8 2/

In addition to scheduled meetings, two additional meatings of the Board were held at short notice to deal with time-critical matters. Some directors

were unable to attend these meetings due to conflicts with existing commitrments,
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Risk management
and internal control

The British Business

Bank plc is committed to
ensuring the best standards
of corporate governance.
The Board of Directors
and Board committees
support it in this mission.

The Board has overall accountability
and responsibility for the
management of risk within the British
Business Bank, Our Risk Management
Framework has been designed to align
to the size, scale and complexity of
the British Business Bank and has
been benchmarked against other
financial services institutions. The
British Business Bank doas not hold
requiatary capital andis not regulated
by the Financial Conduct Authority
{FCA) or the Prudential Requlation
Authority (PRA). However, ane af its
subsidiaries representing less than 1%
of the portfolio, Capital for Enterprise
Fund Management, is regulated by
the FCA for controlling but not holding
client money. We are subject to cther
applicable faws and requlations and
we aim to meet good practice
standards. We have policies and
procedures in place designed to
ensure compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, including anti
money laundering, data protection
and freedom of information, and we
follow best practice where
appropriate and applicable,

To ensure robust and effective
decision making within the Bank,
there are approved terms of reference
for each executive level investment
committee for each subsidiary which
makes investment decisions,

Risk Management Framework

Our Risk Management Framewaork

is a collection of tools, processes

and methodologies that suppert the
British Business Bank in identifying,
assessing, monitoring and controlling
the risks it faces.

The Risk Management Framework:

- demonstrates a clear link to the
overall strategy and business plan
of the British Business Bank

- outlines the risk management
vision and objectives, and the
approach for evolving the risk
management capabhility of the
British Business Bank

- isreviewed on an annual basis and,
if required, more frequently to
reflect any significant material
changes to the business, economic
arrequlztory outlook.

Nate 26 of the financial statements
sets gut a discussion of how the Bank
handles its risks in relation to financial
instruments.

The Risk Management Framewaork is
subject to regular review to assess

its effectiveness within the British
Business Bank. It has been updated
over the past year to reflect the
evolving operating model. This year's
review concluded that the design of
the Risk Management Framewaork
remains appropriate to enable the
Bank to identify, assess, control and
monitor the risk profile against the
Risk Appetite Statement, The findings
of this review were presented to the
Beard Risk Committee in March 2019
and a summary was presented to the
Board. In the absence of any material
changes to the business, economic or
requlatory outlook, the next review of
the Risk Management Framework will
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take place in the fourth quarter
of 2019/20 financial year.

Key elements of our Risk Management
Framework include risk appetite and
risk governance

Risk appetite

The British Business Bank’s Risk
Appetite Policy acts as the link
between overall business stratagy,
the risk strateqgy, and the Risk
Management Framewark, by:

— bringing strategic context
to identified risks

- adoptingclear escalation criteria,
and

— inferming the processes for the
identification, assessment, contral
and monitoring of risk exposures.

The Risk Appetite Policy of the British
Business Bank is based on the high-
levei design principle that risk appetite
represents the level of risk the Board
of the British Business Bank is willing
to accept to deliver its public policy
objectives.

The Board undertook a review of the
British Business Bank's risk appetite
in March 2019 in conjunction with
setting its 2019/20 business plan.

The Risk Appetite Statement
summarises the Board's appetite for
the principal risks that the British
Business Bank is exposed to. [t is tied
to the risk categorisations detailed

in the Risk Management Framework
which outlines seven broad cateqories
of level 1 risks and 31 sub-categories
of level 2 risks, which includes cne
new level 2 risk category added during
the year - modei risk.
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The Risk Appetite Statement;
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_Risk B
Strategicand
business risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

Creditand
investmentrisk

Risk appetite:
Mediurn - High

Market risk

Risk appetite:
Medium

Definition

The (residual) risks of
direct orindirect
financial losses arising
from a sub-optimal
business strategy or
business model and
the risk of failure to
meet internal and/or
public policy
chjectives.

The risk of direct or
indirect financial
iosses on and off-
balance sheet
positions as aresult
of the failure of an
end borrawer or
counterparty ta meet
its obligations in
accordance with
agreed terms.

The risk of direct or
indirect financiai
losses that arise from
fluctuations in values
of, orincome from,
assetsorin
movements in interest
or exchange ratesor
credit spreads.

- Example Categories

Risk that the Bank has an
inadequate governance
structure.

Risk that the Bank’s current
and planned products may
not be fit for purpose.
Risk that the Bank does
not meet its deployment
ar commitment targets,

- Risk that the Bank is not
effective in meeting its
objectives.

— Risk of end borrower default,
for example due to poor
trading, or defectsin the
delivery process.

Whilst the majority of individual

exposures to end borrowers

are small, exposures to mid-cap
compadanies are typically larger.

Delivery partner default or

closure.

— Venture (apital is subject to
vintage risk, with the year the
investment was made being
a significant risk factor.

~ Concentration within one
industry or iocation creates
a portfolio thatis subject to
greaterrisk than a more evenly
balanced one.

The Bank makes material
losses due to foreign
excharnge movements through
its investments,

— The Bank’s investments are
subject tointerestrate
fluctuations,

1

- Example mitigants

Both a clearly defined set

of objectives and a robust
governance model are in place,
New products are subject

1o market assessment and

new product approval process,
Regular review of cur key risks
to objectives by the senior team
and Board members.

Impact cn SMEs and ongoing
commurnication with
stakeholders.

Assessing the risks and mitigants
to meeting our gbjectives during
the business planning process.

Delivery partner selection
processincludes robust due
diligence, assessment of
underwriting and sanctioning
processes, and thereafteris
subject to portfolio monitaring
and reqular review.

The credit quality of exposures
is monitored closely.

The Bank aims to continue to
invest throughout the economic
cycle, therefore minimising the
vintage risk.

The portfoliois monitored closely
for concentration risk.

The Bank has smalf feraign
exchange exposure and does
not hedge this exposure. This is
in line with Government policy.
The Bank conducts scenario
testing of exposures sensitive
tointerest rate market valuation
or foreign exchange mavements.
The Bank requires some delivery
partnersto manage market risk
directly within the terms of the
investment.
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Risk
Operational risk

Risk appetite:
L ow - Medium

Information risk

Risk appetite:
Low

Definition

The risk of direct or
indirect financial
losses resulting from
inadeguate or failed
internal pracesses,
people and systems ar
from external events.

This encompasses any
compromise, malicious
acts or otherwise, to
the information the
Bank handles during
its Creation, storage,
processing, transfer
or disposal (the
information lifecycle).

Example Categories

f

Errors in execution, delivery,
and processing.

Failure of internal controis

OF Processes.

External orinternal frauds.
Damage to physical assets,
utilities disruption or systems
failure.

Risk that Bank does not have,
recruit or retain the right
peaple, with the right culture
and skills, to meet its
objectives.

The risk that the business
takes on too much change er
inadequately manages current
change programmes.

Risk of inaccurate or
incomplete data processed
within operations.

Breach of legal requirements
relating to safe-keeping and
disclosure of information,
Risk of business sensitive
information being leaked or
accidentally made availabie
in the public domain.

Threats of cyber-attacks that
steal sensitive data relating
to the Bank or its delivery
partners as well as disrupt
the Bank's functionality,

Example mitigants

Risk and controf assessments
with functional teams are heid
to assess risks and associated
internal controls,

Operational Incidents
management process in place.
Close liaison with BEIS counter
fraud network and regular
interaction with key business
partners.

Operating model review and
regular employee engagement
including Colleague Forum.
Change function and Change
Beard to manage the growth
of the crganisation.

Implementation of business
infarmation systems and data
governance across the Bank,
including GDPR.

Cyber Essentials accreditation.
Information Risk Management
Framework in place supported
by policies and procedures
cavering information security,
data protection, freedom of
information, information
classification and handling,

{T acceptable use,

Mandatory colleague training
programme covering information
security, cybercrime, data
protection, and freedom of
information.

Information technology systems
disaster recovery testing.



Directors regort

British Business Bank -

Annual Report and Accounts 2019

G5

Risk
Legal and
compliance risk

Risk appetite:
Low

Reputational risk

Risk appetite:
Low - Medium

Definition

Risk of breaching

all applicable UK and
EU law, regulation,
or standards relating
to delivery partners
and products which
exposes the Bank

to fines and penalties
as well as other
associated financial
losses.

The risk that the

firm will actin a way
which falls short

of internal and
external stakeholder
expectations

and cause reputational
damage.

Example Categories

- Failure to adhere to current
emptoyment law.

— Breaches of legal requirements
inrelation to publiclaw or
breach of Government
guidelines appropriate to a
non-departmental public body.

— Riskthatthe Bankis not
compliant with European
Commission State aid rules.

- Therisk that the Bank operates
in breach of applicable UK and
EU laws and reqgulations, or the

Example mitigants

— We keep up ta date with relevant
employment law through internal

and external legal advice and

reflect this in internal HR policies

and procedures,

- New preducts and programmes
are assessed against the UK and
EU regulatory environments.

— The Bank has a suite of policies to

direct governance e.g. Tax Policy,

Procurement How to Buy Guide.
— Regulardialogue with the
Shareholder State aid teams,

law of any other jurisdiction
thatis binding in the UK
Risk that delivery partners
breach legal or requlatory
requirements,

The corporate actions

of the Bank fall short

of the expectations of

our Shareholder and/or
colleagues,

The Bank operates an
outsourcing model which is
subject to delivery partner
caonduct and performance,

— Legal Team review of transaction

structuring.

Bank employees are subject

to a Code of Conduct, annual
Compliance Declaration and
mandatory e-Learning.

The Bank undertakes extensive
due diligence on new delivery
partners and monitors existing
delivery partners and their
performance against contractual
requirements ar Service Level
Agreements.

A reputational risk policy is

in place,

The Bank undertakes extensive
due diligence on new delivery
partners and monitors existing
delivery partners and their
performance against contractual
requirements or service level
agreement (SLA).

The Bank has a robust complaints
policy in place.
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The Bank did an exercise to quantify
the patential downside risks of a
severe downturn against our Business
Plan. This assessed the likely impact
onour portfolioassuming alin
20-year scenario across the various
programmes, and further scenarios
including those based upon Bank of
England guidelines and scenario
analysis based on financial impacts
arising from Market Risk (Foreign
Exchange and Interest Rate risks),

The outcomes were considered
by bath the Board and Board Risk
Committee and the outputs were
shared with the Shareholders.

The three lines of defence model
implemented by the Bank is
outlined below.

Cirectors report

Three lines of defence model

British Business Bank Shareholder

The Board*

CEO/CFO/CCO/CMO

Chief
Executive

Firstline of defence
Product functicns

Management
Contrals

Internal
Controls

British Business Bank
Risk Committee

Second line of defence
Control functions

Financial
Control

Risk &
Compliance

Human

Legal Resources

British Business Bank

Audit Committee

Head of
internal Audit

Third line of defence
Internal audit

Third Party
Assurance

IT & Physical Security

* British Business Bank Board also
acts as a Third Line of Defenceinits
supervision of the First and Second
Line cf Defence

** Senior Information Risk Owner

External Audi
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Risk governance

The British Business Bank risk
governance is based upan a ‘three
lines of defence’ model as outlined

in the Risk Management Framework,

where the;

- firstline of defence is responsible
for the day to day identification,
repcriing and management of
their own risks

- second line of defenceis
responsible for designing risk
policies and methodologies,
monitoring performance and
compliance, identifying and
reporting risks and providing
independent and abjective
challenge to the firstlines
of defence

— third line of defence provides
independent assurance of the
overall system of internal control
including assessment of the risk
governance framework.
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The key principles of this mode,
as illustrated by the above diagram,
are that:

— the Board has cverall accountability
and respansihbility for the
management of risk within
the Bank

- the Board delegates specific risk
management roles and
responsibilities to the Beard Risk
Committee, the Audit Committee,
CEQ, and the CRO

— the CEQis supported in delivery
of these responsitilities through
direct reports from the senior team

- theCROis a member of the senior
team and is also supported by the
Risk and Compliance function in

the delivery of their responsibilities.

The British Business Bank encourages
a strong culture of risk awareness and
transparency through robustrisk
governance, clear accountabilities,
regular intranet updates and in-house
live and computer-based training.

Cur pelicies form anintegral part

of managing risk within the British
Business Bank. We have an
enterprise-wide set of policies,
framewarks and procedures covering
the major parts of our business

in place.

They outline how we wark, taking
regulatory or legal requirements

into account, as well as industry best
practice. Our policies are approved
by the appropriate committees and
communicated to colleagues across
the Bank. Colleagues are also subject
to the British Business Bank Code of
Conduct and arnuai compliance
declarations.

The British Business Bank conducts
its business legitimately and with
integrity. We have developed and
implemented internal systems and
controls to detect, prevent and
respond to fraud, bribery or corruption
which applies to all colleagues within
the British Business Bank and in all our
relationships with third parties and
customers. An anti-fraud, oribery and
corruption palicy is in place which was
reviewed and updated during 2018

to specifically include reference to
bribery and corruption and to ensure it
remains current to relevant legisiative
requirements. The palicy is
communicated to all staff through
intranet updates and computer-based
training which is mandatory far all
colleagues.

Approved by the Board of Directors

L LN AN o om

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer

11 July 2019
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Directors’ remuneration report
Chair's foreword

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to
present the Remuneration Report for
the British Business Bank for the year
ended 31 March 2019. Those sections
of the report that have been audited
by the National Audit Office have been
identified as such.

The Committee’s primary role is

to provide rgbust, independent
gevernance for executive
remuneration, to ensure that reward
for the Bank's executive team:

— supports the Bank's lang-term
business strategy and values

— enables the Bank to recruit,
motivate and retain talented
individuals with appropriate skills
and experience

— links executive reward to the Bank's
performance against its long-term
business plan,

This report is divided into two parts:

1. Policy an Executive Directors’ and
senior management remuneration,

2. Annual repart on remuneration.
This section outlines how the policy
has been applied and includes
details of remuneration far the
Senior team,

During the financial year 2018/18, the
Bank continued to make significant
progress, as cutlined in the Chair's
statement. The Committee has also
played an important role in manitoring
and reviewing a remuneration
framework that reflects the particular
circumstances of the Bank as a public
owned company operating in a
commercial environment, Accordingly,
the Committee has continued with an

incentive scheme that s designed to
reward senior colleagues based on
the long-term sustainable success of
the Bank, Key decisions made by the
Committee and recommended to
the Board during the year were:

- agreeing the annual pay review
for 2019

- overseeing a comprehensive review
of the Bank’s remuneration
strategy

- formulating a set of reward
principles to guide remuneration
policy decisions

- agreeingthe design of a new annual
bonus plan for colleagues at Director
level and below for 2019/20

- reviewing enhancements ta the
Bank's performance management
processes with a view 1o
strengthening the link between
performance and reward

- measuring corperate and individual
performance targets for 2018/19
and the third cycle LTIP

- reviewing the Bank's gender pay
gap report

- reviewingthe approach to setting
personal goals for the Executive
Directors and other members of the
seniar team.

In accordance with the rules of

the Bank's Long-Term Incentive Plan
(LTIP), awards were assessed for
the corporate performance element
of the scheme over the three-year
cycle 2016/17 to 2018/19. Based on
the performance of the Bank against
its Key Performance Indicators and
taking inte account varicus other

considerations, the Committee
concluded an award of 75% of
the maximum was appropriate.
Further details of awards of the
senior executives are set out later
in this report.

The Remuneration Committee has
continued to take an interestin
broader market trends and carried
out benchmarking of salaries and
remuneration in 2018. In the context
of the Bank's policy remit, the
Committee recognises that
remuneration policy will need to

he reviewed on a regular basis

to ensure that it is meeting the
requirements of our Shareholder and
is fit for purpose. Where appropriate,
the Committee will seek relevant
external advice and guidance.

Locking ahead to 2019/20, the
Committee will be reviewing the
business targets for the next period
and setting stretching business and
personal targets for the executive. We
will monitor the impact of the changes
to remuneraticn policies that have
beenintroduced to ensure they drive
the correct outcomes far the business,
and reflect the changing environment
in which the Bank operates.

Finally } would like to thank my
predecessor, Christing McComb for her
robust and suppartive stewardship of
the Committee cver the last five
years,

3 -
s
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Amanda Rendle
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Remuneration policy report

Tabie 1: Remuneration policy

Element

Base salary

Objectiﬁé

Toattract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
Objective

Toreward performance over the
longer term

Operation, opportunity and performa-nce framework

Base szlaries are reviewed annually considering the nature of the role and
responsibilities. Roles are benchmarked against relevant comparator
organisations in the public and private sectors. The Remuneration Committee
also considers the external enviranment and views of the shareholder.

Any Executive Director salary increases in percentage terms will normaliy be
in line with increases awarded to ather colleagues but may be higherin certain
circumstances. The circumstances may include but are not limited to:

— where there has been anincrease in the scope or responsibility of an
Executive Directar's role

- where a salary has fallen significantly below market pasitioning given the
size and scale of the Bank.

The LTIP aperates as & series of three-year cycles. Objectives are set at the
beginning of each cycle and progress is reviewed by the Committee on an
annual basis.

Objectives are setin twe categories; corporate and personal. The weighting
between these cateqgories may be varied over time, at the discretion of the
Committee, considering the requirements of the business and any relevant
external factors. The weighting for the current LTIP cycles is 60% to corperate
targets and 40% to personal targets.

Corpcrate targets cover rolling three-year periods and will generally be inline
with the Bank's business plan objectives. The current targets for the LTIP
awards granted during the year and the threshold levels are set out in the
Annual Report on Remuneration and have no specific weightings. Persanal
targets are designed to consider the specific responsibilities of individual senior
leaders in the Bank,

The currentincentive is a maximum cash award of 50% of base salary. Inthe
case of Executive Directors, awards are paid at the end of the relevant three-
year cycle. Inthe case of other recipients of the LTIP, any awards in respect of
personal objectives may be paid after two years and the corperate element
after three years. There is no annual bonus award for Executive Directors or
the senior team.



70 British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2019

Directors' remuneration report

Tabie 1 continued: Remuneration policy

Elemr-___'nt

Operation, opportunity and performance framework

Long term incentive plan (LTIP) (continued)

Objective
To reward performance over the
longer term

Pension and other benefits
Objective

To provide an attractive and cost-
effective package

Loss of office payments
Objective

To provide fair but not excessive
contract features

New Executive Director remuneration

Objective
To attract and retain high-calibre
senior leaders

Although the Company is not governed by the FCA or PRA, the Committee

has determined that requlatory best practice should be adopted with regard

to Recovery and Withholding Frovisions and such provisions shall apply for &
period of seven years from the start of the performance period. Recovery and
withholding shafl apply in a range of adverse circumstances, at the Committee's
discretion, including financial accounts misstatermnent, significant failure of risk
management, reqgulatory censure or breach of policy and procedures.

As ageneral rule, if a participant ceases employment within the Company’s
Group hefore an award is paid, then the award cpportunity shall normally be
forfeited and lapse in full, although there are exceptions that may be agreed
by the Committee for participants categorised as ‘good leavers'

The Remuneration Cormmittes has ultimate discreticn over the payment of any
awards taking into account factors it considers relevant including the overail
performance of the Bank.

The Bank contributes up to a maximum 15% of base salary to its defined
contrihution scheme or an approved personal pension scheme, subjectto a
minimum colleague contribution of 3%. This benefit is tiered depending on
the grade of the colleague. The CEQ receives a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%.
Any cther colleague below Executive Director level who has reached his or her
pension Lifetime Allowance may alsc receive a cash-in-lieu allowance of 10%.
Current benefits are provided via the ‘mylifestyle’ benefits portal offering child
care vauchers, cycle to work, etc. The Bank alsa provides life insurance and
allows colleagues to buy or sell up to five days' holiday. These are subject to
review on an annual basis tc ensure they remain appropriate in light of the
Bank's public ownership and attractiveness inrelation to the market.

There are no defined terms for loss of office within service contracts. Inline
with palicy, Executive Directors and the senior team are on six months' notice
either side. Provision may be made for payment inlieu of notice, where thisis
deemed to be in the interest of the business. Any situation will be considered
by the Committee on its merits.

Should an individual be considered a ‘good leaver’ under the LTIP rules, an
appropriate portion of their LTIPs may, at the discretion of the Remuneration
Committee, he retained. All termination payments are subject to Cabinet Office
Guidance.

Remuneration for any new appointments will be setin accordance with the
policy set out in this table, The same approach will be taken with respect to
any internal appointments. We do not offer any signing-on paymernts.
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Table 2: Scenarios chart; ranges for Executive Director remuneration

The foliowing chart shows how
executives remuneration could

vary according to performance and
assumes that the Directors are
employed by the Bank for a whole
financial year. The variable pay
element is measured cver a three-
year period and is paid out after

the end of the third year, subject to
personal and corporate performance

conditions and continued employment.

External appointments

Executive Directors may be invited

to become Non-executive Directors in
other companies. These appointments
can enhance their knowledge and
experience to the benefit of the Bank.
Itis the Bank's palicy that Board
appraval is required befare any
external appointment may be
accepted by an Executive Director.
The Executive Director is permitted to
retain any fees paid for such services.
During the year, Keith Morgan served
as a Non-executive Director at UK
Asset Resolution i.td and received
afee of £80,000.

£000
500
400
300
200
100
0

Minimum Target Maximum

Keith Morgan
B Fixcdpay I Veriable pay

Notes

Minimum Target Maximum

Christopher Fox

Mirimum Target Maximum
Patrick Magee

1. Minimum = fixed pay only (salary and current cost of benefits and pension).

2. Target = fixed pay and 75% vesting of the LTIP.

3. Maximum = fixed pay and 100% vesting of the LTIP.

4, The actual awards are setoutintable 5.

Non-executive Directors

The Chair and the Non-executive
Cirectors dc not have service
agreements with the Bank. Non-
executive Directers are appointed
under letters of appointment which
provide for an initial term of service
of three years. The appointment

of a Non-executive Director can be
terminated, by either party, giving
written notice, Any increases in fees
are subject to Shareholder appraoval.
There is no provision for compensation
forloss of office, The dates of the
current dates of appointment of the
Non-executive Directors are shown
in the Directors' report.,

The terms and conditions of
2ppointment of the Nan-executive
Directors are available for inspection
at the Bank's registered office,

The fee levels paid to Non-executive
Directors reflect the time commitment
and respansibilities and are approved
by the Shareholder.

The Board reviews the amount of each
compcnent of the fees on a periadic
basis to assess whether they remain
competitive and appropriate in light of
changes in roles, responsibilities or
time commitment of the Non-
executive Directors. In accordance
with commaon practice Non-executive
Directors are reimbursed expenses
incurred in performing their rcle.

Table 3 zets out the key elements

of the Bank's remuneration policy

for the Chair and other Non-executive
Directors.



77 British Business Bank — Annual Repartand Accounts 2019

Directors remuneration report

Table 3: Remuneration policy for Non-executive Directors

Element
Basic fee - Chair
Remunerationis in the form of an

annual cash fee, in line with practice
inthe UK

Basic fee - Non-executive Directors

Remuneratian is in the form of an
annual cash fee, in fine with practice
in the UK

Bank wide remuneration
and incentive plans

The Bank aims tc apply its
remuneration policy in a consistent
way for all colleagues.

Colleagues recgive their basic salary,
pension contributions, life assurance,
and the option to buy/sell up to five
days’ holiday. In addition, some
employeés receive private medical
insurance znd itllness income
protection, although these benefits
are no langer open for new hires,
The Bank has two mutually exclusive
incentive plans: the LTIP and The
British Business Bank Perfarmance
Bonus Plan (Annual Bonus'), Both
plans are designed to reward
performance and achievement

of the Bank's cbjectives.

Operation, opportunity and performance framework N

The Chair fee will be reviewed from time to time by the Remuneration

Committee.

Non-executive Director remuneration is reviewed annually by the Chair and the
Executive Directors, Any recommendations are subject to Board approval, with
Non-executive Directors not voting an their own remuneration. Additional fees
are paid to the Senior Independent Director and Chairs of the Audit, Risk and
Remuneration Committees, in recognition of the additional time spent in
respect of their committee activities. Thisis inline with UK practice generally.

These plans are payable wholly in
cash, reflecting the fact that the Bank
has a single shareholder (the
Secretary of State for Bisiness,
Energy and Industrial Strategy) and
does notissue shares to colleagues,

Annual bonus

The Annual Bonus provides an
opportunity for eligible colleagues

to be rewarded for their perscnal
contribution during the bonus year,

as well as to participate inthe Bank's
corperate success. All permanent
colleagues who are not eligible for

the LTIP and have worked for at least
three months of the bonus year will be
considered for a bonus under the Plan.

Bonus payments are made up of a
Personal and a Corporate element,
and zre calculated as foliows:

- the personal element reflects
personat cantribution during the
year and isdetermined by the
perfarmance rating agreed as part
of the year-end performance review

— the corporate elementis based
on an assessment by the Board
of the Bank's achievement against
its strategic objectives during
the bonus year. This element
represents arecagnition of the
commitment and effort that
colleagues ccllectively have putinto
delivering the Bank's objectives

- individual award levels are
calculated by reference to salary
and vary according to seniority
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Annual report on remuneration

This part of the report has been prepared in accordance with Part
3 of Schedule 8 of The Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Amendment Regulations 2013.

Disclosures are also made in
accordance with the Companies Act
Z006. The Bank has complied with
the regulations where it believes
itis appropriate to do so.

Although the Bank is not subject
to the variable pay cap introduced
under the European Union Capital
Reguirements Directive, it does
comply with the cap.

Performance assessment

The third cycle LTIP matured on

31 March 2019, covering the period
2016/17 to 2018/19, and awards are
payable In August 2019, Awards under
the scheme are based cn both
corporate performance (making up
60% of the total potential award) and
personal performance {making up
409 of the tota! potential award).

Considering the performance against
KPls (as shown in table 4 overleaf)
and other considerations, the
Remuneration Committee has
determined that a corparate
performance pay-out of 75% is
appropriate which is on target for
Corporate Performance.,

Membership of the
Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee
comprises Amanda Rendle, Christina
McComb and Ceri Smith (representing
the Shareholder}, Amanda Rendle took
over from Christina McComb as Chair of
the Committee onljanuary 2019, The
Ccmmittee members bring with them
arange of expertise from diverse
backgrounds designed bath to suppart
the Bankinits governance framewaork
and to facilitate the relationship with
the Sharehaclder. Informal discussion
between Commitiee members and

the executive has also added value

to the Bank’s Remuneration policy

and practice. Only members of the
committee and the chair of the

board have the right to attend
committee meetings.

The Chief Executive, Chief Financizal
Officer, Generai Counsel and Company
Secretary. and Human Resources
Managing Director have been invited
to join meetings, but not where their
own remuneration is the subject of
discussion. The Company Secretary
or her delegate acts as Secretary

to the Committee.

External advisers

The Remuneration Committee

used advisers during the year for

the provision of remuneration advice.
During the year Mercer provided
advice to the Committee on
remuneration structures in British
Patient Capital for a fee of £22,500.
Aon MclLagan provided benchmarking
data for fees of £46,300. Neither of
these advisors have any connection
with the Bank.
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Table 4: KPI targets and actual outcomes (Third cycle LTIP corporate performance)

Objective KPl Actual Targets
Lower
Threshold Stretch Challenge
Increase supply Up to £10bn stock of finance facilitated
through our programmes over 5 years £13.9bn £7.6bn £9.5bn £11.4bn
- of which SME £6.60n £5.4bn £6.8bn £7.5bn
Mare diverse Over 50% of cur finance facilitated through
finance market providers cther than the four largest banks
over 5 years 92% 81% 86% 91%
Better provision Balanced scarecard measure, showing an
of information average of green across each year in the Amber/
plan (scare i brackets) Green (5) Green {2) Green(4) Green (6)

Manage taxpayers Tc earn greater than the Government's
resources efficiently medium term cost of capital over the next
5 years measured by the S year gilt rate
at the beginning of the plarn 36% 2.3% 2.9% 3.2%

1. The 'Better provision of information’ objective is assessed annually against measures on a balanced scorecard, and a RAG status of Red, Amber
or Green is assigned to each measure and the overall outcome. The scores in brackets after the ‘Lower Threshold’, ‘Stretch’ and ‘Challenge’ targets
represent the scores out of a maximum possible score of 8. The outcome shown in the ‘Actual columnis the average RAG status and score for the
three years of the third cycle LTIP.

2. Inreachingits decision on the overall Corporate Performance outcame for the third cycle LTIP, the Remuneration Committee also considered
aspects of the Bank's performance during the cycle that are not reflected in the outcomes against the KPl targets,
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The 2016/17 and 2017/18 years’
performance are used to determine
the personal element of the third
cycle LTIP. The personal performance
of the Executive Directors, as
confirmed by the Remuneration
Committee, is set out below fereach
of these years.

Keith Morgan

For 2016/17 the Committee assessed
Keith's personal performance as
on-target and awarded 75% of the
maximum for 2016/17. For 2017/18
the Committee assessed personal
performance as ahead of target and
awarded 90%,
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Christopher Fox

n 2016/17 the Commitiee concluded
that Christopher’s personal
performance was on-target and
awarded 75%. For 2017/18 the
Committee assessed personal
performance as ahead of target and
awarded 80%.

Patrick Magee

For both 2016/17 and 2017/18

the Committee assessed Patrick’s
personal performance as on-target
and awarded 75%.

Table 5: LTIP awards made to Executive Directors

Keith Morgan !

Max amount: £000

Poiential Performance

Award

£000

Personal performance Y1 299
Personal performance Y2 289
Corporate performance 89.7
Total Award 1495

Christopher Fox

148.5 105.0

Actual | Potential Performance

Awarded Award Award Awarded
£000 ; £000

75% 2cé 21.0 75%

90% 2685 210 80%

75% 6731 630 75%
1166, 1050

Actual ‘
Award

£000

158 |

168

473

/9.8

Patrick Magee

105.0

Potential Performante

Award
£000

21.0
21.0
63.0
1050

Awarded

5%
75%
75%

Actual
Award
£000

158
158
47.3
789
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Table 6: Executive Director remuneration {audited)

Year ended 31 March 2019
Pension
Payments
(including
Taxable Annual Long term cash
Salary Benefits Incentive incentive supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Keith Morgan 299.0 00 00 1166 299 4455
Christopher Fox 2244 0.7 0.0 79.8 C.0 304.9
Patrick Magee 2100 0.7 0.0 788 21.0 3104
Total B 733.4 1.4 0.0 275.2 509 1,060.8
7 “ 7 Year ehded 31 March 2018
Pension
Payments
Taxable Annual Longterm (includingcash
Salary Benefits Incentive incentive supplements) Total
COo00 L000 £000 £000 £000N £000
Keith Morgan 299.0 0.0 00 118.1 299 447.0
Christopher Fox 27244 0.4 a.0 85.1 0.0 3099
Patrick Magee 210.0 0.4 0.0 82.0 21.0 3134
Total 733.4 0.8 o 0.0 _ 285.2 ) 50.9 1,070.2
Notes

1. TheCompany has not made pension contributions for Keith Morgan but has instead paid a cash alternative to him.
2. The Executive Directors receive death in service and iliness income protection benefits which are non-taxable
3. No Executive Director received annual incentive payments in 2018/19. The long-termincentive payments relate to the three-year period ending

31 March 2019 and are payable in August 2019,

Table 9 sets out the corporate three-year performance targets for the Executive Directors, which have na specific
weightings, for the fifth LTIP cycle.

Non-executive Directers are not remunerated in the same way as the Executive Directors and therefore have not been
included inthe table abave. However, they do receive compensation in the form of a fee as detailed in Table 10.
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Table 7: Senior team remuneration (audited)

Year ended 31 March 2019
Pension
Corporate Personal Payments
element of element of (including
Taxabfe Annual third cycle fourth cycle cash
Salary Benefits Incentive LTip LTIP supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 EOQOQ
Shanika Amarasekara 2i06 0.7 0.0 455 319 316 320.3
Mark Gray 1893 Q.6 Q.0 44.0 22.1 27.8 2838
Andrew Grant 86.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 C.0 134 103.2
Catherine Lewis
La Torre 237.0 0.7 0.0 406 37.4 23.7 339.4
Total 726.4 2.3 0.0 1301 914 965  1,046.7
- Year ended 31 March éOlB
Pension
Corporate Personal Payments
element of element of (including
Taxabie Annual second cycle third cycle cash
Salary Benefits Incentive LTIP LTIP supplements) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Shanika Amarasekara 205.9 0.4 0.0 48.0 32.3 309 3175
Mark Gray 2058 0.4 0.c 480 23.2 30.9 308.4
Andrew Grant 122.5 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 184 141.2
Catherine Lewis
La Torre 214.0 0.4 0.C 0.0 28.0 2l4 263.8
Eal_ 748.3 1.5 - 0.0 B 96.0 83.5 ”7101_.5 1,030.9
Notes

1. Theindividuals above receive death in service and iliness income protection benefits which are non-taxable.

2. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed performance of individuats for 2018/19 and, for those eligible foran LTIP award, has made provisional
awards inthe range of 75%-85% for the senior team, (2017/18; 40% - 30%) subject to continued employment, these awards are payablein
August 2020,

3, Andrew Grant ceased to be an employee of the Bank with effect from 31 August 2018 at which point all unvested LTIP awards lapsed.

4. Mark Gray ceased to be an employee of the Bank with effect from 24 February 2019, and was granted ‘good leaver’ status inrespect of his unvested
LTIP awards, subject to a pro-rata reduction in award value,
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This section of the annual repart on remuneration sets out the LTIP granits made during the year and which will vest
in March 2C21 subiect to meeting the performance conditions.

The senior team are invited to participate in a long-term incantive plan. The following individuals have elected to join
the plan and have been granted interests during 2018/19 worth up to a maximum of 50% of saiary. Any pay-outis
subject to a number cf conditions, including performance conditions.

Table 8: Fifth cycle long term incentive plan (LTIP)

7Year ended 31 March 2319
Percentage
of corporate
Totalface  Totalface Total face award for End of
value value of vaiue of Total reaching corporate
Type of of award personal corporate face value threshold performance
interest (% of salaryj award award of award targets period
Keith Morgan Cash LTIP 50% 59.8 ' 89.7 1495 50% 31 March 2021
Christopher Fox Cash LTIP 50% 449 67.3 112.2 50% 31 March 2021
Patrick Magee Cash LTIP 50% 420 63.0 105.0 50% 31 March 2071
Shanika Amarasekara CashLTIP 50% 421 63.2 105.3 50% 31iMarch 2021
Mark Gray Cash LTIP 50% 41.2 61.8 1030 500 31 March 2021
Catherine Lewis
La Tarre Cash LTIP 50% 43.8 65.7 1095 50% 31 March 2021
Notes

1. Personsl performance targets are not included in this table as they are not subject to threshaold conditions.
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Table 9: Group targets for the fifth cycle (March 2021)

Objegtive
Increase supply

More diverse
finance market

Better provision
cf information

Manage
taxpayers’
resources
efficiently
Centre of
Expertise

Regional

Key Performance Indicator )
Value (£bn} of stock of finance supported through
the Bank's programmes by end March 2071.
% of finance supported through smaller praviders
{non-'Big 5'banks) by end March 2021.
Balanced scaracard measure, showing an average
of Green across each year in the plan. Each year
to be measured against the feoliowing five elaments;
a) Effectiveness of building awareness of the Bank
b} Measures relating to the use of the Business
Finance Guide
C) Measures Relating to the use of the Finance Hub
d) Measures relating to the regional manager network
e) Impacton SME population's awareness and behaviour
Adjusted return on capital employed (excluding temporary
fairvalue discounts) by end March 2071.

To be measured through a combination of quantitative
and qualitative measures;
a) Asurvey of the Bank's reputation as a Centre
of Excellence on small business with relevant
stakeholders.
by Arepart describing the Bank's relevant deliverables
in this area.
Performance over 2018/19 will be measured against
a qualitative report provided by the Executive, For
2018/20, this will be supplemented by regional
commitment flow data and delivery of a set number
of initiatives. In 2020/21, this may be further
supplemented by survey results.

LuWer
threshaold Stretch Challenge
£6.5bn £8.7bn £5.6bn
B7% 92% 96%

Amber/ Green (3) Creen (4)
Green (2)

2.0% 24% 3.0%

Perfarmance against these KPIs wili
be assessed by the Remuneration
Committee at the end of each financial
year and aggregated over the three
years to give an overall score

1. The ‘Better provision of information’ objective is assessed annually against measures on a balanced scorecard, and aRAG status of Red, Amber
or Greenis assigned to each measure and the overall outcome, The scores in brackets after the 'Lower Threshold, ‘Stretch’and 'Chalienge’ targets
represent the scores out of a maximum possible scare of 5,
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Tabie 10: Non-executive Director remuneration (audited)

Total Fees Total Fees

2018719 2017/189

£000 £000

Lord Smith (Chair) 126G B9
Christina McComb (senior independent directer) 44 B5
Jonathan Britton 30 30
Teresa Graham 0 B
Caroline Green 20 23
Colin Glass 0] 6
Neeta Atkar 30 30
Piers Linney 2h a8
Amanda Rendle e 8
CeriSmith nil il

Notes

1. Lord Smith was appointed Chairman of the Boardon 5 July 2017

2. Christina McComb was appointed as interim chair from 1 Qctober 2016 until 4 July 2017 and her fee increased to L120k per annum, pro-rated as
appropriate.

3. Teresa Graham acted as interim Chair of the Remuneration Committea in place of Christing McComb. She received an additional pro-rated fee of £5k
per annum whilst she was chairfrig a Board committee.

Injune 2017 the three-year terms of Colin Glass, Teresa Graham and Caroline Green ended.

Carpline Green was re-appointed to the Board on 20 July 2017,

Piers Linney and Amanda Rendle were appointed to the Board on 7 December 2017

Ceri Smithis the shareholder representative and therefore does notreceive afee.

Amanda Rendle replaced Christine McComb as Chair of the Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 January 2019.

[ ENT VRS

The base fee for Nan-executive Directorsis £25,000 and the base fee for the Senior Independent Director is £40,000.
hdividuals receive an allowance of £5,000 for chairing a committee. There are no additional fees payable for individual
committee membership.
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Relative importance of spend on pay
No dividends have been paid by the Bank, so we have set out below the percentage of revenue represented by total
remuneration compared to 2017/18 toillustrate the relative importance of spend on pay.

Total révenue (Ef)OO) Total remuneration (E000) 7 ' %
2018/19 106.424 27,765 26%
2017/18 96,931 23,550 249%

1. Asaresult of the transition to IFRS 9 inthe year ending 31 March 2018 and to ensure a comparable basis, the 2017/18 revenue number has been

amended to Net Operating Income (previously Gross Operating Income).

Changes in CEQ/colleague pay and
median comparison

The median salary of colleagues for
2018719 was £50,000 (201//18:
£58,000). This compares to the (EO's
arnual base salary of £299,000. No
colieague earns more than the
highest paid Director.

The CEO did not receive a salary
increase during the 2017/18 or
2018/19 performance year. A 2.3%
general pay increase was awarded to
colleagues below Executive Director
inthe 2018719 performance year
(awarded 1 April 2018). Colleagues
of SULCo, who are subject to Civil
Service Pay GQuidance, received a
general pay increase of 1.5%,
backdated to 1 Aprii 2018. The
2019/20 pay increase pot for all
tolleagues {excluding SULCO) below
Executive Director level has been
agreed as 3.68%.

Pension entitlements

All colleagues are entitled to
participate in a defined contribution
pension scheme. The Bank does not
otfer a defined benefit pension
scheme,

Keith Morgan raceives a cash
allowance of 10% of base salary
in liew of pension contribution.

Board of Directors terms of
office

The dates of appointment and terms
of office of Nan-executive and
Executive Directors are provided in
the Directors'Report, page 49,
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Implementation of the
remuneration policy for
2019/20

The Bank’s long-term priorities

are explained above in the ‘Future
Developments’ section of the
Strategic Report. Our remuneration
pclicy must drive the actions and
behaviours by colleagues that are
necessary for the successful delivery
of these strateqic goals. At the same
time, it needs to be flexible encugh to
respond to future developments in
the Bank's programme of activity.

For 2019/20, the Remuneration
Committee has agreed several
changes to remuneratian palicy for
colleagues below Board level,
incCluding the introduction of a new
annyal bonus plan, enhancements to

performance management processes,

and the withdrawal of bonus deferral
for colleagues who are not part of the
senior team. In addition, all senicr
colleagues are set objectives for

effective risk management, rigorous
cost management, driving operational
efficiency and pecple leadership.
We will continue to monitar our
approach to remuneration against
our strategic priorities, toensure it
remains fit-for-purpose. Where we
identify cppartunities to improve,
the British Business Bank will seek
approval from the Sharehalder for
any changes tc the palicy.

Approval of the Directors
Remuneration Report

This Directors’ Remuneration Report,
including both the Policy and Annual
Remuneration Report, has been
approved by the Board of Directors,

Signed on behalf of the Board of
Directors
s )

7 et lee

Amanda Rendle
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Directors' remuneration report
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Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are
responsible for preparing
the Annual Report and the
financial statementsin
accordance with applicable
law and regulations,

In accardance with UK company law,
the directors have elected to prepare
both the Group financial statements
and the parent company financial
statements under international
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union.

Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true anc fair view of
the state of affairs of the company
and group and of the profit orloss of
the company and group for that
period. In preparing these financial
statements, the Companies Act 2006
requires that directors;

— properly selectand apply
accounting policies

- présentinformation, including
accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable
information

- provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS
are insufficient to enable users to
understand the impact of particular
transactions, other events and
canditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance

- make an assessment of the
company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.,

The directors are responsiple for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and
disclose, withreasonable accuracy at
any time, the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 2006. They
are alsoresponsible for safequarding
the assets of the company and hence
fortaking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud
and other irreqularities.

The directors are responsible for the
maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information
included on the company's website.
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other
jurisdictions,

We confirm that to the best of our
knowledge:

— thefinancial statements, prepared
in accordance with IFRS as adopted
by the EU, give a true and fair view
of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or foss of the
company and the undertakings
included in the consolidation
taken as a whole

- the strategic report includes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
the position of the company and
the undertakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties
that they face

~ the annual report and financial
statements, taken as awhale, are
fair, balanced and understandahie
and provide the information
necessary for sharenolders to
assess the company’s performance,
business model and strategy.

By order of the Board

LS AN

Keith Margan
Chief Executive Officer

11 July 2019

v

Christopher Fox
Chief Financial Officer

11July 2019
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Independent auditor's report

Independent auditor's report
to the members of British
Business Bank plc

Opinion on financial
statements

| have audited the financial
statements of British Business Bank
plec Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 which comprise:

the Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Net Income;

the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position;

the Consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity;

the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement; and

Conclusions relating to
principal risks, going concern
and viability statement

I have nothing to report in respect

of the following informationin the
annual report, in relation to which the
ISAS (UK) reguire me to report to you
whether | have anything material to
add or draw attention to:

- thedisclosures in the annual report
that describe the principal risks and
explain how they are being
managed or mitigated;

- thedirectors confirmation in the
annual report that they have

- thedirectors’ explanationin the

annual report as to how they have
assessed the prospects of the
greup, over what period they have
done so and why they consider that
period to be appropriate, and their
statement as to whether they have
areasonable expectation that the
group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any related
disclosures drawing attention to
any necessary gualifications or
assumptions.

carried out a robust assessment of Basis of opinions

the principal risks facing the group,
including those that would

threaten its business model, fiture
performance, solvency or liquidity;

— therelated notes, including the

oz . et I conductad my audit in accordance
significant accounting policies.

with International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My
respansibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my
repcrt. Those standards require me
and my staff to comply with the
Financial Reporting Council's Revised
Ethical Standard 2016. | am
independent of the British Business
Bank plc Group in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are
relevant to my audit and the financial
statements in the UK. My staff and

I have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements, | believe that
the audit evidence | have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

The financial reparting framework
that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and - thedirectors statement in the
International Financial Reporting financial statements about
Standards as adopted by the European whether the directors considered it
Union and as apolied in accordance appropriate to adopt the going
with the provisions of the Companies concern basis of accounting in

Act 2006, preparing the financial statements
and the directors’ identification of
any material uncertainties to the
group’s ability to continue to do so
over a pericd cf at least twelva
months from the date of approval
of the financial statements; or

In my opinion the financial
statements:

— give a true and fair view of the
state of the group's affairs as at
31 March 2018 and of the group's
profit for the year then ended;

— have been properly preparedin
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the Eurcpean Union,
and

— have been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006.
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Overview of my audit approach

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters
that, in my professiona! judgment,
were of most significance in my audit
of the firancial statements of the
current period and include the mast
significant assessed risks of material
misstatement (whether or not due
to fraud) that lidentified.

| consider the following areas of
particular audit focus to be those
areas that had the greatest effect

on my overall audit strategy, the
allocation of resources in my audit and
directing the efforts of the audit team
in the current year. These matters
were addressed in the context of

my audit of the financial statements
as awhole, and in forming my opinion
thereon, and | do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

This is net acomplete list of all risks
identified by my audit but only those
areas that had the greatest effecton
my overall audit strategy, allocation
of resources and direction of effort.

I have notincluded information relating
to the work Lhave perfarmed around
management override of controls,
other than to the extent where this
was part of my werk on the
application of IFRS 9 and fair value
measurement of financial assets

as set out below; fraudin revenue
recognition, with specific regard to
investment income; or the transfer
of financial information foliowing the
implementation of & new finance
system, where my work has not
identified any matters to report.
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The areas of focus were discussed
with the Audit Committee; their report
on matters that they considered to be
significant to the financial statements
is set out on pages 56-57,

In this year's report the following
changes to the key audit matters
identified have been made compared
tc my prior year report:

— Ihave not identified a key audit
matter around the Start-Up Loans
Company (SulCa) joining the British
Business Bank plc Group, as SulCo
joined the British Business Bank plc
Group in the previous year,

- The significant risk surrounding
the implementation of a new
finance system related to the
accurate transfer of financial
information to the new system
and I do not consider this to be
a key audit matter.

- IFRS 9, adopted by the British
Business Bank plc Group from
1 April 2018, introduces significant
new requirements surrounding
the classification of financial
instruments; and requires complex
considerations and a high level of
management judgement on the
measurement of the expected
credit loss allowances for financial
instruments held at amortised cost,
This has been included as a key
audit matter below.

85
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Application of IFRS 9

Description of key audit matter

British Business Bank plc Group was required to
adopt (FRS 9 fraom 1 April 2018. Key changes
introduced by the standard include a new
approach for classification and measurement
of financial assets and a new approach to
measuring impairment for those assets not
measured at fair value through profit or loss,
Impairment, or Expected Credit Loss (ECL),
under IFRS 3 reflects a probability weighted
amount determined by evaluating a range of
possibie outcomes and includes consideration
of forecasts of future economic conditions.

The measurement of ECLs is a highly subjective
area due to the level of judgement involvement
in determining assumptions used in the
accounting estimate and as such is a key area
of focus and significant risk of material
misstatement for the audit.

Following adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 April 2018,
British Business Bank plc Group investments
that meeTt the Business Madel and cuirth aciual
cash flow criteria of the standard are measured
at amortised cost. Therefore, a loss allowance
based on 12 month expected credit losses is
recognised with movements recognisedin
profit or loss,

British Business Bank plc Group's ECL models
have been developed and built by an
independent specialist analytics and risk
management firm. British Business Bank plc
Group use the model to calculate the
impairment provisions each quarter using
underlying !can and investment data and
assumptions.

British Business Bank plc Group determine
there to be a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition when accounts are
more than 30 days pastdue Asaresult, a
lifetime ECL is recognised against such assets
inaccordance with IFRS S.

The impairment aliowance on adoption of IFRS
9en 1 April 2018 was £68m compared ta £42m
under 1AS 39, The increase was as a result of
applying the IFRS 9 requirements to recognise
expected credit losses rather thanincurred
losses under 1AS 39,

The impairment allowance at 31 March 2019 is
£81m. The increase is primarily due tc the
increase in the overall balance for investments
held at amortised cost, which is reflective of
the ongoing growth of the business.

How the scope of my audit responded to the risk

| have understood and evaluated the design and implementation of
key contrals mitigating this risk, including the governance framewaork
in place to oversee the development, approval and continuous
monitoring of the assumptions, models and processes surrounding
the implementation of IFRS 9.

[ reviewed British Business Bank pic Group's detailed IFRS 9 accounting
policies to confirm that these are consistent with the requirements
of the accounting standards.

| also perfermed the following procedures:

- lobtained assurance over the completeness and accuracy of the
input data usedin the ECL madels by testing a sample cf loan
balances and verifying investment data against underlying
contractual documentation and other infarmation,

- | reviewed the reasonableness of key assumptions, including
agreement of economic assumptions to relevant publicly available
information and to the scenarios provided by British Business Bank
plc Group's independent risk specialists. | assessed the specialists as
management’s experts under ISA 500 using economics specialist
members of my team.

— lassessed the design of the ECL models and assessed management's
rationale for the assumptions and methods used to confirm that
these would produce estimates which are appropriate to the
underlying financial instruments and compliant with the
requirements of IFRS 9.

- lreviewed the sensitivity analysis undertaken by management
toidentify the most sensitive assumpticns used in the model to
focus our testing, and to evaluate how management had addressed
estimation uncertainty in making the accounting estimate. | evaluated
the reasonableness of those assumptions and perfermed additionai
sensitivity analysis,

— lobtained assurance over the ECL models through assessment of
the independent specialists that developed and operate the model
as management's experts under ISA 500 using modelling specialist
members of my team.

AsIFRS 9 was adopted on 1 April 2018, | performed audit procedures
to obtain assurance on the transition adjustments from {AS 39. This
included assessing the ciassification and measurement of financial
assets, considering key definitions and interpretations adopted by
British Business Bank plc Group and testing the adjustments and
disclosures made on transition,

Key observations

Based on the evidence | obtained | found that the classification of
assets was in line with the requirements of IFRS 9.1 found that the
methodology, input data and assumptions used to calculate the ECLs
were supported by appropriate evidence and in line with the
requirements of IFRS 9.

Independent auditor's repart
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Fair value measurement of financial assets

Description of key audit matter

The most significant balance in the financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc
Group isinvestments, The majority of these
investments are measured at fair value based
on valuation techniques including inputs not
based anobservable market data. The
investments are held in the significant
components British Business Finance Limited
(BBFL), British Business Investments Limited
(BB, British Patient Capital Limited {(BPC) and
the Start-up Loans Company {SulCo.

The valuation of Enterprise Capital Fund (ECF)
investments held in BBFL are determined by
management using models, based on inputs
and assumptions, and are therefore subject
t0 a degree of management judgement

and estimate,

The investments held in BBl and BPC are in
funds valued by fund managers who are
independent of management sc the level of
management judgement or estimate is limited.
The greatest level of estimation uncertainty
for these funds is within the equity investment
funds in the Venture/Growth and UKIF
programmes which are vaiued at £327m, which
is approximately 19% of the investmenis held
by the group.

The investments held in SulCe are loans to
entrepreneurs provided on non-commercial
terms and losses of 30% to 40% are expecied
across the scheme. Asrequired by IFRS 9, SulCo
recognises its loans at fair value oninception
and subseguently measures these at amortised
cost. The level of write down required to
account for these non-commercial terms is
highly material and is subject to a significant
estimate based on management’s judgement,
whichis derived from a number of non-
observable inputs. in the current year, SulCo
has improved their estimate by including more
granular, loan level data in the underlying modei
that calculates the fair value at inception for
these [0ans. This has resulted in an overall
increase of £28.2min the fairvalue adjustment
on initial recognition as at 31 March 2018 for
these j0ans, as compared to the previous model.

How the scope of my audit responded to the risk

In auditing the financial asset valuations i have performed the following
procedures;

- Ihave tested the operating effectiveness of the controls applied
by British Business Bank plc Group over the valuation processes for
financial assets, This included attendance at key internal meetings
where | observed management's review and challenge of valuations
provided by fund managers. Where valuations are produced through
models, | have tested the design and implementation of controls
over the fair value model used.

- Where management reites on valuations provided by fund managers
to estimate the value of its investments, | have considered the
governance arrangements in place and process undertaken by
meanagement to review and challenge the valuations prior to their
inclusion in the accounts. | have performed detailed procedures to
enable me to gain assurance from the work of the fund managers.
This has included comparison of the most recent audited accounts
of the fund against the fund manager valuation report for the same
period and consideration of additional evidence where the
accounting period of the fund and British Business Bank pic Group
are not coterminous. | considered the overall competence, capability
and objectivity of the fund managers, as well as the scope of their
work and its relevance to the accounts and my opinion.

- Where management uses models to estimate the value of its loans
and investments, | considered the design of the valuation models, the
validity of the data inputs to those models, end the appropriateness
of the key assumptions on which the models were based. For the
ECF valuation model | scught confirmation that management had
reassessed the assumptions made in the prior year which underpin
the valuation model to confirm that they remain appropriate at year
end and challenged management on how it has addressed estimation
uncertainty. For the SulCo model lused auditors’ experts to support
my assessment of the key assumptions used, and obtained assurance
over the completeness and accuracy of theinput data used in the
model by testing a sampfe of loan balances.

- Ihave assessed the accuracy and completeness of the review for
potential impairments that management has performed in relation
toitsloans and investments.

- Ihave undertaken a review of a sample of ioans and investments
and considered whether management’s judgements an appropriate
accounting treatments are consistent with the refevant accounting
standards and the underlying substance and form of legal
agreements,

Key observations
Based on the evidence | chtained | found that the valuations provided
by fund managers were reliable IFRS 13 compliant values,

Where the fair values are outputs from models | found that these
outputs were in line with the requirements of IFRS 13,
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Application of materiality

| applied the concept of materiality

in both planning and performing my
audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements on my audit and on the
financial statements. This approach
recognises that financial statements
are rarely absolutely correct, and that
an audit is designed to provide
reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial
statements are free fram material
misstatement. A matter is material if
its omission cr misstatement would,
in the judgement of the auditor,
reasonably influence the decisions

af users of the financial statements.

Based on my professional judgement,
| determined overall materiality for
the group’s financial statements at
£24.1m, which is approximately 1% of
total assets, British Business Bank plc
Group develops and manages finance
programmes designed to enhance
the working of finance markets which
it delivers through investmentsin
partner organisations. | therefore
chose assets as the benchmark
because | consider it to he the
principal consideration for users in
assessing the financial performance
of the Group. | determined that this
was mare appropriate than using
revenue or net profit as a benchmark
as these are not the main drivers

of the decision making within the
business. | have reduced my
materiality threshold from 2% of
assets in the prior year tareflect

the emerging practice in the sector.

As well as guantitative materiality
there are certain matters that, by
their very nature, would if not
corrected influence the decisions of
users, Assessment of such matters
would need to have regard to the
nature of the misstatementand
the applicable legal and reporting
framework, as well as the size of
the misstatement.

lagreed with the Audit Committee
that I would report to it all uncorrected
misstatements identified through my
audit in excess of £300,000, as well

as differences below this threshold
that in my view warranted reporting
on gqualitative grounds.

Total unadjusted audit differences
reported to the Audit Committee
have increased net assets by £2.0m,

Independent auditor's report

Responsibilities of the
Directors for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the
Directors' Respensibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for:

— the preparation of the group
financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and
fair view;

- suchinternal control as
management determines is
necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements
that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud orerror;

— assessing the group's ability 1o
continue as agoing concern,
disclosing, if applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using
the gaing concarn basis of
accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the group
or fo cease operations, ar have no
realistic alternative but to do sc.



Independent auditor's report

Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial
statements

My responsibility is to audit and
express anopinion on the financial
statementsin accordance with
applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (JSAs) (UK).

An auditinvolves obtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from
material misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error. Reascnable assurance
is a high level of assurance, butis nota
guarantee that an audit conductedin
accordance with ISAs {UK) will always
detect amaterfal misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise

from fraud or error and are considered
material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of anaudit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), | exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit, | also:

— identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether
due to fraud or errar, design and
perform audit procedures
responsive to thoserisks, and
obtain audit evidence thatis
sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis far my apinion,

The risk of nct detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations,

ar the override of internal contral.
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obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are
appropriatein the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of
expressing en opinion on the
effectiveness of the British
Business Bank pic Group's internal
control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the
financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying
transactions and events ina manner
that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit
evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or
business activities within the group
to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements.
| am responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of
the group audit. | remain solely
responsible for my audit opinion,

| communicate with those charged
with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal
control that lidentify during my audit.

[ also provide those charged with
governance with a statement that

| have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding
independence, end to communicate
with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence,
andwhere applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated
with those charged with governance,
| determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. | describe these
matters in my auditor's report unless
law or regulation precludes public
disclosure ahout the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances,

[ determine that a matter should not be
communicated inmy repcrt because
the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
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Audit scope

The scope of my audit of the
British Business Bank plc Group
was determined by obtaining an
understanding of the group and its
gnvircnment, including group-wide
controls, and assessing the risks
of material misstatement at the
group level,

The group comprises British Business
Bank plc, BBB Patient Capital Holdings
Limited, British Business Financial
Services Limited, British Business
Finance Limited and the subsidiaries
of these companies; British Business
Investments Limited, British Patient
Capital Limited, The Start-Up Loans
Company, British Business Aspire
Holdco Limited, Capital for Enterprise
Limited, Capital for Enterprise Fund
Managers Limited and Capital for
Enterprise (GP) Limited. The group
financial statements are a
consolidation of these companies,

lidentified the following as significant
components of the group: British
Business Bank plc, British Business
Investments Limited, British Patient
Capital Limited, British Business
Finance Limited and Start-Up Loans
Company (a subsidiary of British
Business Finance Limited), British
Business Investments Limited and
British Patient Capital Limited require
statutory audits and the work in this
respectis carried out separately.

The work onthe cther significant
components is performed by the
group audit engagement team.

This work, together with additional
procedures performed on balances
arising as & result of the group’s
consolidation process, gave me the
evidence | needed for my opinion on
the group financial statements as a
whale. The significant components
of the group account for over 88% of
the group's assets. Together with the
procedures performed at group level
this gave me the evidence I needed
for my opinion on the group financizal
statements as a whole.

Gross assets of individual
components of the British
Business Bank plc group
(as at 31 March 2019)

1%

Bsespc s B erC i BBFL
M SulCo & Non-significant components

Independent auditor's report

Other Information

Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information
comprises information included in the
annual report, but does notinclude
the parts of the Directors’
Remuneration Report described in
that report as having been audited,
the financial statements and my
auditor’s report thereon. My apinicn
on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and | do
not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection
with my audit of the financial
statements, my responsibility is to
read the otherinformation and, in
doing so, cansider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements ar my
knowledge obtained in the gudit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have
performed, | conciude that thereisa
material misstatemeant of this other
information, I am required to report
that fact. | have nothing to reportin
this regard.
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I am specifically required to address
the following items and to report
uncorrected material misstatements
in the otherinformation, where |
conclude that those items meet the
following conditions:

- Fair, balanced and understandable:
the statement given by the
directors that the annual report
and accounts taken as a whole are
fair, balanced and understandable
and provide the necessary
information to enable users to
assess the entity’s performance,
business model and strategy, is
materially inconsistent with my
knowledge obtained in the audit; or

— Audit Committee reporting: the
section describing the work of the
Audit Committee does not
appropriately address matters
communicated by me to the Audit
Committee.

Falso have nothing to reportin this
regard.

Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act

The strategic and directors’ reports
In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit,
the informaticn given in the Strategic
Report and Directors’ Report for the
financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent
with the financial statements and
thosereports have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal
requirements,
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In light of the knowledge and
understanding of the group andits
environment obtained in the course

of the audit, | have not identified any
material misstatementsin the Strategic
Report or the Directors' Report,

The corporate governance
statement

In my opinion, based on the work
undertaken in the course of the audit;

- theinformationgivenin the
corporate governance statement,
in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and
7.2.6in the Disclosure Rules and
Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by Financial Canduct
Authority (the FCA Rules), in
respect of internal control 2nd risk
management systems in relation to
financial reporting processes, and
about share capital structures, is
consistent with the accounts and
has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements,

Based on my knowledge and
understanding of the group and its
environment obtained during the
course of the audit, | have identified
nc material misstatements in this
information.

Matters on which I report by
exception

Adeqguacy of accounting recards
information and explanations
received

I report to you if, in my opinion:

— adequate accounting records have
not been kept, or returns adequate
for my sudit have not been received
from branches not visited by my
staff; or

— the financial statements are notin
agreement with the accounting
records and returns;

- Ihave notreceived all of the
information and explanations
I require for my audit; or

— acorporate governance statement |
has not been prepared by the group.

| have nothing to report arising from
this duty.

Other matter

I have reported separately, on pages
149 t¢ 151, on the Parent Company
Financial Statements of British
Business Bank pic Group for the year
ended 31 March 2019 and on the
informaticnin the Directors'’
Remuneration Report that is
described as having been audited.

Hilary Lower
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of the Comptroller
and Auditor Ceneral (Statutory Auditor)

National Audit Office
157-197 Buckinghem Palace Road
London, SWilw 9spP

11 July 2019
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Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive net income

for the year to 31 March 2019

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
INCOME
Interestincome 51 43,437 109,584
Grantincome 5.7 17,461 17,201
Management fee income 53 20,575 18,208
Other income ) 54 1,837 1,286
Gross operating income ' 83,310 146,279
Expected credit loss on amortised cost assets 14.1 (12,846) -
Net gains/{losses) an investment assets & 28,669 {66,272)
Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 7 - 7281 16,924
Net operating income ' ' 106,424 96,931
EXPENDITURE
Staff costs 8.1 (27,765) (23,550)
Other operating expenditure 8.2 (34.775) {24,858)
Cepreciation and amortisation B.3 (1,443) {1,2°14)
Operating expenditure (63,983) (48,622)
Net operating profit before ECF loan commitment tinancial
liability and interest payable 42,441 48.309
ECF loan commitment financial liability
Provided in the year on new commitments 18,19 - (71,321)
Releasedin the year 18,19 44,364 34,323
Interest payable (5,552) -
Profit before tax 81,253 11,311
Tax _ 91 (3,.933) {17.546)
Profit/(lass) for the year after tax 71,320 (6,235}
Other comprehensive income
Itemns that moy be reclossified to profit or lass:
Net gain on investments recognised in reserves 141,142 - 6,718
Other comprehensive income reclassified to net losses on
investment assets - 1,120
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Deferred tax relating to ECF investments 81 - 5034
Total comprehensive income for the year ' 71,320 6,637

All operations are continuing.

The notes cn pages 96 to 148 form an integral part of the financiai statements. Where applicable balances for the year to
31 March 2019 are under IFRS 9, and those for the year to 31 March 2018 are under IAS 39. Further details on the impact

of this change are provided in the transition table in note 3.

The results by operating segment are shown in note 10 to the financial statements.
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Consolidated statement
of financial position
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as at 31 March 2019
2019 2018

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 11 152,117 653,641
Amounts owed by shareholder 12 525,000 -
Trade and other receivables 13 9,746 5,782
Amortised cost investments 14.1 431,126 -
Investments held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9 14.2 1,248,184 -
Assets held for sale 14.2 40,610 -
Loans and receivables 14.1 - 346,068
Held tc maturity investments 141 - 31,080
Available-for-sale firancial assets 141,142 - 985,793
Assets designated at fair value through profit orloss under [AS 39 14.2 - 208,229
Derivative financial instruments 14.2 - 31,653
Property, plant and equipment 15 3,708 1,670
Intangible assets 1,358 1.882
Deferred tax asset o ) _ E. 8,894 - 3,953
Total assets ' 2,420,743 1,679,761
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 17 (18,149) {14,225)
Corporation tax payable 9z (3,8306) {11,353)
Provisions 18 {300) (183,861)
ECF loan commitment financial liability 19 (139,377) -
Loans and other borrowings ) - 20 (711.285) (116,160}
Total liabilities ' (873,047) (325,599)
Net assets 1,547,696 1,354,162
EQUITY
Issued share capital 23 1,496,408 1,371,408
Financialinstruments reserve - 41,633
Retained earnings - 51,288 (58,879}
Total equity 1,547,696 1,354,162

The financizg! statements of the Group (parent company number 08616013) were approved by the Board of Directors

and authorised forissue on 11 July 2018, They were signed on its behalf by:

ZTR Aoy

The notes on pages 96 to 148 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
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Consolidated statement
of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2019
Financial
Issued  instrument Retained
capital reserve earnings Tatal

Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance as at 1 April 2018 1,371,408 41,633 (58,879) 1,354,162
Adjustment due toIFRS Stransition 3 - (41,633) 38,847 (2.786)
Balance under)FRS 9 as at1 April 2018 1,371,408 - (20,032} 1,351,376
Net income after tax - - 71,320 71,320
Other comprehensiveincome, netoftax - o - -
Total comprehensive income - - 71,320 71,320
ssueofordinaryshares 23 125000 - - 125000
Balance at 31 March 2019 ' 1,496,408 - 51,288 1547696
Balance as at1 April 2017 1,071,408 28,761 (52,713} 1,047,456
From business combinationwith The Start Up
Loans Company - - 69 69
Net income after tax - - {6.235) {6,235)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax . = 1l2Be . - 12872
Total comprehensive income ' - 12,872 (6,235) 6,637
Issue of ordinary shares 23 300,000 - - 300,000

Balance at 31 March 2018 - 1,371,408 41,633  (58.879) 1,354,162
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Consolidated cash
flow statement

as at 31 March 2019
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2019 2018

Note £000 £000
Profit before tax 81,253 11,311
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant 7 {7.291) {16,924)
Depreciation and amortisation 8.3 1.443 1,214
Interest payable 5,552 -
ECF loan commitment financial iability/provision 18,15 {44,364) 36,998
Other comprehensive income reclassified to income statement - 1,120
Other provision expense 18 180 -
Changes in operating assets and liabilities,
Netincreasein loans and receivables 141 - (100,321)
Net intrease in avzilable-for-sale assets 14.1,14.2 - {56,853)
Netincrease in assets designated at fair value through profit or
loss under IAS 39 14.2 - (178,707)
Net increase in derivative financial instruments 14.2 - {7,334)
Net in¢rease in amortised cost investments 14.1 (€.573) -
Net increase in assets at fair value through profit orloss under IFRS 9 14.2 (123,755) -
Increase in trade and other receivables 13 (3.964) {229)
Increase in trade and other payables 17 4,431 2,083
Payment of corparation tax 9.2 {22,291) (12,108)
Payment of interest payable (1,288) -
[\let_as_h_used in operating activities 6112,657) (319,750)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of praperty, plant and equipment 15 (2.814) (1,353)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 15 - P
Purchase of intangibleassets ~{143) _ (926)
Net c;s_l'_l.used in investing activities _ (2.957) (2,317}
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares 23 125,000 300,000
Capital grants received 20 4,100 25,000
Amounts owed by shareholder 12 (525.000) -
Proceeds from loans from Nuclear Liabilities Fund 20 600,000 N -
Net cash from financing activities S - 204,100 325,000
Net in_crease in cash and cash equivalents o a _88,476 2,933
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 63,641 58,4372
Cash on business combination _ i - 2,276
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 152,117 63,641

Interest received was £68.2m (2018; £76.8m).

The notes on pages 96 to 148 form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

For the year ended 31 March 2019

1. General information

The British Business Bank plc {the
“Company” or "Group”)is incorporated
in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act, The address of the
registered officeis Steel City House,
West Street, Sheffield, 51 2G0. The
nature of the British Business Bank
Group's operations and its principal
activities are setout in the Strategic
Reporton pages G to 48.

2. Significant accounting
policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union {EUY), interpretations
issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee and thase parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to
companies reporting under IFRS.
The financial statements are
prepared in accordance with IFRS
and interpretations in force at the
reporting date.

The financial statements have heen
prepared cn the historical cost basis,
except for certain financial assets
and liabilities that are measured at
amortised cost and financial
instruments that are measured at fair
value or revalued amounts at the end
of each reporting period. Historical
costis generally based on the fair
value cf the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services. The
principal accounting policies adopted
are set out below,

These financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling because
that is the currency of the primary
aconomic zone inwhich the Group
operates,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements
af the Company and entitiés
controlled by the Company {its
subslidiaries) made up to 31 March
2019. Cantrol is achieved when the
Company:

~ hasthe power over the investee,

- Isexposed, or has rignts, to variable
returns from its involvement with
the investee; and

- hasthe ability to use its power to
affectsits returns.

The Company reassesses whether or
not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or maore of the three
elements of control listed above,

Determining whether a Company

has control of an entity is generally
straightforward based on awrnership
af the majority of the voting capital.
However, in certain instances, this
determination will involve judgement,
particularly in the case of structured
entities where voting rights are often
not the determining factor in
decisions over refevant activities,
This judgment may involve assessing
the purpose and design of the entity.

Cansolidation of a subsidiary begins
when the Company obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, the results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the

Nates to the consolidated financial statements

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income from the
date the Company gains control until
the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with the Group's
accounting policies.

Allintragroup assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions
batween the members of the Group
are eliminated on coansnlidation,

Profit or loss and each component

of other comprehensive income

are attributed in full to the owners
of the Company in the absence of
non-controlling interests, Total
comprehensive income of the
subsidiariesis also attributed in full
to the owners of the Company in the
gbsence of non-controlling interests.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates
applies to all investments in which the
Croup has significant influence but
not control. A holding of 20% or more
of the voting power of an investment
would normally indicate significant
influence and require these
investments 1o be accounted for as
associates using the equity method
of accounting. Where the Group holds
greater than 20% of the ordinary
share capital of an entity but thereis
no significant influence, these entities
are not accounted for as associates.
Instead these entities are classified
and accounted for as a financial asset
in accordance with IFRS 9 Financial
instruments. Details of the Group's
significant holdings are shown in
notes 24 and 25.




Notes to the corsaldated financial statements

The Start Up Loans Company became
part of the Group on 1 Aprii 2017 when
British Business Finance Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, became
the sole member. The Directors have
concluded that British Business
Finance Limited has control of

The Start Up Loans Company as it

is the sole member; it has the ability
to appoint Board members and it
provides funding to the company
which exposes it to variable returns.
The Directors have assessed that
under IFRS 10 Consolidated Financiol
Statements, The Start Up Loans
Company is required to be
consolidated in the Group financial
statements, The Directors have also
assessed that under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations the cansolidation of
The Start Up Loans Company
represents a business combination
of entities under common control as
the Secretary of State for Business,
Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS)
exercised control over the company
prior 1o the business combination.

Going concern

The Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Company and
the CGroup have adequate resources to
continue in gperational existence far
the fareseeable future, The Group has
recejved a letter of support from the
Secretary of State for BEIS stating it
will provide sufficlent funding to
enable the Group to meet its liahilities
as and when they fall due for a period
of not less than twelve months from
the date of approval of these financial
statements. Thus, the Directors
continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the
financial statements.
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Adoption of new and
revised Standards

The Group has adopted IFRS @ as
Issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board in July 2014, The
Group did not early adopt any of IFRS
Sin previous periods,

As permitted by the transitional
provisions, the Group has elected not
to restate comparative figures. Any
adjustments to the carrying amounts
of financial assets and liabilities at
the date of {ransition have been
recognised in the opening retained
earnings and other reserves in the
current period. Consequently, for
notes disclosures, the consequential
amendments to [FRS 7 disclosures
have only been applied to the current
period. The comparative period notes
disclosures repeat those made in the
prior year,

The adopticn of IFRS 9 has resulted
i changes to the accounting policies
for recagnition, classificationand
measurement of financial assets and
liabilities and impairment of financial
assets, [FRS 9 also significantly
amends other standards dealing with
financial instruments such as IFRS 7
Financial instruments: Disclosures.
Where thereis a difference in the
Group's principal accounting palicies
between the current and the previous
years as a consequence of the
adoption IFRS G, the accounting
policies relevant to bath years have
been disclosed in this nate.

IFRS 15 Reveniue from contracts

with customers deals with revenue
recognition and estabiishes principles
farreporting usetulinformation to
users of financial statements about
the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with recipients.

Revenue is recognised whena
customer obtains control of 2 good or
service and thus has the ability to
direct the use and abtain benefits from
the goed or service, The standard is
effective forannual periods beginning
onorafterljanuary 2018 and has
been adopted by the Group at the start
of the current period. The Standard is
only relevant to the Group with respect
‘Management fee income' and 'Other
income’. Given the nature of this type
of income there has beenno impact on
the Group at the point of transition, nor
on Management fee income or Othear
income recognised during the peried.

There were no other new oramended
standards appiied for the first time
and therefore no restatements of
the previous financial statements
were required.

At the date of authorisation of these
financial statements, the following
Standards and Interpretations which
have not been applied in these
financial statements, were inissue
but not yet effective {(and in some
cases had not yet been adopted by
tha EUY

- IFRS 3 (amendments) Business
Combinations;

— IFRS 10 and 1AS 28 (amendments)
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or joint Venture;

— IFRS 16 Leagses,;
— {FRS 17 Insurance Contracts;

- Annualimprovements to IFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle;

- IAS 1 {amendments) Presentation
of Financial Statements,

~ [AS 8 {umendments) Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting
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Estimates and Errors;

— IAS 19 (gmendments) Employee
Benefits,

— JAS 28 (gmendments) Investments
in Assaciates and joint Ventures;

— IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments.

The Directors do not expect that

the adoption of the Standards and
Interpretations listed above will have
a material impact on the financial
statements of the Group in

€4
future years.

IFRS 16 Leasesis effective for financial
periods beginning on or after 1 Janvary
2019 and the Group will adopt the
standard for the first time in the year
ending 31 March 2020. IFRS 16 requires
lessees ta recognise cperating leases
on their Consofidated Statement of
Financial Position which would reflect
the lessee’s right to use an asset fora
period of time, As at 31 March 2019 the
Croup has 3 operating leases which are
disclosed innote 22.2. IFRS 16 requires
the Group to recognise the present
value of lease payments by disclosing
within Property, Plant and Equipment
under a new category of right-to-use-
assets. The Group would also be
required to recognise a separate
financial liability representing its
obligation to make future iease
payments, Based on the calculations
the Directors have performed they

do not believe this would lead to a
material adjustment on transition,

Income recognition

Following the adoption of IFRS 15
Revenue from contracts with
customers, income is recagnised when
arecipient obtains control of agood or
service and thus has the ability to the
direct the use and obtain benefits
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from the goods or service,
Management fee income and Cther
income is recognised when arecipient
obtains control of the service,

Income is measured at the fair vaiue
of the considerationreceived or
receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods and services
pravided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, Value Added
Tax {VAT) and other sales-related
taxes, Income is reduced for estimated
rebates and other similar allowances.

interestincome

Interest income is recognised when it
is probable that the econcmic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount;
of revenue can be measured raliably.
Interestincome is accruedonatime
basis, by reference to the principal
cutstanding using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a
method of calculating the amortised
cost of adebtinstrument and of
allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
future contractual cash payments or
receipts aver the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to
the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset {i.e. its amortised cost
before any impzirment allowance) or
to the amortised cost of the financial
liability. The calculation does not
consider expected credit losses and
includes transaction costs, and
premiums or discaunts that are
integral to the effective interest
rate, such as arigination fees,

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

When the Group revises the estimates
of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial
asset or financial liability is adjusted to
reflect the new estimate discounted
using the original effective interest
rate. Any changes are recognised in
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Tax

The tax expense represents the
sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based

on taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income berause it excludes items

of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible, The Group's
liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted

by the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxis the tax expected to be
payable orrecoverable on differences
between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and rthe corresponding
tax bases used in the computation

of taxable profit and is accounted for
using the halance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally reccgnised for ali taxable
temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the
extent that itis probable that taxable
profits in future years will be available
against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilisec.
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Current and deferred tax are
recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income, excent when they relate to
items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in
equity. inwhich case, the relevant
current and deferred tax are also
recogrised in other comprehensive
income or directly inequity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for

a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the
business combination,

VAT is accounted for in the accounts,
in that amounts are shown net of
VAT except.

- Irrecoverable VAT is charged to
the Consciidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net income and
included under the relevant
expenditure heading,

— Irrecoverable VAT on the purchase
of an assetis included in additions.

The net amount due to, or from,
HM Revenue and Custems in respect
of VAT is included within payables or
receivables on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position.
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Property, plant and equipment

Furniture, equipment and leasehold
improvements are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impairment loss.

The Group capitalises property, plant
and equipment purchased for a net
value of £3,000 or more and which
have a useful economiciife in excess
of one year.

Depreciation is recognised so as to
write off the cost or valuation of
assetsless their residual values aver
their usefullives, using the straight-
line method, on the foliowing bases:

Leasehold improvement
shorter of estimated remaining useful
life or outstanding lease term

Fixtures and fittings
Syears

IT equipment
3-5years

The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted forona
prospective basis.

Anitem of property, plant and
equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset, The
gain or loss arising on the disposal or
scrappage of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales
proteeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognisedin

the Conselidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

Intangible assets

Intangible assets including internally
developed software with a finite
useful life and IT programs and
software licences, with finite useful
lives that are acquired separately, i
are carried at cost less accumulated
amartisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is
recognised on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life on

the following bases:

Internally developed software
and IT programs
3-10years

Software licences
Period of licence

The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a praspective
pasis. Intangible assets with indefinite
usetul lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less
accumulatedimpairment losses,

Anintangible asset is derecognised on
disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise fram
continued use. Gains or losses arising
from de-recognition of an intangibie
asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recagnised in the Consalidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income whenthe asset is derecognised.
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Financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are reccgnised in the Group's
Consolidated Statement of Financial
Paosition when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions

of the instrument,

Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value, less
directly attributable transacticn
costs, except for the transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or
ioss which are recognised innmediately
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

Classification of financial
instruments - 2019
Accounting Policy

Financial assets are classified under
IFRS 9 as amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income
{FVOQ); or fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) depending on the Group’s
business model and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the
instruments.

The majority of the Group's financial
assets comprise debt and equity
instruments, classified as such

under IAS 32. Debt instruments are
subsequently measured at amartised
cost where the business model
related to thatinstrumentis to collect
the contractual cash flows and those
cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI'). If

the cash flows fail the SPPI test,

the instrument is subsequently
measured at FVTPL,

Financial assets that are held for
collection of contractua! cash flows
and far selling where the assets’
cash flows represent SPPI, and that
are not designated at FYTPL, are
measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI}
Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through QCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains or losses on the
instrument’s amortised cost which
are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income, Interest income frem these
financial assets is included in‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest
rate method.

The Group subsequentiy measures
all equity instruments at FVTPL,
except where the Group's
management has elected, at initial
recagnition to irrevocably designate
an equity investment at FVOCI, The
Group's policy is to designate equity
instruments as FYOC when those
investments are held for purposes
other than to generate investment
returns, When this election is used,
fair value gains or losses are
recognised in Other Comprehensive
lncome and are not subsequently
reclassified to Comprehensive Net
Income, including on dispasal.

The Group may irrevocably designate
financial assets at FVTPLIf doing so
significantly reduces or eliminates
amismatch created by assets and
liabilities being measured on
different bases.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Fair value atinitial recognition -
StartUp Loans

Loans ariginated through the Group's
Start Up Loans programme have been
classified as amortised cost financial
instruments, The Group charges a
single rate of interest (6%) tc Start Up
Loans customers that is independent
of the credit quality of the customer.
This interest rate is not sufficient to
compensate for the expected losses
for the Start Up Loans scheme which
are forecast to be between 30% and
40%, reflecting the non-commercial
nature of the scheme, Therefore, the
fransaction valie of aStart Up Loan
will not equal its fair value,

The future expected cash flows are
risk adjusted and discaurnted using an
appropriate discount rate, which has
heen calculated by taking the average
S-year median corporate debtrate for
Caa/Cratedloans, in order to calculate
the fair value,

In accordance with IFRS 8 (2018: 1AS
39) the fair value adjustment atinitial
recognition, which is the difference
between the transaction value of

the loans and their fair value would
usually be deferred and either
amortised or recognised when a gain
orloss was crystallised. However, the
Directors have determined that itis
appropriate in this circumstance to
apply a true and fair averride, and
conseguently any fair value adjustment
arising on the Start Up Loans loan book
will be recognised immediately through
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income betause
this reflects the commercial position
more appropriately,
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Classification of financial
instruments - 2018
Accounting Policy

Financial assets are classified into

the following specified categories:
financial assets ‘at fair value through
profit or loss' (FVTPL), 'held-to-
maturity' investments, ‘available-for-
sale’ (AFS) financial assets and 'loans
and receivables’ The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets are classified as at
FVTPLwhen the financial assetisa
derivative financial instrument, held
for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL. Financial assets at FVTPL are
stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising cn re-measurement
recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive

Net Income, The net gain or loss
recognised incorporates any dividend
orinterest earned on the financial
asset, There are no held for trading
financial assets.

Held-to-maturity investments are
non-derivative financial assets with
fixed gr determinable payments and
fixed maturity that the Group has
the positive intent and ability to
hold to maturity, Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment,
with revenue recognised on an
effective interest rate basis.
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Availahle-for-sale (AFS) financial
assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity
investments or financial assets at
FVTPL, or have been designated at
inception as AFS. AFS financial assets
are recorded at fair value, with

gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value recognised

in other comprehensive income

and accumulated in the financial
instrument reserve with the
exception of impairment losses,
interest calculated using the ef fective
interest method and foreign exchange
gains and losses on monetary assets,
which are recognised directly in

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. Where
the investment is disposed of the
cumulative gains or losses, or if the
investment is determined to be
impaired the cumulative iosses,
previously recagnised in the financial
instrument reserve are reclassified
to the Consolidated Statement of
Caomprehensive Net income, Dividends
on AFS equity instruments are
recogrised in the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income when the Group's right to
receive the dividends is established.

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinaole payments, originated
or acguired, that are not quected in
anactive market, and comprise cash
and cash equivalents, receivables and
loans, Afterinitial recognition they
are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less
any impairment, Gains and losses

are amartised through the
Consclidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. Interest
income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be
immaterial,

Impairment of financial assets
- 2018 Accounting Policy

The Group assesses on a forward-
looking basis, the expected credit
losses (‘'ECL) associated with its debt
instrument assets carried at amortised
costand FVOCl and with exposures
arising fromlgan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts.

At initial recognition, financial assets
are categorised as 'stage 1'and an
impairment provision is required for
ECLsresulting from default events
projected within the next 12 months
(‘12-month ECL).
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Subsequently, financial assets are
considered to be in ‘'stage 2" when
their creditrisk has increased
significantly since initial recegnition,
so thatitis appropriate to recognise
lifetime ECL. The Group assesses
assetsto bein stage 2 using a
combination of non-statistical,
gualitative information as well as
quantitative, statistical information.
including when accounts are more
than 30 days past due or there has
been a significant relative increase
in the lifetime probability of default
(PD) compared to initial recognition,
where the PD is derived based un Lhe
customer’s credit quality, including
analysis of behaviour scare and ather
account characteristics,

Financial assets are included in 'stage
3’ when there is abjective evidence
that the asset is credit impaired, with
expected credit losses still calculated
on a lifetime basis. Assets which are
more than 90 days past due are in
default and are considered by the
Group to be credit impaired.

The measurement of ECL reflacts an
unbiased and probability weighted
amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible
outcomes, the time value cf money
and reasonable and supportahle
information thatis available without
undue cost or effort at the reparting
date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

ECLs are calculated using three main
components, PD, aloss given default
{(LGD"Y and the exposure at default
{'EAD"). The L GD represents losses
expected on default, takinginto
account the mitigating effect of
collateral, its expected value when
realised and the time value of money.
The EAD represents the expected
balance at default, taking into account
therepayment of principal and interest
from the balance sheet date to the
default. Discounting of the expected
cashflows is performed using the
effective interest rate of the ioan.

Changes in the carrying amount

of assets arising as a result of
impairment are recognisedin

the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income. If aloan
has no realistic prospect of recaovery,
any loss incurred by the Croup on
extinguishing the debt is written
off against the provision for loan
impairment. Any subsequant
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are recognised through
the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income,

Notes to The consofidated financial statements

Impairment of financial assets
- 2018 Accounting Policy

Financial assets, other than thase at
FVTPL, are assessed far indicators
of impairment at each halance sheet
date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence
that, as aresult of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset but
before the balance sheet date, the
estimated future cash flows from the
financial asset have been reduced.

Assets that are assessed not to be
impaircd individually are, in addition,
assessed forimpairmenton a
callective basis. Ohjective evidence

of impairment for a pertfolio of
assets could include the Group's past
experience of collecting payments,
anincrease in the number of delzyed
payments in the portfolio, as well as
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that carrelate
with default on receivables. The Group
makes an allowance for collective
impairment on a performing pertfolio
for those assets which have become
impaired at the balance sheet date but
have yet to be reported asimpaired.

For finarncial assets carried at
amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interestrate,




Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The carrying amount of the financial
assetis reduced hy the impairment
loss for all financial assets with the
exception of a portfolio of receivables
subject to collective impairment, where
the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account, When
areceivable within the portfolio is
considerad uncollectible, itis written
off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited
against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

When an AFS financial asset fs
considered te be impaired, cumulative
losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for
saleif their carrying amount will be
recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only
when the sale is highly probable,

the asset is available for immediate
sale inits present condition and the
assetis artively marketed for sale.
Management must be committed to
the sale which should he expected to
qualify as recagnition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of
classification. Assets held for sale are
measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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Financial liabilities

in both the current and prior period,
financial liabifities are classified and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost, except far:

— Financiatl liabilities at fair value
through profitorloss: this
classification is applied to
derivatives and other financial
liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses
on financial liabilities designated
as FVTPL are presented partially
in Other Comprehensive Income
{the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the
creditrisk of that liability, which
is determined as the amount that
is not attributable to changes in
market conditions that give rise
to market risk). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or
enlarge, an accounting mismatch,
in which case the gains and losses
attributable to changes in the credit
risk of the liability are also presented
in Comprehensive Net Income:;

- Financial liabilities arising from
the transfer of financial assets
not qualifying for derecognition,
whereby a financial fiability is
recognised for the consideration
received for the transter. In
subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liabiiity; and

- Financial guarantee contracts
and loan commitments.

103

Loan commitments at below
market rate

The Group accepts a lower than
market rate of return from ECF
investmentsin arder to encourage
private sector investors to invest |
alongside. Although the Group
expects to make a positive returm
from these investments, this return

is less than that required by the
private sector. The Group has at initial
recognition elected to irrevacably
designate the liability related to these
lcan commitments as measured at fair
value through profit or loss because
the group of financial assets and
financial liahilities is managed, and

its performance is evaluated ona

fair value basis, in accordance with
adocumented investment strateqy,
and information about these assets
and liabilities is provided interrally

on that basis to the Group's key
management personnel. In 2017/18
the provision relating to loan
commitments was measured at
amortised cost underlAS 37 0n
adoption of IFRS 9 the fair value cn
initial recognition has been calculated
to be equivalent to the IAS 37 carrying
amount at 31 March 2018.
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Loans and other borrowings

The Group has loan facilities from

the Secretary of State for BEIS and
the Nuclear Liahilities Fund which are
classified and measured as amortised
cost financial liabilities.

In addition, it has received a capital
grant inrespect of the Start Up Loans
scheme. The agreement does not
have 2 maturity date and carries an
interest rate of zero. The capital grant
is repayable on demand, in whole ar
in part, if at the absolute discretion

of BEIS certain conditions arise that
affect the scheme adversely. The
Group classifies and initially measures
the capital grant as an amortised

cost financial liability. Subsequently
the Group measures the liatility as
amortised cost but adjusts the
carrying value by any amounts it
believes will not be recoverable,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cashin hand and current balances with
banks and other financial institutions,
which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value
and have an original maturity of three
months ar less.
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Pravisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has a present obligation as &
resulit of a pastevent, itis probahle
that the Group witl be required to
settle that abligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount
of the abligation.

The amount recognised as &
provision is the best estimate of the
cansideration required tg settie the
present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding
tho abligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows
estimatied to settle the present
obligation, its’ carrying amount is
the present value of those cash
flows wheri e el facLul the time
value of money is material.

Contingent liabilities

The Group has cantingent liabilities
arising through financial quarantees
issued to counterparties. A contingent
liability is a possible obligation
depending on whether some
uncertain future event occurs, ora
present abligation but paymentis

nat probable, or the amount cannot

be measured reliably.

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The Group may at times enter into
financial guarantee contracts which
are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments 1o
reimburse the holder foraloss it
incurs because a specified debtor
fails ta make payments when due,

in accordance with the terms of a
debtinstrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are initially measured at
fairvalue and subsequently measured
at the higher of:

— The amount of the impairment loss
allowance; and

— The amount initially reragnised less
the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the
principles of IFRS 15,

Foi linanidial guarantee contracts,
the loss allowance is measured as a
financial liability (2018: provision).

Foreign exchange

The individual financial statements of
each Group company are presentedin
the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it operates

(its functional currency) which is
pounds sterling.
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The Group applies IAS 21 The Effects
of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rotes and transactions thatare
denominated in a foreign currency are
translated into sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling on the date of each
transaction, except where rates do
not fluctuate significantly, in which
case an average rate fcra pericd is
used, Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies

as at the balance sheet date are
retranslated at the rates of exchange
ruling at that date, Translation
differences are recognised in the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

Retirement costs

Payments to defined contribution
retirement schemes are recognised
as an expense when employees have
renderad service entitling them to
the contributicns,

Employee benefits

ln accordance with IAS 19 Employee
Benefits, the Group recognises short
tarm employee banefits when an
employee has rendered service in
exchange for those benefits.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee.
Al otherleases are classified as
operating leases,
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Rentals payable under operating
leases are charged to Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
Income on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease except
where another systematic basis is
mare representative of the time
patternin which economic benefits
from the lease asset are consumed.

3. Classification of financial
assets and financial liabilities
on the date of initial
application of IFRS 9

Reconciliation of IAS 39
tolFRS 9

The following table provides the
reclassification and remeasurement
impact arising from the transition to
IFRS 9 on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position at 1 April 2018,
the date IFRS 9 was adcpted by

the Group,

Reclassification

These adjustments reflect the
movement of balances between
categories on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position with
no impact to shareholders’ equity.
Thereis nochange to the carrying
value of the halances as a result of
the reclassification.

Remeasurement

These adjustments, which include
expected credit loss, resultina
change to the carrying value of the
investments on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position with
animpact to sharehalders’ equity
net of tax.
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Notes to the consolidated finandial statements

3. Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date
of initial application of IFRS 9 (continued)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and otherreceivables
Prepayments

Loans and receivables

Held to maturity investments
Available-for-sale financial assets
Derivative financial instruments
Assets designated at FVTPL (IAS 39)

Praperty, plant and equipment

Intangible assets
Qeferrgd tax asset
Total assets

Liabilities

Trade and cther payables
VAT and social security
Corporation tax
Provisions

Dilapidation provision

Loans and other borrowings

Total liabilities N
Net assets

Equity

lssued share capital
Financial instrument reserve
Retained earnings

Total equity

Measurement
basis (IAS 39)

Amortised cost
Amortised cost

Amortised cost
Amortised cost
FvOCl

FVTPL {IAS 39)
FVTPL (IAS 39)
N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

NA L

Amortised cost
N/A
N/A
Amortised cost
N/A
N/A

Amortised cost
&FVTPL

Carrying amount
31 March 2018
{IAS 39)

63,641
5,248
534
346,068
31,080
985,793
31,653
208,229

1,670

1,882
3,953
1,679,761

(12,973)
(1,252)
(11,353)
(183.741)
(120)

(116,160)

(325,599)

~_£000

Remeasurement
£000

6,455

6,455

1,354,162

1,371,408
41,633
(58.879)
1,354,162

(2.786)

(2.786)

(2.786)
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Carrying amount
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~ Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Prepayments

Amortised cost investments
Assets at FVTPL (IFRS 9)
PFroperty, plant and
equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred tax asset

Total assets

Liabilities
Trade and other payables
VAT and social security
Corporation tax

N/A

Dilapidation provision
Financial liability
measured at FVTPL

Loans and other
borrowings

Total liabilities

1April 2018 Measurement
Reclassification {IFRS 9) basis (IFRS 9)
€000 £000 _
- 63,641 Amortised cost
- 5,248 Amortised cost
- 534 N/A
(346,068) - N/A
{31,080) - N/A
{985,793) - N/A
(31,653) - N/A
(208.229) - N/A
437,794 423,553 Amartised cost
1,165,039 1,165,039 FVTPL (IFRS 8)
- 1.670 N/A
- 1,882 N/A
L o - - 3953 N/A
- 1670520
- (12,973) Amortised cost
- (1,252) N/A
- {11,353) N/A
183,741 - N/A
- (120) N/A
(183.741) (183.741) FVTPL
- (109,705) Amortised cost
_ - o - & FVTPL
- j (319,144) o
- 1,351,376
- 1,371,408
(41.633) -
41633 - - (20.0329)
- 1,351,376

Net assets
S Equity
Issued share capital

Retained earnings
Total equity

=
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Cash and cash equivalents, Trade

and atherreceivables, Locans and
receivables, and Held to maturity
investments that were classified as
‘loans and receivables’ and "held to
maturity’ are now measured at
‘amortised cost’ There are no changes
in terms of maasurement far these
assets upon transition.

Assets that were classified as
‘available for sale’ under IAS 39
which meet the SPPI test for cash
flows characteristics are classified
as ‘amortised cost under IFRS 9.

were classified as

‘available for sale’ under IAS 39 which
are holdings in standard investment
funds with either a limited life or
redeemable units, are measured at
Fv IPLasthey are debtinstruments
that do not meet the SPPitest.
Derivatives were classified as FVTPL
under IAS 39 and remain measured
at FVTPL under {FRS 9. However,
embedded cerivatives are na longer
assessed separately from the host
financial asset leading to a categary
transfer of £31.7m from derivatives
to assets designated at FVTPL.

Assets that were dla

Loans and other borrowings include
£14.9m whichis an unsecured loan
from BEIS to SULCo which is measured
at amortised cost under IFRS 9, Also
included within Loans and other
borrowings is a capital grant of
£97.8m from BEIS to SULCo. The
repayable amount of the loanis
subject to the performance of the
SULCo loan book and is therefore
classified as FVTPL under IFRS 9.

Anamount of £41.6m has been
reclassified from financial instrument
reserve to retained earnings as a
consequence of the Group's financial
assets classified as ‘available for sale’
under IAS 39 being reclassified as
FVTPL under IFRS 9.

4, Critical accounting
judgements and key sources
of estimation uncertainty

Inapplying the Group's accounting
policies, which are described in note 2,
the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and fiabilities that
are not readily apparent from other
sources, The estimates and
associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be
relevant, Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the year
inwhich the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that year, orin
the year of the revision and future
years if the revision affects both
current and future years,

Notes to the consolidated finandial statements

The estimates and assumptions that
risk causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial
year are:

— The inputs to valuation models
and technigues used to determine
estimated future cash flows to
calculate the fair values of assets
held at FVTPL and amortised cost;

- Theinputs to the modelling
technigues used to calculate the
fair value of financial liabilities/
guaraniees relating to lcan

commitment financial liability;

- The assessment of ECL impairment
allowances against assets held at
FVOCI, amortised cest financial
assets and financial guarantees.

The future returns from FVTPL debt
fund investments are not limited 1o
contractual cash flows of interest and
principal, Returns are inherently
uncertain and will depend onarange
of factors including the manager's
success inoriginating lending
opportunities, costs and fees, how
the manager exercises discretion in
trading off equity against debt
componentsinloan structures, credit
and warrant/equity performance,
and prevailing market conditions,
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The use of valuation modeils
and techniques used to
determine estimated future
cash flows,

The key global assumptions for the
Enterprise Capital Funds are the
risk-adjusted discount rate and the
volatility percentage used. The Group
has calculated these assumptions for
all Enterprise Capital Funds
investments on g consistent basis. As
an indication of sensitivity, a 200 basis
pointsincrease in the risk-adjusted
discountrate across the Enterprise
Capital Funds portfolio would
decrease the fair value of the debt
investment in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Positicn by
around £13m. Likewise, a 200 basis
points decrease in the risk-adjusted
discount rate across the Enterprise
Capital Funds portfolio would increase
the fair value of the portfolio by
around £14m,

There s inherent uncertainty in both
the expected cash flows and the
discount rate used to calculate the fair
value atinitial recognition for Start Up
Loans to entrepreneurs.

The cash flows comprise four main
components: principal, interest,
expected loss on principal and
expectedloss oninterest. For each
individual account and for each period,
the expected loss on principal and the
expectedloss oninterest are
assessad by taking the outstanding
contractual amounts and adjusting for
the marginal PDs and LGD.

The discountrate for each loanis
determined by reference to the 5-year
median yield for Caa/Crated corporate
debt applicable at the year of
origination.
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impairment of financial assets

The calculation of impairment
provisians is inherently uncertain and
reguires the Group to make a number
of judgements, assumptions and
estimates. The most critical sources
of estimation uncertainty are:

Economic scenarios and associated
probability weightings

IFRS 9requires the calculation of
ECLs to account for multiple forward-
locking matro-economic scenarios.
The ECL model adopted by the Group
uses a Cydlicality Index (C1), which can
be considered as a measure of where
the economy sitsin the credit cycle at
any time,

Thea model uses publicly available data
on default rates as a basis far the
and generztes a base case scenario
(determined by a regression model
utilising base case forecasts of
Consumer Price Index growth rates,
interest rates and unemployment
rates nublished by the Bank of
England), then two better and

two worse scenarios generated

by considering a distribution of
passible scenarios around the

hase case scenario.
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The calculation of probability

of default (PD)

The PD of each underlying loan or
cradit facility provided by the Group is
akey assumption for the IFRS 9 ECL
calculation and this is reliant onrating
assessments undertaken by external
and internal PD mecdels.

The calculation of loss given
default (LGD)

LGD assesses the loss potential in
case of adefault and is relianton the
collateral residual value acting as
security reported against each loan
or the reported seniority ranking of
the Group's facility compared to other
investors. LGD is estimated using
internal models which consider
observed loss data or using external
benchmarks where appropriate.

The calculation of exposure

at default (EAD)

Exposure at default (EAD) is estimated
for each month for the contractual
lifetime of each financiat instrument,
This s either the contractual maturity
profile of the investment or an internal
estimate of the exposure value based
on expected repayment profiles
hased on historical information. A
credit conversion factoris applied to
undrawn irrevocable commitments
hased on external benchmarks or
internatly chserved data for similar
portfolios or types of assets.
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5. Income
5.1 interest income 2019 2018
Note £000 £000

Contractual Interest from amortised costinvestments 141 29,919 -
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition
of investments _ - ) 141 13,518 _ -~
Effective interest rate income from amortised cost
investments 43,437 -
Interest from loans and receivables 1411 - 19,690
Amortisation of fair value adjustment en initial recognition of
loansand receivables - 1411 - 2306%
Effective interest rate income from loans and receivables - 42,759
Interest from available-for-sale assets 14.1.3

. R | | 1421 - 50,614
Amortisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition of )
available-for-sale assets ) _ _ 14.2.1 - 13,661
Effective interest rate income from available for sale assets - 64,275
Interest from held to maturity investments ) 1412 - 2,550
Total interestincome 43,437 109,584

The amortisatian of the fair value adjustment on initial recognition represents the difference between the contractual
interest rate and the effective interest rate applicable for the financial asset.

5.2 Grantincome

2019 2018

£000 £000
Grantreceived fromshareholder . . 17461 17201
Total grantincome 17.461 17,201

Grantincome relates to the Resource Grant received from BEIS under the terms of the 'Grant Offer Letter’ between BEIS
and The Start Up Loans Company. The grant income funds the operating expenses of The Start Up Loans Company and
any amount in excessis recorded as deferred scheme income in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
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5.3 Management fee income
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2019 2018
£000 £000
Management fee income earned from:
Angel Co-Fund 30 413
Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strateqy 15,302 13,467
Northern Powerhouse Investments Limited 2,691 2,135
Midlands Engine Investments Limited 1,774 1,601
Cornwall and Isles of Scilly Investments Limited 310 372
Innovate UK 309 204
Nuclear Decommissioning Authority a0 -
East Midlands Early Growth Fund Limited 49 -
Other S - - 30 _1e
Total management fee income 20,575 18,208
5.4 Otherincome >019 >018
£000 £000
Arrangement and other fees 1,837 1,286
Total other income 1,837 1,286
6. Net gains/(losses) on investment assets 2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Impairment allowance on loans and receivables 1411 - (16,185)
Fair value adiustment an initial recognition of loans and
recejvables 14.1.1 - (36,165)
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition of amortised cost
assets 14.1 (18,415) -
write-offs of amortised cost assets 14.1 (2.364) -
tmpairment of available for sale assets 14.21 - {11,496)
impairment of availatle for sale assets reclassified from other
comprehensive income that relates to a previous period - {1,120)
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition of available for
sale assels 14.21 - (32,300)
Forelgn exchange gains on available-for-sale financial assets 1421 - 755
Fair value gains on assets held at fair value through profit orloss
under 1A% 39 14.2.2 - 17,234
Fair value gains on derivatives 1423 - 12,005
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition of assets held at fair
value through profit or loss under IFRS 8 14.2 (45,870) -
Fair vatue gains on assets heid at fair value through profit or loss
under FRS 9 ) _ 14.2 85,322 -
Total net gains/{losses) on investment assets ' 28,669 (66.,272)
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7. Net gain on write down of repayable capital grant

Write down of repayable capital grant received
Total net gain on write down of repayable capital grant

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

2019 2018
EOQO £000
7,291 16924
7,291 16,92

The Group receives a Capital Grant from BEIS under the terms of the 'Crant Offer Letter between BEIS and The Start Up
Loans Company far the purpose of extending foans to entrepreneurs at helow market rate. (See note 20). On expiry of
the grant period (31 March 2025), The Start Up Loans Company will repay to BEIS the amount of cash held in its bank
accounts representing capital and interest repayments from entrepreneurs. The repayable capital grant will be reduced
by any unrecovered amounts from the beneficiaries of the loans. The gain on write down of repayable capital grant
represents the reduction in the capital grant liability for the write-offs and impairment losses incurred on the loans to
entrepreneursin the period as well as the reduction/increase in the capital grantiability for the fair value adjustment
eninitial recognition and the subsequent amaortisation ¢f this adjustment.

8. Operating Expenditure

8.1. Staff numbers and staff costs

The average monthly number of employees including executive directors was:

Total staff costs -

2019 2018
Permanent staff 253 210
Seconded staff 3 4
Temporary and agency staft 37 35
Non-executive directors <) 8
Total staff numbers 297 258
Aggregate remuneration comprised: 2018 2018
£000 £000

Wages and salaries:
Permanent staff including executive directors 16,722 13,569
Seconded staff 541 667
Temporary and agency staff 2.392 2,674
Non-executive directors’ fees 357 387
Short and long-term incentive plans and bonus scheme 3,179 2,553
Social security costs 2,367 1,873
Pension costs 2,207 1727

- 27,765 23,550
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8.2. Other operating expenditure

Professional fees:
lnvestment scheme design and transactions
Operational fees
Accommodation end office services
information technalogy
Marketing
SULCo delivery partner fees
Auditor's remuneration
Staff related costs, including training and travel
Other purchase of goods and services
Total other operating expenditure
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2019
£000

2536
£,808
4,971
£.216
3,267
7677
437
2494
274
34,775

2018
£000

3,296
2,847
1,994
2,247
2,204
8,880
207
1,428
755
23,858

Auditar's remuneration relates to fees payable far the audit of the Group's annual accounts. The Group's auditor did not

provide any non-audit services,

8.3. Depreciation and amortisation

2019 2018
Note £000 £000

Property, plant and equipment 15 776 394
Intangible assets B 667 -
To_tal depreciation and amortisation - 1,443 o 1,214
9, Taxation
9.1. Tax on profit on continuing activities

2019 2018

E000 £000
Current tax
Current year ) - 18,584 _1&622_
@étment inrespect of prior years - (3,710) B (2,.058)
Total current tax 14,874 17,564
Deferred tax
Current year {4,841) (5.052)
Total deferred tax (4,941) B (5.052)
Total tax on continuing activities 9,933 12,512
Recognised through Comprehensive Net Income 9,933 17,546
Reccgnised through Other Comprehensive Income: ] - (5.034)
Total tax on continuing activities N 9,933 12,512
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Factors affecting the tax expense for the period

Notes to the consolidated financiai statements

The tax expense for the pericd is different from the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK as explained in the
table below. The carporation tax rate used is hased on the enacted corporation tax rate for the year commencing
6 April 2018, The Finance Act 2015 which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax from 20% to 19%
effective from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2020 and 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on

18 November 2015.

Deferred tax primarily relates to the Group’s investments in ECFs. Itis calculated at 17% (2018: 17%) of the estimated
unrealised gains within the funds. This is a temparary timing difference and the tax will become payable once the gains

are realised in the underlying funds, for example through investment exits.

The Group's investments in ECFs comprises interests in Limited Partnerships. Temporary accounting movements in
relation to these investments are either added back or deducted from the taxable profit or loss. The Group is subject
fo tax on estimated realised gains or losses arising in the individual Limited Partnerships. The reconciliation below takes

account of these adjustments.

The tables below reconcile the tax charge for the year;

Profit before tax
Tax on profit at standard UK tax rate 19% (2018; 19%)
Effects of.
Net gain on investments recognised in reserves
Permanent disallowances relating to:
ECF loan commitments financial liability/provision
Amortisation of ECF fair value adjustment on initiai recognition
Other permanent disallowances
Timing differences relating to:
ECF fairvalue gains on derivatives
ECF accrued return
ECF fair value adiustment on initial recognition
ECF impairment
ECF realised gains
ECF fair value movements
Long-Term Incentive Plan accrued expenditure
Other timing differences
Total tax charge

2019
£000

81.253
15,438

(8,429)

37

11,426
7,284
(7,541)

214
155

18,584

2018
EQOO

11,311
2,149

1.276

7,030
(2,596)
(130)

(2,471)

(1,8889)
6,137
1,689
8,323
82

—_ 21__
19,622
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9.1. Tax on profit on continuing activities {continued)
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Unrealised losses Deferred tax
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Unrealised losses on ECF investments {28,090) (28,016) (4,775) (5,034)
Other unrealised iosses L (876) (106) {166) (18)
Unrealised losses subject to (29,066) (29,722) (4,941) {5,052)
deferred tax
9.2. Corporation tax payable 2018 2018
£000 £000
Corporation tax payable at 1 April 11,353 5,897
Tax expense for the year 14,874 17.564
Tax paid ) o _ {22,291) {12,108}
Corporation tax payable at 31 March 3,936 11,353
9.3. Deferred tax asset
2019 2018
£000 £000
Deferred tax (asset)/liability at 1 April {3,953) _L099.
Movement in the year - . _ L ] (4941 {5,052)
Deferred tax (asset) at 31 March {8,8394) (3,953}

10. Operating segments

The Group's performance and results are managed interndatly as follows:

— British Business Bank entities: these are spift into British Business Finance Limited (BBFL), British Patient Capital
Limitad {BPC), British Business Investments Ltd {(BBI), The Start Up Loans Company (SULCo} and the overall Group
results. BPC was established in 2018/19 and therefore is not included in the previous year’'s comparative figures.

- Programmes administered on behalf of BEIS: [n addition toits own operations, the British Business Bank, through its
subsidiary British Business Financial Services Ltd (BBF5SL), administers assets on behalf of BEIS. These assets donot
form part of the British Business Bank plc Group financial statements but are reported to management. The financial
performance and position of these programmes is included within the Strategic Report, These figures are not part of

the zudited financial statements,

- Business units: The Group’s business units span the different subsidiaries to poof expertise,
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Comorehensive Income for the year ending 31 March 2019

Company
plcand Intra-group Total
BBFL BBI BPC SULCo BBFSL eliminations Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E0CO £000
Income
Investment Programmes - 15,187 - - - - 19,187
Venture Capital Solutions 840 - - - - (688) 152
Start Up Loans - - - 24,098 - - 24,098
Management fee & other income 52 1,837 - - 60,769  {40,240) 2,412
Grantincome - - - 17,461 - - 17,461
897 21,024 - 41,559 60,769  {40,834) 83.310
Net gains/(losses) on
investment assets
Investment Programmes - 60,859 - - - - 60,859
Venture Capital Sclutions (23.782) - 9,447 - - - (14,335)
StartUp Loans - - - {30,701) - - (3G.701)
(23,782) 60,859 9,447 {30,701) - - 15,823
Net gain on write down of
repayable capital grant - - - 7,291 - - 7,291
Operational expenditure
Staff costs (1,031) {1,626) (827)  (3.924) (20.357) - (27.765)
Professional services (174} {682) {418) (454) (7.716) - (9.444)
General operations (11.433)  (8:65%4) (6665 (13.083) (27145) 402456  (26,774)
(12,638) (11,002) {7910y (17.461) (55.218) 40245 (63,983
Net operating profit before
ECF loan commitment financial
liability and interest payable (35,528) 70,881 1,537 688 5.551 (688) 42,441
ECF loan commitments
financial liability 44,364 - - - - - 44,364
Interest payable - - - (688) {5,552} 658 (5,552}
Profit/(loss) before tax 8,836 70,881 1,537 - (1) - 81,253

Alltransactions between Group companies take place on an arm's lengths basis. There are na differences between the

entities' reportable profit or loss and the results in the note above,
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10. Operating segments (continued)

British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2219 117

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income {or the period ending 31 March 2018

Company
plcand Intra-group
BBFL BBI SULCo BBFSL eliminatiecns  Total Group
£000 EQDO £000 EQOQO £000 EOODO
Income
Investment Programmes - 53,311 - - - 53,311
Venture Capital Solutions 23,596 - - - - 23,596
Start Up Loans - - 32,677 - - 32.677
Management fee & otherincome 258 1,284 - 38,024 {20,072) 19,494
Grant income o - 17,201 - - 17,201
23,854 54,595 49,878 38,024 (20,072} 146,279
Net gains/(losses) on investment
assets
Investment Programmes - 12,009 - - - 12,00%
Venture Capital Solutions (£8,922) - - - - (2B,822)
StartUp Loans - - (49,359) - - (45,359)
(28,922) 12,009 (49,359) ~ - (66,272}
Net gain on write down of
repayable capital grant - - 16,924 - - 16,974
Operational expenditure
Staff costs {1,050) (1,371) (4,231) (16,898) - (23,550)
Professional services - (717) (438) (5112} - (6.267)
General operations (3,844) (6.245) (12,533) {16,014 19,831 (18,805)
(4,8584) (8,333) (17.202) {38,024) 19,831 (4B,622)
Net operating profit before
ECF loan commitments provision
and interest payable (9.962) 58,271 241 - (241) 48,309
ECF loan commitments provision (36,996} - - - - (36,988)
Interest payable - - (241) - 241 -
Profit/(loss) before tax (46,960) 58,271 - - - 11,311
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Notes te the cansolidated financial statements

For 2018, the application of 1AS 39 meant that the ECF partfolio was classified as AFS and so interest income was
recognised on an effective interest rate basis using the effective interest rate determined atinitial recognition.

The difference between the contractual interest rate and the effective interest rate represents the amortisation

of the fair value adjustment oninitial recognition. For the measurement of the Group's adjusted return, rezlised gains
on derivatives and permanent diminutions in value are included and all cther accounting impacts as shown in the
table below were excluded. For 2019, the application of IFRS € means that the ECF portfolio is classified as FVTPL.
For the measurement of the Group's adjusted return, the fair value movement is included and all other accounting

impacts as shown in the table helow are excluded.

The table summarises the amounts relating to the ECFs that have been recognised in arriving at the Group profit/(loss)

before tax in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net income.

2019 2018
Note £000 £000
Interestincome - 8,934
Fair value gains on derivatives - 13,005
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition (45,870) (3¢.300)
Impairment - (8,887)
Amartisation of fair value adjustment on initial recognition - 13661
Fair valuation movements 39,697 -
Provisicr released in year 7 7 18,19 44,364 34,323
' 38,186 29,736
Provision against future commitments 18,19 - - (/1.321)
Net gain/(loss) on Enterprise Capital Funds 38,186 (41,585)

StartUp Loans

The Group accepts a lower than market rate of return from Start Up Loan loans to entrepreneurs as discussed in Note 2
to the financial statements. Accounting standards require the Group to recognise a fair value adjustment on initial

recognition when it makes a Start Up Loan.

Gross lending advanced in the year
Fair value adjustment on initial recognition
Fair value on initial recognition

2019 2018
£000 £000
81,153 104,989
(18,419) (36,165)
62,734 68,824
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Consclidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2019
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Company
plcand Total
BBFL BBI BPC SuLCo BBFSL Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Amortised cost
BFF Smali Cap - Z - - - Pt
BFP Mid Cap - 55,432 - - - 55,432
investment Programme - 233,542 - - - 233,542
Start Up Loans - - - 137,241 - 137,241
Northern Powerhouse
Investments 4,909 - - - - 4,909
Assets held at FVTPL
BFP Midcap - 436,058 - - - 436,058
Investment Programme - 296,961 - - - 296,961
Enterprise Capital Funds 226,611 - - - - 226,611
Venture/Growth - - 203,049 - - 203,049
UKIIF - 123,765 - - - 173,765
Other venture capital investments 2.350 - - - - 2350
Total investment assets 233,870 1,145,760 203,049 137,241 - 1,719,920
ECF loan commitments financial
Hability _(139.377) _ - _ - - - (139,377)
Net investr?e_nt assets 94,493 1,145,760 203,049 137,241 - 1,580,543
Other assets/(liabilities)
Cash 192 59,551 2,856 3,409 86,109 152,117
Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets - - - 1,468 3,598 5,068
Corporation tax {1,.841) {1,508) (3759) - {262) {3.936)
Provisions - - - - (300) (300)
Deferred tax 8,566 14 - - 314 8,894
Loans and other borrowings - - - {107,021) (604,264) (711.285)
Amounts owed from group
undertakings 30,554 129,073 (8,213) (32,800) (118,614) -
Amounts owed by shareholder - - - - 525,000 525,000
Net other payables @7y (746 (433) (2228}  (4726) (8,403)
Total Net Assets 131,694 1,332,144 196,934 69 (113,145) 1,547,696

At 31 March 2018 the Company held investments in subsidiaries of £1,589.0m which are eliminated in full on consclidation.
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10. Operating segments (continued)

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2018

Notes to the ronsolidated Financiai statements

Company
plcand Total
BBFL BBI SULCo BBFSL Group
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Investment assets
Loans and receivables
BFP Small Cap - 635 - - 635
Investment Programme - 209,767 - - 209,767
StartUpLoans - - 135,666 - 135,666
Held to maturity investments
Investment Programme - 31,090 - - 31,090
Available-for-sale financial assets
BFP Midcap - 555,558 - - 555,558
BFP Small Cap - 14,114 - - 14,114
Investment Programme - 242,038 - - 242,038
Enterprise Capital Funds 172,388 - - - 172,388
Other venture capital investments 1,695 - - - 1,695
Assets designated at FVTPL
V( Catalyst - 76.243 - - 76,243
UKIF - 131,986 - - 131,986
Derivative financial instruments - L R 0 =
Total investment assets 205,736 1,261,431 135,666 - 1,602,833
ECF loan commitments provision (183.741) - = {issan)
Netinvestmentassets 21,995 1,261,431 135666 - 1,419,092
Other assetsl(liabili'ties)
Cash 6,870 13,580 1,870 41,321 63,641
Property, plant and equipment and
Intangible assets - - 1,584 1,568 3,552
Corporation tax (5,623} (5,730) - - {11,353)
Provisions - - - (120) (120)
Deferred tax 3,791 14 - 148 3,953
Loans and other borrowings - - (116,160) - {116,160)
Amaunts awed from group undertakings 16,126 {11,068} (19,970) 11,942 -
Net other payables (188) (457) (3.321) (4,477) (8.443)
Total Net Assets 45,971 1,257,740 69 50.382 1,354,162

At 31 March 2018 the Company beld investments in subsidiaries of £1,244.3m which are eliminated in full on consclidation.
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11. Cash and cash equivalents
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2019 2018

£000 £Q00
Government Banking Service 134,746 53.038
Commercial banks 17,371 _ 10.603
Total cash and cash equivalents 152,117 63,641
The Group generally maintains a cash balance of at least £50m to fund investments, As at 31 March 2019, the cash
balance was £152.1mwith drawdowns in April and May 2019 of £105.8m. As the majority of the cashis held in the
Government Banking Service there is minimal cost to the Exchequer.
12. Amounts owed by shareholder ~018 2018

£000 £000
Amounts owed by Shareholder 525,000 -

On 31 August 2018 the Group lent £350 million to BEIS, its shareholder, under the terms of a Loan Agreement.
The amount lent is repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate. In the year ending 31 March 2018, £75 million

was repaid under this Loan Agreement.

On15January 2019 the Greup lent a further £250 million to BEIS under the terms of a separate Loan Agreement.
The amount lent is repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate. In the year ending 31 March 2019, £nil was

repaid under this Loan Agreement.

These loans have been classified as FVTPL under IFRS 9 because the contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows
on specitied dates and do not include any payment of interest.

13. Trade and other receivables

2019

£000
Amounts receivable within one year
Trade receivables 340
Accruedincome 7,859
Prepayments 706
Cther receivables 841
Total trade and other receivables 9,746

2018
£000

259
4,146
534
803
5.782

Trade receivables disclosed above are measured at amortised cost. The Directers consider that the carrying amount
of trade receivables approximates to their fair value as they are short term in nature.
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14. \nvestments

Business Finance Partnership

British Business (nvestments Limited
{BBl) manages the Business Finance
Partnership programme.,

The Business Finance Partnership
{BFP) has two strands. The first
strandis the BFP Mid Cap which
invests in funds who iend to medium-
sized businesses with turnover of up
to £500m. All of the BFP Mid Cap
investments were previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financiat assets under IAS 39. Upen
adoption of IFRS 9 by the Group, the
halding in one investment asset was
Classified as an amortised cost asset.
The value of this assetat1 April 2018
was £60.2m. See nate 14.1.4 for
details. The remainder of the BFP Mid
Cap portfolio was classified as FVTPL
upon adoption of IFRS 9. See note
14.2.1 for details,

The second strand is the BFP Small
Cap which invests in debt funds and
non-bank lenders that provide an
alternative source of lending for

smali businesses with turnover up

to £75m. Almost all of the BFF Small
Cap's investments were previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets with the remainder
classified as Loan and receivables
under IAS 39, Upon adoption of IFRS 9
by the Group, those assets previously
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets have been reclassified
as FVTPL, Seenote 14.2.1 for details.
Those assets previously classified

as Loans and receivables have been
reclassified as amortised cost financial
assets. See note 14.1.1 for details,

Investment Programme

BBl manages the Investment
Programme, [t makes commercial
investments that stimulate at least
the same amount of investment from
the private sector, encouraging new
lenders into the market and the
grewth of smalier lenders. BBI's
investments in limited partnerships
through the Investment Programme
were classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets under IAS 39, Upon
adcption of IFRS 9 by the Group,
these assets have been reclassified
as FVTPL. See note 14.2.1 for details.

This programme has provided invoice
discount finance, participated in peer
topeerlending, has provided asset
finance and provided other credit
facilities. This lending was classified
as Loans and receivables under IAS 39
and has beenreclassified as
amortised cost financial assets. See
note 14 1.1 for detaiis.

Through the investment Programme,
BB narticipated in a public issue of Tier
2 fixed rate reset callable subordinated
lozn notes by Shawbrook Bank plc with
aninitial semi-annual coupon of 8%:%.
The issue was listed on the London
Stock Exchange on 28 October 2015,
This investment was classified as

held to maturity under IAS 39 and

has been reclassified as anamortised
cost financial asset. See note 14.1.2
for details.

Notes to the censclidated financial staternents

Venture/Growth

Following the launch of BRPC, the VC
Catalyst programme was closed to
new investment and a new Venture/
Growth programme was set up.
Through this programme, BPC invests
in commercially viable venture and
venture growth capital funds, including
evergreen structures, to support UK
companies with high growth potential
to access the long-term financing they
need to scale up. BPCwill also investin
co-investment opportunities arising
through its portfolic. The Venture/
Growth investments are funded by
BPC following their transfer fram BBl
onkjuly 2018,

These investments were accounted
forand measured at FVTPL under1AS
39. Upon zdoption of IFRS 9 by the
Group these investments remain
classified as FVTPL. See note 14.2.2
for details.

UK Innovation Investment Fund

The UK Innovation Investment Fund
{UKIIF) is funded by BBI following the
acquisition af HM Government's
investment in the Fund on 14 july
2017 UKIIF supports the creation

of viable investment funds targeting
UK high growth technology-based
businesses. It has invested through
two underlying fund of funds, the
UK Future Technology Fund, which
has now ceased making new
investments, and the Hermes
Environmerntal 'mpact Fund.

The UKIF investments were
accaunted for and measured at FVTPL
under IAS 38. Upon adoption of IFRS 9
by the Group these investments
remain classified as FVTPL. See note
14.2.2 for details,
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Enterprise Capital Funds

British Business Finance Limited
("BBFL" invests in Enterprise Capital
Funds (ECFs). ECFs are commercially-
focused funds that bring together
private and public money to make
equity investments in high growth
businesses. BBFL investsinto funds
onterms that improve the sutcome
for private sector investors when
those funds are successful. It does
this by taking an agreed prioritised
return of 3% - 4.5%. Inreturn BBFL
is entitled to less of any remaining
upside gain in excess of the agreed
return, if a fund is successful.

BBFL intentionally makes a trade-off
between the prioritised return and
potential upside gains. Overall, the
terms mean that BBFL expects the
ECFs ta provide a positive return ta
government, but this return will be
lower than that typically sought by a
private sector investor. Thisis in line
with the Group’s strategic abjectives.

The investments which BBFL makes
in ECFs meet the accounting definition
of aloan and by election were
classified as Available-for-sale
financial assets under [AS 39. Any
upside returns which the funds may
generate were separately accounted
Tor as derivatives and measured at
FVTPL. Upon adoption of [FRS 9 by
the Croup, these assets have been
reclassified together as FVTPL.
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Accounting standards require that
these financial assets are held at fair
value, which is the amount that a
private sector investor would pay

for the investments, This means that
forevery ECF investment a fair value
adjustment on initial recagnition is
recorded toreflect the fact that it will
not provide the level of return sought
by a private sector investor, even if

it is providing a positive return. ECF
investments are measured at fair
value on an ongoing basis. See note
14.2.1 for detalls.

In addition, BBFL signs ECF
agreements committing to the
prioritised return and reduced upside
gainin advance of drawdowns. At
the point that BBFL entersinto a new
commitment to previde aloan at
below market rate it recognises a
pravision which itaccounts for as a
FVTPL financial fiability, The pravision
is released when a commitmentis
drawn to reccgnise a reduction in

the liability. See note 19 for details.

Other Venture Capital
investments

BBFL alsc has three other smaller
schemes: Help to Grow funds, Aspire
and the Capital for Enterprise Fund.
These are detailed in note 14.2.1,

Start Up Loans

The Start Up Loans Company lends

to entrepreneurs via a number of
delivery partners. These loans are
made to entrepreneaurs at an interest
rate of 6%. Losses on these loans are
expected tc be between 30% - 40%
of the totalloans advanced, reflecting
the non-commercial nature of the
scheme. This lending was classified as
loans and receivables under IAS 39
and has been classified as amortised
cost financial assets under IFRS 9,

Accounting standards require that
these loans are measured at fair
value oninitial recognition and
subsequently measured at amortised
cost. The fair value adjustment on
initial recognition represents the
difference between the face value
of loans written and the present
value of future expected cash flows
discounted using an appropriate
discount rate.

Accrued interest income and
amortisation of the fair value
adjustmentoninitial recognition are
calculated for each individuat loan.
For presentation purposes these are
presented separately as the accrued
imterestincome is the contractual
interest that will be collected whilst
the fair value adjustment on initial
recognition will be amortised over
the life of the loans.
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As at 31 March 2019
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Amartisation

Opening Fairvalue of fair value
balance adjustment adjustment Expected
under oninitial Accrued oninitial credit loss Closing
IFRS9  Transfers Additions  recognition Repayments Interest  recognition Write-offs allowance balance
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
BFP Smaif Cap 635 - - - (745) 18 - - 94 Z
BFF Mid Cap 60,200 - 22,491 - (30,135} 2.957 - - {81y 5543¢
Investment
Programme 238,508 - 114,478 - {132,764y 16,200 - - (2,.880) 233,547
StartUp Loans 126,210 - 81,153 (18.419) (66,560) 10,591 13.518 (2,364) (9.888) 137,241
Northern
Powerhouse
Investments N - - 5,000 - (153) 153 - - (91 4,909
Total 428,553 - 223,122 (18,419) (230,357) 29,919 13,518 (2.364) (12,846} 431,126
14.1.1. Loans and receivables
As at 31 March 2018, previously classified under (AS 39
Amottisation
Fair value of fair value
adjustment adiustment
Opening Onbusiness oninitial Accrued oninitial Clesing
balance combination Transfers Additions recognition Repayments Interest  recognition  Impairment balance
£000 £000 £000 £000 EQQO £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
BFP Small Cap 2332 - - - - (1,857) 104 - 56 635
Investment
Programme 136,073 - 149 133578 - {66,921) 9,898 - (3,010) 208,767
StartUp Loans - 107,342 - 104983 (36165) (60.026) 5,688 23,069 N {13,231) 135,666
Total 138,405 107,342 149 238,567 (36,165) (128,804) 19,690 23,069 (16,185) 346,068
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14.1.2. Held to maturity investments
As at 31 March 2018, previously classified under 1AS 39

Fair value
adjustment
Opening on initial Accrued Closing
balance recognition Repayments Interest balance
£000 E£COO £000 £000 £000
Investment Program__r_ne - 31080 - (2.550) 2,550 7 31,050
Total 31,090 - (2,550) 2,550 31,090

The above asset represents an investment in fixed rate reset callable suberdinated loan notes with an initial semi-annual
coupon of 8¥:% issued by Shawbrook Bank plc.

14.1.3. Available-for-sale financial assets
As at 31 March 2018, previously classified under 1AS 39

Opening Accrued Closing

balance Additions Repayments Interest Impairment balance

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

@P MidiCaL 35,256 29,94_2 _ (6,656) ____1,932777 162 60,636
Total 35,256 29,942 (6.656) 1,932 162 60,636

14.1.4, Reconciliation of opening 2019 amortised cost assets balances under IFRS 9 with closing
201BIAS 39 balances

Classification Closing balance Opening balance
31 March 2018 31 March 2018 Remeasurement on 1 April 2018
Note {1AS 39) {IAS39)  adoptionof IFRS 9 {IFRS 9)
Loans and
BFP Small Cap receivables 635 - 635
BFP Mid Cap Available-for-sale 60,636 (436) €0.200
Loans and
Investment Programme receivables 209,767
- Held tc maturity 31,090 7 -
240,857 (2.349) 238,508
Loans and
Start Up Loans 7 receivables 135,666 (6,456) 7 129210
3 (9,241) 428,553

The Remeasurement on adoption of IFRS 9 value of £6.5m incorporates the following:
— anincrease of impairment of £22.9m on transition ta IFRS 9

- adecreaseinvaluation of £11.8m attributable to the discovery of a post balance sheet errorin respect of the year
ended 31 March 2018. In accordance with tAS 8, Management have not restated the prior period comparative.
The error however has no impact cn Croup net assets as it is of fset by a corresponding release of the capital grant;

- anincrease invaluation of £28.2m resulting from an enhanced underlying fair value madelling methodology.
Management considar this to be a change in accounting estimate as defined in IAS 8 and have therefore applied
it prospectively as at 1 April 2018. it is not however possible for Management to estimate the effect of this estimate
in future periods,
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14.2. Investments held at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9

As at 31 March

BFP Mid Cap
BFP small Cap
Investment
Programme
UKIIF
Venture/
Growth
Enterprise
Capital Funds
Help to Grow
Funds

Aspire
Capitol for
Enterprise
Fund

Direct
investments
Total

2019
Opening
balance

under IFRS 9
£000

454,922
14,114

242,038
131,386

76.243

204,041

903

792

1,165,039

Transfers
£000

(12,891)

12,816

75

Additions
£000

28,415
129

80,700
8,569

115,980

92,060

1,368

17159

348,380

Fair value
adjustment
oninitial

recognition Repayments

£000 £000

- (114,705)

- (1,857)

- (45,239)

- (35,320)

- (12,284}

{45,870) {63,312}

- (360)

_ (45,870) (274,077)

Fairvalue
mavements
£000

27,426
505

7,646
18,530

19,035

39,697

(375)

(37)

(17.100)

95,322

Impairment
£000

Closing
balance
£000

- 436,058

- 296,961
- 123,765

- 203,049
- 226,611
- 1,368
- 528
- 395

—_ __ 5%
- 1,288,794

Repayments are received when a fund has exited or partially exited an underlying investment and the Group receives
its share of the proceeds due to the contractual obligations of the fund.

On 26 March 2019 the Group agreed to sell to the Nuclear Liabilities Fund 20% of its holding in the Venture/Growth
assets with an effective date of sale of 1 April 2019, As required under IFRS 5 the Directors have assessed that
this proportion of these assets were held for sale at the balance sheet date and have disclosed them separately

on the face of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Assets held for sale at 31 March 2018 are £40.6m
{2018; £nil) and relate only to Venture/Growth assets, These assets are all held within BRPC and are measured

at fair value less costs to sell, Further information is disclosed in note 28.
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14.2.1. Available-for-sale financial assets
At 31 March 2018, previously classified under IAS 39

Amortisation

Fairvalue of fairvalue
adjustment adjustment  Foreign
Opening aninitial Accrued  Fairvalue oninitial exchange Ciosing
balance Transfers Additions  racognition  Repayments interest movements recegnition gains Impairment batance
£000 E£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 [2alele} £000 £000 £000 £000
Limited
Partnership
Investments
BFP Mid Cap 551,816 - 20,804 - {10B,320) 25,057 5,565 - - - 494,977
BFP Small Cap 37816 (19,874} - - (5,919) 725 632 - 353 321 14,114
Investment
Programme 121577 19,?25 118,959 - (25.883) 12,966 481 - 402 (2,189) 242,038_
711,209 (149) 139,763 - (144,122) 38,748 6,738 - 755 (1,868) 751,074
Venture Capital
Investments
Enterprise
Capital Funds 171,227 - B4,307 (32300) (45554) 5,934 - 13,661 - (8,887) 172,388
Bridges 1,055 - - - (1,055} - - - - - -
Aspire 1,660 - - - (16) - - - - {741) Q03
Capital for
EnterprisefFund 1815 - - R (=t R ¢ = R - 79
175,757 - 64,307 (32,300) (47,466) 9,934  (182) 13,661 - (9,628) 174,083

Total 886,966 (1749}‘204,070 {(32,300) (191,588)48,682 6,556 13,661 7557(11,496) 925,157
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14.2.2. Assets designated at fair value through profit or loss under 1A5 39
At 31 March 2018, previousiy dassified underiAS 33

Notes to the consclidated financial statements

Opening Fair value Closing
balance Additions Repayments movements balance
£000 £000 £00D £000 £0D0
V( Catalyst 29,522 43,323 (1.009) 4,407 76,243
QKIIF 7 , 7 . ) - 141,629 (22.470) 12,827 131,98_6_
Total 29,522 184,952 (23.479) 17.234 208,229
14.2.3. Derivative financial instruments
At 31 March 2018, previously classified under IAS 39 . . .
Opening Fair value Closing
balance Repayments movements balance
£000 £000 £000C £000
Entgp_r_ise Capital Funds 7 _ B 24,3719 _ (5.671) 13,005 31,653 )
Total 24,319 (5.671) 13,005 31.653

Derivatives represent any upside returns which the Enterprise Capital Funds may generate and were accounted for

separately under IAS 39 from the undertying investment asset shown in note 14.2.1.

15, Property, plant and equipment
As at 31 March 2019

teasehold Fixtures &
improvement IT equipment Fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At Aprit 2018 1,149 1,538 78 2,765
Additicns 1771 1,043 - 2,814
Disposals 7 - 48y - ~ . (48)
At3LMarch2019 2874 2581 78 5,533
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At1 Aprit 2018 (268) (782) (45) (1.095)
Charge for the year (333) (424) (19) (776)
Dispogals 46 - - 46
At 31 March 2018 {555) {1,206} {64) (1.825)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2019 2,319 1,375 14 3,708
At 31 March 2018 881 756 33 1.670
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15. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
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Asat 31 March 2018 .
Leasehald Fixtures &
imprevement IT equipment Fittings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation
ALl Aprit 2017 192 903 - 1,085
On business ccmbination 48 151 80 279
Additions 909 484 - 1,393
Disposals - - () (2)
At 31 March 2018 © 1149 1,538 78 2,765
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At1 April 2017 {116) (454) - (570)
On business combination (21) {77 (33 (131)
Charge for the year B - (13 (251) (12) (394)
AL31March 2018 L (268)  (/82) (45 (L095)
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2018 881 756 33 1,670
At 31 March 2017 76 445 - 525
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16. Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise purchased software,

17. Trade and other payables 2016 s018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 1,508 554
VAT and scrial security 604 1,257
Accrued expenditure 12387 7420
Other payahles 1,739 1,871
Deferred scheme income 743 2.3c1

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Otherpayabtes . L 807
1,168 807
Total trade and other payables 18,149 14,225

The Directars cansider that the carrying amount of trade payables aypruximates to their fairvalue.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

18. Provisions
Year ended 31 March 2019

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2019 131

Loan Dilapidation
cormmitments provision Total

£000 EOOD EOQD
Balance at 31 March 2018 {(under IAS 37 and 39) 183,741 120 183,861
Reclassification on transition tc 'IFR5 9 (183,741) - (183,741)
Balance at 1 April 2018 (under IAS 37) - 170 120
Provided in year - 300 300
Released in year - {120) (120}
Balance at 31 March 2019 - 300 300
Of which:
Current - - -
Non-current - 300 300
Year ended 31 March 2018

Loan Dilapidation

commitments provision Total

£000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2017 146,743 120 146,863
Provided in year on new ECFs 71,321 - 71,321
Releasedin year (34,323) - (34,323)
Balance at 31 March 2018 183,741 120 183,861
Of which:
Current 40,058 120 40,178
Non-current 143,683 - 143,683

The 31 March 2018 balznce includes a dilapidation: provision under }AS 37 anc & loan commitments provision under IAS 39,
Ontransition 10 iFRS 9 the loan commitments provision has been reclassified as a financial liability at FVTPL (Note 19),
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19, ECF loan commitment financial fiability

2019 2018

£000 E0QO
Balance at 1 April following reclassification on transition to IFRS 9 183,741 -
Provided in year on new ECFs - -
Released in year (44,364) -
Balance at 31 March 139,377 -
Of which:
Current 35,877 -
Non-current 103,500 -

Non-current amounts relate to undrawn loan commitments where, based on historic and forecast information, it is not
anticipated the commitments will be utilised with the next 12 months. Civen the uncertain nature of timings of the
drawdowns from ECFs the Directors believe this is the best estimate at the talance sheet date.

When a commitment is drawn, the loan commitment s released and a separate fair value adjustment on the resulting
investment is recognised in net losses on investments in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Net income,
torefiect the difference between the fair value and the amount drawn,

20. Loans and other borrowings

2019 2018

£000 £000
tnsecuredloans 619,158 14.894
Cepitaigrants . %l 101266
Totalloans and other borrowings 711,285 116,160

The amounts falling due after one year of the unsecured loans at 31 March 2019 were £619.2m (2018: £7m),
No amounts are due after one year at 31 March 2019 in respect of the capitai grants (2018: £nil), The capital grants
have been classified as a current liability as they are repayable an demand, in whaole orin part, under certain conditions.

The unsecured loans include a term facility of £12m provided by BE!S to The Start Up Loans Company on 24 February
2014 which is repayable on 17 December 2020. The balance of this laan facility at 31 March 2019 was £7.9m (2018
£7.9m). A further term facility of £10m was provided on 17 December 2015 and is repayable on 17 December 2020.
The balance of this term facllity at 31 March 2019 was £7m (2018: £7m),

On 23 August 2018 the Group received a loan of £350m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund which is repayable in full
on 23 August 2020. This loan accrues interest at arate of 2% per annum.

On 28 December 2018 the Group received a second loan of £250m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund for the purpose

of making investments an behalf of the Nuclear Liabilities Fund after 1 April 2019, The term of this loan is 4 years

with the value reduced as the Group makes investment nayments on thie Nuclear Ligbilities Fund's behalf. Any amaunt
unutilised at 28 December 2022 will be repaid on this date. This loan accrues interest at a rate of 2% per annum for the
first 2 years decreasing to 1.5% for the remaining life of the loan.

Ouring the year repayments of £nil (2018: £nil) were made against these unsecurad [oans.

During the year the Group received capital grants of £4.1m (2018 £25m) and wrote down the value of capital grants
by £7.3m (2018: £16.5m). The fair value of the capital grants was written down by a further £6.5m following the adoption
of IFRS S on 1 April 2018,
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21, Contingent liabilities and indemnities

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 473A Subsidiary companies. conditions for
exemption from oudit of the Companies Act 2006 which exempts gualifying companies from the audit of their individual
accounts for a financial year, The exemption is in respect of the following subsidiaries:

Subsidiary name Registered No.
British Business Finance Limited 03091928
British Business Financial Services Limited 08174621
Capital for Enterprise Limited 06179047
Capital for Enterprise Fund Managers Limited 06826072
Capital for Enterprise (GP) Limited SC354499
British Business Aspire Holdco Limited 09263859
The Start Up Loans Company 08117656

As required by the Act, the British Business Bank plc:

~ Guarantees gil outstanding fiabilities to which the subsidiary companies are subject at the end of the financiai year
ta which the gudrantee relates, and until they are satisfied in full; and

- Asserts that the guarantee is enforceable against the British Business Bank plc by any person to whom the subsidiary
companies are liable in respect of those liabllities.

Under the Croup's Help to Grow financial qguarantee programme, the Group has entered in to financial guarantee
agreements of £30m {£018: £60m). The Group has guaranteed 75% of eligible lending to SMEs under these agreements
and a counter guarantee is in piace that guarantees 50% of the Group's 75% of eligible lending. As at 31 March 2019 the
amount lent under these financial guarantee agreements was £3.2m (2018: £1.8m). During the year ending 31 March
2018 ane of the guarantee agreements totalling £30 million has expired with no amounts lent under it. Since the balance
sheet date, the remaining agreement totalling £30m has expired with no further amounts being able to be lent under it.
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22. Capital and other commitments

22.1. Capital commitments
The Group had the following undrawn commitments at the balance sheet date in relation to its existing investment

portfolio: 2019 2018
£000 £000

British Business Investments Limited

BFP Mid Cap 143,968 211,778

investment Programme 285,080 242,108

UKIIF 24,721 34,346

British Patient Capital Limited
Venture/Growth 413,506 158,648

Venture Capital Solutions

Enterprise Capital Funds 265,108 368,149

Other

Northern Powerhouse Investments Ltd 45,000 50,000

Mid'ands Engine Investmertsttd - 32500 32500
1,209,883 1,137,529

22.2. Operating lease commitments

The Bank’s occupation of the 5th and 6th flaors at its registered office at Steel City House, West Street, Sheffield 51 2GQ
is governed by a 10-year lease agreement covering the period from 9 October 2017 to 8 October 2027 for an annual
rental cost of £224,000 with an option to break the agresment after five years.

The Bank entered into a lease from 1 June 2018 to 8 October 2027 to rent the 4th floar of Steel City House, West Street,
Sheffield, S1 2G0 for an annual rental cost of £199,000 and including a rent-free period of 14 months.

The Bank's occupation of office space at 33 Kingsway, London, WCZ2B BUF was governed by a Memarandum of Terms
of Occupation which ended on 3 Oecember 2018,

The Bank entered into a 10-year lease from 11 May 2018 torent the Znd floor of Salisbury Square House, 8 Salisbury
Square, London, EC4 for an annual rental cost of £1,232,725 and inciuding a rent-free period of 30 manths.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, lease payments of £3.2m were recognised as an expense in the Consolidated
Statermnent of Comprenensive Net Income and the Bank incurred £0.9m In expenses in relation to occupying the offices
{including service charges, rates and utilities).

The future minimum aperating lease payments are as follows:

<1lyear 1-5years >Syears Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2019 1.656 6,623 6,553 . 14,832

At 31 March 2018 ' 574 1,047 1177 2,798
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23. Share capital
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2018 2018
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of £1 each: 1.496,407,924 1,371,407,935

£000 £000
Brought forward 1,371,408 1,071,408
Sharesissued for cash 125,000 300,000
Carried forward 1,456,408 1,371,408

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry nc right to fixed income.

24. Subsidiaries and other significant undertakings

The Group consists of a parent company, British Business Bank plc, incorporated in the UK, and a number of subsidiaries
held directly by the British Business Bank plc, which operate and are incorperated in the United Kingdam.

The subsidiary undertakings of the parent company are shown below. The capital of each entity depends on its nature
and consists of ordinary shares. All the subsidiary undertakings have the same registered address being, Steel City
House, West Street, Sheffield S1 2GQ with the exception of The Start Up Loans Company whose registered office is

71-75 5helton Street, Covent Garden, London WC2H 91Q.

Country of
Subsidiary Incorporation
British Business Investments Limited” UK
BBB Fatient Capital Holdings Limited UK
British Patient Capital Limited” UK
British Business Finance Limited UK
British Business Financial Services UK
Limited
Capital for Enterprise Limited” UK
Capital for Enterprise Fund Managers UK
Limited*
Capital for Enterprise (GP) Limited” UK
British Businass Aspire Holdco Limited” UK
The Start Up Loans Company” UK

*Indicates investments are not directly heid in these campanies.

Nature of Business

Makes commercial investments into
providers of finance to smaller businesses
plus venture capital fund investments
Holding company

Makes cammercial investments into
venture and growth capital

Manages and invests into schemes on
behalf of the Group

Administers investment schemes on behalf
of the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy

Holding company
Acts as fund manager of Capital for
Enterprise L.P.

Acts as general partner to Capital for
Enterprise L.P.

Provides equity investments to women
led SMEs

Provides loans to entrepreneurs

Shares held
by the Group

100%

100%

100%

160%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

N/A

The StartUp Loans Company is ¢ company limited by guarantee af which British Business Finance Limited is the sole member.

Details of the subsidiaries’ results eitherindividually or as part of a consolidated group, including their net assets as at the
balance sheet date and their profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2019, are provided in the segmental reperting note 1C.
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24, Subsidiaries and other significant undertakings {continued)

The British Business Bank Group also has the following significant holdings in undertakings other than subsidiaries.

Countryinwhichit  Class of share held Proportion held
Name isincorporated by the Group by the Group
BMS Finance S AR.L.
Registered address:
55 Avenue Pasteur, L-2311, Luxembourg Luxembaourg Mot classified 49.8%
Industrial Lending 1 (Boost Fund)
Registered address:
6 Rue Adolphe, 1-1116, Luxembourg Luxembourg Class A shares 46.6%
Pricca Sterling Corporate Bond Fund!
Registered address;
70 Sir Jlohn Rogerson's Quay, Dublin, Ireland Ireland Not classified 67.7%
VRC Ventures Limited
Registered address:
Cardiff House, Tilling Road, London, NWZ 1L}, UK UK Ordinary shares 28.4%
Muzinich UK Private Debt Fund
Registered address;
44 Avenue |BK, L1855, Luxeiibuurny Luxembourg Mot classified 20.7%

1. Pricoa’s fatest financial year end was 30 june 2019, The fund does not produce separate accounts and therefare figuras for the fund are not
available.

25, Structured entities

A structured entity is an entity in which vating or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding control.
Structured entities are generally created to achieve a narrow and well-defined objective with restrictions around
their ongoing activities,

Aninterest in a structured entity is any form of contractual or non-contractual involvement which creates variability
inreturns arising from the performance of the entity for the Group. Such interests include debt and equity investments
and investment management agreements.

Depending on the Group’s power over the activities of the entity and its exposure to, and ability to influence, its own
returns, it may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsar or have exposure to such an entity but not
consolidate it, As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 the Group does not consalidate any interests in structured entities
as the Group is not cansideread to have control ar significant influence over these entities due to the way these entities
are structured.

The nature and extent of the Group’s interest in structured entities and its maximum exposure is summarised below.

2019 2018
fnterestin Limited Partnerships £000 £000
Available-for-sale financial assets - 875157
Assets at fair value through profit or loss under (AS 39 - 208,229
Assets at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS € 1,288,735 -

Total assets —1,288,735 ) _1,13i3,3£
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26, Financial instruments

26.1 Categories of financial instruments

The following table analyses the Group's financial assets and liabilities in accordance with the categories of financial
instruments in IFRS 9. Prior year comparatives have been provided as classified under IAS 39,
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Assets Liabilities
held at held at Liabilities Non-financia!
Assets held amortised amortised held at assets and
atFVTPL cost cost FVTPL liabilities Total
At 31 March 2019 Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Property, plant and
equipment 15 - - - - 3,708 3,708
Intangible assets 16 - - - - 1,358 1,358
Amortised cost investment
assets 141 - 431,126 - - - 431,126
Investment assets held
at FVTFL 14.2 1.288,794 - - - - 1,288,794
Trade and other
receivables 13 525,000 9,040 - - - 534,040
Prepayments 13 - - - - 706 706
Cash and cash equivalents 11 - 152,117 - - - 152,117
Deferred tax 9 - - - - 8,894 8.894
Total assets 1,813,794 592,283 - - 14,666 2,420,743
Liabilities
Trade and other payakles 1/ - - (17,545) - {504) (18,14S)
Corporation tax 9 - - - - (3,936) {3.936)
l.oans and other
borrowings 20 - - (615,158) {92,127) - (711,285)
ECF loan commitments 15 - - - (139,377) - (139.377)
Provisions ) 18 - - - - (300) {(300)
Total liabilities - - (636,703) (231,504) (4,840} (873,047)
Net assets 1,813,794 592,283 (636,703) (231,504) 9,826 1,547,696




138 British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2019 Notes to the consolidated financial statements

26.1 Categories of financial instruments (continued)

Liabilities Non-

Assets Held to Availabla held at financial

heidat Loansand maturity forsale amortised assetsand

FVTPL receivables investments assets cost liabilities Total
At 31 March 2018 Note £000 £000 £000 E000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Property, plant and
equipment 15 - - - - - 1,670 1,670
Intangible assets 16 - - - - - 1,882 1,882
L.oans and receivables 1411 - 346,068 - - - - 346,068
Held to maturity
investments 14.1.2 - - 31,090 - - - 31,080
Available-for-sale
financial assets 1421 - - - 985,793 - - 985,793
Designated at FVTPL 4272 208,229 - - - - - 208,229
Derivatives 14.2.3 31,653 - - - - - 31,653
Trade and other
receivables 13 - 5,248 - - - - 5,248
Prepayments 13 - - - - - 534 534
Cash and cash equivalents 11 - 63.641 - - - - 63,641
Deferred tax 9 - - - - - 3,953 3,953
Total assets 239,882 414,957 31,090 985,793 - 8.039 1,679,761
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 17 - - - - {12,973) (1,52}  (14,275)
Corporation tax 9 - - - - - (11,353) (11.353)
Loans and other
barrowings 20 - - - - (116,160) - (115,160)
Provisions % _ - - - . - (\B37ah__ (1200 (83861
Total liabilities ' - - - - (312,874) (12,725) (325,599)

Net assets 239,882 414,957 31,090 985,793 (312,874) (4.686)1,354,162
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26.2. Fair value measurements

The information set out below
provides information about how the
Group determine the fair values of
various financial assets and financial
liahilities. Fair value is the price that
would bereceived to sellan assetor
paid to transfera liability in an orderly
transaction between market
participants at the measurement
date, reqardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique.

For financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised
into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
1o which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair
vatue measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

- Levell fair value measurements
are those derived from guoted
prices {unadjusted) in active
markets;

- LevelZ fair value measurements
are those derived from inputs other
than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived
trom prices); and

— Leyei 3 fairvalue measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for
the asset orliability that are not
based on abservable market data
{unobservable inputs).

The Group’s investment partfolio
consists of assets carried at amortised
cost and fair value.
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The Group's financial assets are all
classified as Level 3 assets, except
for one amortised cost investments
and one FVTPL investment which
are classified as Level 1 assets,

During the year ending 31 March 2019
the fair value of investment assets
held at fair value through profit or
loss increased by £95.3 million taken
1o the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income, Fair value
impairments or inftial recognition

of amortised costinvestments

of £18.4m were taken to the
{onsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Net Income.

During the year ending 31 March 2018,
the fair value of Available-for-sale
financiai assets increased by £6.7
million taken to Other Comprehensive
Income. The fair value of derivative
financial instruments increased by
£13.0 million taken to the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Net
income. The fair value of assets held
as at fair value through profitor loss
increased by £17.2m taken to the
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive NetIncome,

Fair value of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair valueon a
recurring basis

Investments held at fair value
through profit of loss (FVTPL)

Forall FVTPL assets, except for the
Enterprise Capital Funds anad the one
Level 1 assetat FVTPL, the
investment valuation, a net asset
valuation (NAV) which is determined
on a fair value basis, is determined by
investment managers on aregular
basis (monthly or quarterty).

fraet

3

0

The Directors review the investment
valuaticn reports periodically and
are satisfied that they provide an
appropriate measure of fair value
atthereporting date,

The Group has also provided two loans
to its shareholder which at 31 March
2019 had a total value of £525.0m
{2018 £nil). These loans have been
classified as FVTPL. The loans are
repayable cndemand and have a
zero-interestrate. The Directors
consider that the credit risk for these
loans is minimal given the credit rating
of the borrower and that the value of
the principal outstanding represents
the fair value,

Enterprise Capital Funds

For the purposes of valuation, the
Enterprise Capital Fund investments
are bifurcated intc adebtand a
derivative element, which are
disclosed together, The primary
valuation methodology used for the
debt element of investmentsis the
discounted cash flow method. Fair
value is estimated by deriving the
present value of the investment using
reasonable assumptions of expected
future cash flows and the estimated
repayment value and date, discounted
at the appropriate risk-adjusted
discount rate The discountrateis
estimated with reference to the
market risk-free rate and arisk-
adjusted premium.

Fach investment has an annually
reviewed modeal, which for each
valuation assessment is updated for
actual asset performance and key
assumption and input changes.
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26.2. Fair value measurements (continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

Enterprise Capital Funds also contain an equity derivative, The derivatives are valued using the Black-Scholes model.

The key inputs used in the derivative valuation are:

Input
Net amount drawn and fund vaiuation as at 31 March 2019

Time to fund exit - ranging from 0-10 years

Volatility - ranging from 26% to 30%

Dividend yield - ranging from 3.0% to 4.5%
Risk free rate

Assumptions indeterminingtheinput

Reparted by fund managers.

Assessed separately for each fund based on remaining
investment period and estimated timetable for fund
exits.

The VIX and the VXN indexes have beenused as a
proxy for the expected volatility fer non-sector
specific and technology specific funds respectively.
Set to equal the contractual return which funds must
pay before any upside on the option is realised.
Derived from UK Government bonds.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value gnarecurring basis
Set out below is a comparison by class of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial assets and financial

liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fairvalue
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets at amortised cost
Loans and receivables
BFP Smali Cap - - 635 635
Investment Programme - - 209,767 209,767
Start Up Loans - - 135,666 116,515
Held to Maturity Investments - - 31,090 33,279
Amartised cost
BFP Small Cap 2 ’ - -
BFP Mid Cap 55,4372 419,849 - -
Investment Programme 233,542 237.099 - -
Start Up Loans 137,241 144731 - -
_Northern Powerhouse Investments 499 5000 - -
431126 436,681 377,158 360,196
Financial liabilities at amortised
cost
Unsecured loans 619,158 619,158 14,894 14,854
Capital grants - L 82127 92127  1olgee 10L266
711,285 711,285 116,160 116,160

Financial assets at amortised cost are classed as Level 3 assets excapt for one investment that is publicly listed.
Unsecured Ioans and capital grants are classed as Level 3 liabilities.
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StartUp Leans

Start Up Loans to entreprengurs

are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and are not
guotedin an active market. Loans are
recognised when cash is advanced and
initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised
costaver the term of the loan,

For the estimation of fair value at the
reporting date, the Group has utilised
a future expected cash flow madel
whichis based on the recent past
performance for similar loans,

The future expected cash flows
derived from the model are
discounted using an apprapriate
discount rate which has been
calculated by taking the 5-year
median corporate debt rates for Caa/C
ratedicans. This informaticn has been
sourced frem Mcody's market analysis.
Start Up Loans are classed as Level 3
assets based on the valuation
techniques used to determine the fair
value at the reporting date, The fair
value of Start Up Loans is sensitive

to changes in the discount rate and

to thanges in expected cash flows
arising from the actual and future
expected performance of the loans.
The talrvalus of Start Up Loans is
sensitive to changes in the discount
rate and to changes in @xpected cash
flews arising from the actual and
future expected performance of the
loans. A 2 percentage pointincrease
inthe discount rate as a result of
movements in corporate dedt rates
for Caa/Crated loans or LIBOR could
lead to approximately £4.5m decrease
infairvalue,
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BFP Small Cap, BFP Mid Cap and
Investment Programme

Loans at amortised cost provided
through the BFP Small Cap, the BFF Mid
Cap and the Investment Programme
comprise both fixed rate and floating
rate investments with an average
duration of not more than five years.
The Directors have assessed that the
changes ininterestrates and in credit
spreads and the associated impact

on the fair value of these assets since
they were originated is not material
t0 the Group's results. The Directors
consider the carrying value of the
investments measured at amortised
cost tobe areasonable representation
of the fair value of these assets at

31 March 2G19 and 31 March 2018.
BFP Small Cap, BFP Mid Cap and
Investment Programme amortisad
costassets are classed as Level 3
assets in the fair value hierarchy.

Unsecuredioans and capital grants

The carrying value and fair value of
unsecured loans reflects the amount
at which the Group expects to settle
its Habilities with BE!S and the Nuclear
Liabilities Fund respectively. The
carrying vatue and fair value of the
BEIS capital grant are equivalent
because the grant has no maturity
and is repayable on demand, in whole
orin part, under certain conditions.

Liabilities held at FYTPL

The fair value of the capital grants
repayable 1o BEIS are equivalent

to their nominal value because the
grants have no maturity date and
may become repayable on demand.
inwhole orin part, under certain
circumstances,

The ECF loan commitments are part
of a group of financial assets and
financial liabilities that are managed,
and their performance evatuated on

a fair value basis, and information
about the group is provided internally
on that basis to the entity’s key
management personnel. As permitted
under !FRS 9, an election has been
made to measure the financial liaaility
arising from the loan commitments

at FVTPL. The fair vaiue of each
coemmitment is calculated by
discounting future cashflows using

a discount rate which is adjusted

to take account of the credit risk.
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26.3. Financial risk
management

The Group has exposure toa number
of financial risks through the conduct
of its operations. Details of the
Group's risk management structure
are provided in the Risk Management
section of the Strategic Report, This
note presents infermation about the
nature and extent of risks arising
from the financial instruments.

The Group has exposure to the
following risks from its use of financial
Instruments;

— Credit and Investment risk
— Marketrisk

— Liquidity risk

Creditrisk and investment risk
Credit and investment risk is the risk

of loss to the Group from the failure

of clients, customers or counterparties
to fully honour their obligations to the
Group, including the whole and timely
payment of principal, interest,
collateral and other receivables and the
risk of loss due to a fallin the value of
equity investments or adverse credit
spread movements, Credit riskincludes
settlement risk, when a counterparty
fails to settle their side of atransaction,
and concentration risk. Credit risk may
arise in any of the Group's assets
where there is the potential for default
including assets held at amortised cost
and FVTPL investments with a
contractual repayment.

Assessments of credit and investmernt
risk are carried out as part of the
investment approval process and is
revisited on an ongoing hasis as part
of the Group's portfolio management
pracess, With respect to Start Up
Loans, all loans to entreprenaurs are
on an unsecured basis and the credit
risk is the risk that an entrepreneur
will default on their cantractual
obligations to make repayments
resulting in financial loss to the

Group. To manage this, the Executive
Committee approves the lending policy
for Start Up Loans and all changes to it.
All loan applications are assessed with
refarence to the lending palicy in force
at the time. Subsequently [vans are
reqularly reviewed for any factors
that may indicate that the likelihood
of repayment has changed. During
the year there have beenno
noteworthy changes in the credit

risk management procedures,

As part of the Risk Appetite process
the Group undertakes stress scenario
modelling an its portfalic. Severe but
plausible stressed scenarios featuring
significant asset value corrections

on the fair value of investments and
heightened portfolio defaults were
applied to planned deplayment and
stock levals in each Programme within
the Bank. The general approach is that
these scenarios are chosen on the
basis that they are as severe asa

1in 20-year downside scenario (i.e.
the worst year in the past 20 years).
The output of this exercise reflects
the risk undertaken by the Group
operating in underserved finance
markets and demonstrates that the
Group would suffer significant losses
if such a scenario was to materialise,
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The Group also undertook a stress
test based upon the Bank af England
(BOE) Annual Cyclical Scenario
Stress Testing guidelines, This was
undertaken by analysing which UK
macroeconomic variables suggested
by the BOE would have animpact on
the Bank's credit and investment risk
exposures and then evaluating how
changes inthese variables overa
S-year time horizon would impact on
creditand market value losses on the
Group's portfolio,

The findings of this exercise showed
that if the UK economy were ta go
through a macroeconomic downside
scenario as prescribed by the BOE's
Annual Cyclical Scenario within the
next financial year, the Bank could
incur additional credit and investment
losses of £215m {equivalent to ¢.8%
of the Bank’s average capital depleyed
between 2019-2023) cver the next
five years,

These stress testing outcames were
considered by the Board and also
communicated to our stakehalders.
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Maximum credit risk exposure

Maximum Net Maximum Net
exposure Coliateral exposure exposure Collateral exposure
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 EQQO £000 £000 £000
Cash and cash equivalents 152,117 - 152117 63,641 - £3.641
Amounts owed by shareholder 525,0G0 - 525,000
Trade and other receivables 9,746 - 9,746 5782 - 5,78¢
Amortised costinvestments 431,126 93,770 337,356 - - -
Investments held at FVTPL 1,288,794 - 1,288,794 - - -
LLoans and receivables - - - 346,068 121,370 224,698
Held to maturity investments - - - 31,090 - 31,09C
Available for sale financial assets - - - 985,793 - £85,793
Assets designated at FVTPL - - - 208,229 - 208,229
D_e_riv;ative financial instruments - - - 31,653 - 31,653
Total 2,406,783 93,770 2,313,013 1,672,256 121,370 1,550,886

The Group through its applicable delivery partners has the ability to call on collateral in the event of a default of the
counterparty by way of calling on the asset for which the finance has been provided. The collateral disclosed in the table
relates in full to loans provided in relation to asset backed finance.

The maximum exposure is the carrying value of the financial assets in tha Consclidated Statement of Financial Position.
The carrying value of the investments in each class of financial asset is detailed in section 26.2 of this note and in note 14,

Creditrisk rating and loss allowance
The CGroup has the following assets subject to expected credit loss impairments:
— Trade receivables;

— Assets held at amortised cost;

— (ashand cash equivalents,

Trade and other receivables

Impairment on trade and other receivables has been measured on the 12-month expected loss basis reflecting the short
maturities of the exposures. An expected credit loss has not been recognised in the accounts as it is not material.

Assets held at amortised cost

The Group’s investments are assessed by the Group's Valuation Committee. The Group produces credit risk ratings for
its investments based upon the estimated Probability of Default and Loss Given Defautt of that investment.
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26.3. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

The following table presents an analysis of the credit quality of assets held at amortised cost, which were previously
classified as Loans and receivables, Available-for-sale, or Held to maturity. It indicates whether assets were subject
to al2-month ECL or lifetime ECL allowance, and whether they were credit-impaired.

As at 31 March 2019 Stagel Stage2 Stage 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Low risk 5,000 - - 5,000
Medium risk 223,559 - - 223,559
High risk 201,738 15,313 - 217,051
Defaulted financial assets - - - bBlBE 66168
Total gress carrying amounts 430,257 15,313 66,168 511.778
Lossallowance (06804 (8B7Y)  (BLOBO)  (BOBS52)
Carrying amount 419,396 b.642 5,088 431,126
The movement in the allowance for assets held at amortised cost during the year was as follows,

Stagel Stage?2 Stage 3 Total

£000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2018 per IAS 39 42,249
Adjustment on initial application
offfRSS 3893 384 V750 25557
Balance at 1 April 2018 per IFRS 9 10,673 10,445 46,688 £7.806
Remeasurement? (10,308) 3,163 11,542 4,397
Transfer between stages (1,594) (3,162) 4,756 -
Financial assets repaid (672) (1.775) {1,306) (4,353)
New financial assets acquired 12,802 = 1Bz
Balance at 31 March 2019 10,901 8,671 61,080 80,652

1. Remeasurementinciudes credit risk changes as aresult of significant increases in credit risk and changes in model inputs and assumptions

The Group has undertaken sensitivity analysis of the key inputs to ECL impairment provision models. Due to the current
benign ecenomic environment, this analysis has concentrated on the downside impact on ECL provision levels:

— The potential impact of ascribing 100% probability to the worst-case economic scenario (equivalent to around

350% PD increase) could increase provisions by £41.0m.

— The potential impact of inaccurately modelled PD input with a sensitivity of 2 1-notch downgrade on a granular
PD rating scale, equating to L5x multiple on all the performing toan PD inputs, could increase provisions by £7.3m.

- The potential impact of inaccurately modelled LGE input for the ECL calculations with a sensitivity of a 1-notch
downgrade on a granular LGD rating scale, equating to a range of LGD inputincreases from 5% to 30% depending

on the portfolic, could increase provisions by £23.4m.
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Cashand cash equivalents

The Greup held cash and cash
equivalents of £152.1m as at 31 March
2019 (2018 £63.6m). Thecash and
cash equivalents are held with banks
and financial institutions which

are rated AA- to AA+ based on

S&P ratings.

The Group considers that cash and
tash equivalents have a low cradit risk
based on the external credit ratings
of the holding parties, As such, an
expected credit loss has not been
recognised in the accounts,

Marketrisk

Market Risk is the risk of direct or
indirect losses that arise from
fluctuations in the values of, or
income from, assets arin movements
in interest or exchange rates or credit
spreads. The Group recognises market
risk arising from an inability to exit

an investment within the intended
time frame,

Interest rate risk

The Group's investmentsinclude a
combination of fixed and variable rate
Joans. interest rate risk is regularly
monitored to ensure that the mix of
variable and fixed rate borrowing is
appropriate. The Group does not use
derivatives to hedge interest rate risk,

LIBOR sensitivity of the Group's

investments is estimated is as follows;

-~ Theimpact of a1 percentage point
ingrease in the interest rate
applicable to investments would be
an approximate increase in income
of £8m over a cne-year period.
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- Theimpactof a0.25 percentage
point decrease in the interestrate
applicable to investments would be
an approximate decrease in income
of £1m over a one-year period.
LLarger decreases are significantly
mitigated by LIBOR floors.

Currency risk

The Group does not have material
exposure to currency risk as the Group
primarily invests inits functicnal
currency, pounds sterling, There are
scme investmentsin funds which
have an international investment
mandate and are denominated in
Euros or US Dollars, A condition of
investmentin these funds is that
they invest into the UK at a fund fevel
alarger amount than our financial
Investment. Approximately 5% of
the Group’s portfolio fs in non-pounds
sterling dencminated investments.
Thereis currently no policy to hedoe
this currency risk. Due to the small
amount of investments currently
held inforeign currency, nc currency
sensitivity analysis has been
performed.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity
does not have sufficient financial
resources in the short term to meet
its obligations as they fall due, orits
strategy is constrained by ingdequate
orinappropriate funding sources.

The Group manages its liquidity risk
as part of its cash and operational risk
management processes and ensures
that sufficient funds in liquid form
are maintained at all times to meet
ifabilities as they fall due,

[

Inrelation to the capital grants
provided to the Group. they may
become repayable on demand, in
whole orin part, if at the absolute
discretion of BEIS, certain conditions
arise that affect the Start Up Loans
Company adversely. The Group is
dependent gn continuing support
from BEIS that the grants will not be
recalled for a period of at least 12
moniths from the date of approval of
these financial statements.

The Group has alsg entered into term
facilities with BEIS, the repayment of
which is managed as part of The

Start Up Loans Company’s cash flow
forecasting, business planning and
liquidity management processes which
ensure that any mismatches between
maturing assets and liabilities are
smoothed and a degree of protection
is provided against any unexpected
developments that may arise.

During the year the Group entered
into term facilities with the NLF,
the repayment terms of which are
set outin note 20, Should there be
a shortfall at the repayment point
of these term facilities, the Group's
shareholder has canfirmed they will
provide the necessary cash by way
of capital investment.

Other than the capital grants and
term facilities, liquidity risk is not
deemed significant to the Group as
itis 100% Government funded, with
all programmes pre-approved and
committed to, and it does not have
& leveraged balance sheet.
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Capital measuring economic capital in the ending 31 March 2019. The Bank
The British Business Bank plc's share assessment of new investment monitors its performance against
capital comprises 1,496,407,924 transactions. The Bank's Adjusted this indicatar as part of its monthly
of issued and fully paid ordinary Return on Capital employed is performance management and for
shares of £1. The Bank is not governed by BEIS and defined ina the financial year ending 31 March
subject to external regulatory capital  Shareholder Framework Document. 2019 remained above the target
requirements under the Basel Ili The Adjusted Return on Capital throughout the year. Further details
requlatary capital framework and Employed is a key performance on the Adjusted Return on Capital
therefore does not manage its capital  indicator thatis set for the Bank by Employed are given in Objective 4
according to the Piffar 1 and Pillar 2 its shharehiolder as part of the annual - Manage taxpayers money efficiently
requirements set out in that planning cycle and a figure of 3.6% section of the Strateqic Report.
framewaork. Where appropriate was achieved for the financial year

the Bank uses internal models for

27. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiarias, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note, Transactions between the Group and its related parties are disclosed below,

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel refer to the Executive Committee of the Group and Non-Executive Directors,

2019 2018
£000 £000

Compensation
Salaries and other shart-term benefits 1,865 1,815
Laong term benefits 600 503
Post-employment benefits 183
- 2,699 2,441

Aggregated contributions in respect of Key Management Personnel to defined contribution pension schemes for the
yvear ending 31 March 2019 were £134,000 (2018: £123,000).

Trading transactions

The Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS) is the principal shareholder and parent of the

British Business Bank plc. British Business Bank plc provides services to BEIS in relation to some financial assets held by
BE!S. In return, British Business Bank recognises management fee incame in relation to the services provided. In addition,
BEIS provided temporary staff to the Group which are recharged. Nuclear Lighilities Fund Limited (NLF) is a related party
by virtue of being contrelled by the Group's ultimate sharehaolder.

Northern Powerhouse Investments Limited (NFIL), Midlands Engine Investments Limited (MEIL) and Cornwall and Isles
of Scilly lnvestmerits Limited (ClaS) are related parties by virtue of having directars who are also directers of British
Business Bank plc and because they are companies owned by the ultimate shareholder. The Croup has provided services
in the year ta these companies and recognises management fee income in relation to the services providad.



Notes to the consolidated fiencial statements British Business Bank - Annual Report and Accounts 2015 147

During the year, Group companies entered into the following transactions with related parties;

2019 2018
£000 £000
Income
Management fee
BEIS 15,302 13,467
NPIL 2,691 2,135
MEIL 1,774 1,601
CloS 310 372
Innovate UK 309 204
Nuclear Decarmmissicning Authority a0 -
East Midlands Early Growth Fund Limited 49 -
Grant income - BEIS 17,461 17,201
Write down of repayable grant received - BEIS ) 7,291 16,924
o " " ' 45,267 51,904
Expenditure
Staff seconded from BEIS 199 198
Rent payable ta BEIS 621 531
Qther amounts payable to BEIS 54 15
" ) 874 744
Investment transactions
Purchase of UKIIF investment assets from BEIS - 134,743
- 134,743
Capital Transactions
Sharesissued to BEIS 125,000 300,000
Grants received from BEIS 4,100 25,000
L.oans isstied to BEIS (600,000) -
Repayments received on loans issued to BEIS ) 75,000

{(395,900) 325,000
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27. Related party transactions (continued)

Amounts outstanding at year end
As at 31 March 2019, the Group was owed £2.8m from BEIS relating to the management fee (2018; £2.9m) and owed
BES £0.4m.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group was owed £2,6m from NPIL {2018: £0.1m), £1.8 from MEIL {2018: £0.7m), and £0.7m
from CloS (2018: £0.4m) relating to the management fee.

As at 31 March 2019 the Group was owed £539.9m in unsecured loans by BEIS and owed £97.8m in capital grants to BEIS.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has made loan commitments to NPIL of £50m (2018 £50m) and MEIL of £32,5m (2018:
£32.5m). During the year ending 31 March 2019 NPIL had drawn down £5m of its loan commitment. MEIL did not draw
down on their loan commitment during the year.

As at 31 March 2019 the Group owed £600.0m in unsecured loans to NLF.

28. Events after the reporting date

On 1 April 2019 the Group disposed of its investment assets disclosed as 'Held for Sale’ at 31 March 2019 to the
Nuclear Liabilities Fund Limited. These assets were disposed of on an arm'’s length basis at fair value and the valuation
recarded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position eguates to the proceeds receivable.

29, Controlling party

In the opinian of the Directors, the Group's parent campany and ultimate controlling party is the Secretary of State for
the Department for Business, Energy and industrial Strategy. The consolidated financial statements of the Department
for Business Energy and Industrial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV.UK.



Notes tothe consolidated financial staterments

British Business Bank — Annual Report and Accounts 2019 149

Independent auditor’'s report
to the members of British
Business Bank plc

Opinion on financial
statements

| have audited the financial
statements of British Business Bank
plc for the yearended 31 March 2019
which comprise:

— the Company Statement of
Financial Positian;

- the Company Statement of
Changes in Equity;

— the Company Cash Flow Statement;
and

- therelated notes, including the
significant accounting policies.

The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their
preparation is appiicable law and

the International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European
Union and as regards the parent
company financial statements, as
applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006,
I have also audited the information in
the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 68 to 82 that is described

as having been audited.

in my opinion the financial
statements;

~ give atrue and fair view of the
state of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2019; and

— have been properly preparedin
accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by European Union; and

- have been prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006,

Basis of opinions

I conducted my auditin accordance
with International Standards an
Auditing (ISAs) (UK). My responsibilities
under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's
respansibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of my
report. Those standards require me
and my staff to comply with the
Financial Reporting Council's Revised
Ethical Standard 2016, [am
independent of the British Business
Bank plcin accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to my
audit and the financial statements in
the UK. My staff and | have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibiiities in
accordance with these requirements,

[ believe that the audit evidence | have
obtained Is sufficient and appropriate
to provide g basis for my opinion.

Conclusions relating to going
concern

famreguired to conciude on the
appropriateness of management's
use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the British Business Bank
plc's ability to continue as a going
cencern for a period of atleast twelve
months from the date of approval of
the financial statements. If | conclude
that a material uncertainty exists,

| am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate,

to maodify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the
entity to cease to continue as a going
concern. | have nothing toreportin
these respects.

Responsibilities of the
directors for the financial
statements

As explained more fully in the
Directors’ Responsibilities Statement,
the directors are responsible for:

- the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view.

— suchinternal contro! as
management determines is
necessary toenable the
preparation of financial statements
that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

- assessing the parent's company’s
ability to continue as a gaing
concern, disclosing, if applicable,
matters relating to going concern
and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors
either intend toliquidate the parent
company or tc cease operations,
or have norealistic alternative
butto doso.
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Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the financial
statements

My responsibility is to gudit and
express an opinion on the financial
statements in accordance with
applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs) (UK),

An audit involves abtaining evidence
about the amounts and disclosures

it the financia! statements sufficient
10 give reasonabie assurance that

the financial statements are free
from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error, Reasonable
assuranceis a high level of assurance,
but is nct a quarantee that an audit
conducted in acCordance with ISAs
(UK} will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered materiat if,
individually orin the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with
ISAs (UK), ! exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. 1 alsc:

- identify and assess the risks of
material misstatement cf the
financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design
and perform augit procedures
responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my cpinion.

The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting
from errar, as fraud may involve
callusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal
control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures
that are apprepriate in the
circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the British
Business Bank plc's internal control,

- evaluate the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting
estimates and relatea disclosures
made by management.

- evaluate the overall presentation,
structure and content of the
financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying
transactions and eventsin a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Notes tothe consolidated tinancial statements

| communicate with those charged
with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies ininternal
control that lidentify during my audit,

Other Information

Directors'are responsible for the
other information. The other
infarmation comprises infarmation
included inthe annuat report, other
than the parts of the Directors’
Remuneration Report described in
thatreport as having been audited,
the financial statements and my
auditor's report thereon. My opinion
on the financial statements does not
cover the otherinformation and I de
not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection
with my audit of the financial
statements, my respensibility is to
read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements ar my
knowledge chtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work | have
perfermed, ! conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other
information, | am required to report
that fact. fhave nothing te report

in this regard.
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Opinion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In my apinion:

— the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be
audited has been preperly
prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2008;

- infight of the knowledge and
understanding of the company
and its envircnment obtained
in the course of the audit, | have
not identified any materiat
misstatements in the Strategic
Report or the Directors’ Report; and

— theinformation given in the
Strategic Report and Directors’
Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with
the financial statements and those
reports have been prepared in
accordance with applicable iegal
requirements.
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Matters on which I report
by exception

| have nething to reportin respect
of the following matters where the
Companies Act 2606 requires me
to report to you if, in my opinion:

- adequate accounting recorcs
have not been kept by the parent
company, or returns adequate for
my audit have not been received
from branches not visited by my
staff; or

— the financial statements and the
part of the directors’ remuneration
report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or

- certaindisclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law
are not made; or

- lhave not received all of the
information and explanations
I require for my audit; or

— acorporate governance statement
has not been prepared by the
parernit company.

Hilary Lower
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

11 july 2019

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General
(Statutory Auditer)

National Audit Office

157-197 Buckingham Palace Road
Victoria

London SW1w 95P
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Company financial statements

Company statement
of financial position

Company financial statements

as at 31 March 2019
2019 2018

Note £000 £000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents g84.677 37,927
Amounts owed by shareholder 2 525,000 -
Trade and other receivables 3 17,860 18,216
investments 4 1,588,962 1,244,260
Property, plant and eguipment 3,595 1.561
Intangible assets 4 7
Deferred tax o 83 - 118
Total assets 2,220,401 1,302,089
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 5 (139,859) (7.400)
Corporation Tax payable (262) -
Loans and other berrowings 6 (604,264) -
Provisions (300 {120}
Total liabilities o {744,685) {7,520)
Net assets 1,475,716 1,294,569
EQUITY
Issued share capital 1,496,408 1,371,408
Retained earnings (20,692) (76,839}
Total equity 1,475,716 1,294,569

The Company has taken advantage of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and consequently the statement of
comprehensive income {including the profit and loss account) of the parent company is not presented as part of these
financial statements, The profit of the parent company for the financial period amcunted to £56.2m (2018: loss £28.1m).

The financial statements of the Company were approved by the Beard of Directors and autharised on 11 July 2019, They

were signed on its behalf by:

2T Ao —

The notes on pages 155 ta 158 form an integral part of the financial statements.

Company number 08616013

Keith Morgan
Chief Executive Officer
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Company statement
of changes in equity

as at 31 March 2019

Issued Retained
capital earnings Total
£000 £000 £000
Balance asat1April 2018 1,371,408 (76,839) 1,294,569
Netincome after tax - 56147 56,147
Total coEprehensive income ) - 56,147 56.147
lssue of ordinary shares - - 125000 - 125,000
Balance at 31 March 2019 1,496,408 ' (20,692) 1,475,716
Balance as at 1 April 2017 1,071,408 (48,721) 1,022,687
Netincome aftertax - - S - _ {28118) _ {eB118)
Total comprehensive income - (28,118} (28,118)
Issue of ordinary shares 300,000 - 300,000
Balance at 31 March 2018 1,371,408 (76.839) 1,294,569
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Company cash
flow statement

as at 31 March 2019

2019 2018

Note £000 £000
Profit/{loss) before tax 56,244 {28,118)
Cash flows from operating activities
Adjustments for:
Depreciation, bad debt and impairments 699 375
Interest expense 5,552 -
Impairment of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 - 52,665
Purchase of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 {(1,547.839) (320,853)
Disposal of investments in subsidiary undertakings 4 1,203,117 -
Corporation tax paid - (60)
Interest paid (1,288) -
Other provision expense 180 -
Movement in trade receivables 3 356 {12,567)
Movementiniradepayables 5 132459 _ 1965
Net cash used in operating activities ____(150520) _(306.593)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (2,730} (1,355)

Net cash used in investing activities o {2,730) (1,355}
Cash flows from financing activities

lssue of new shares 125,000 300,000
Amounts owed by shareholder 2 {525,000) -
Proceeds from loans received 7 7 6 600,000 - -
Net cash from financing activities _ 200,000 300,000
Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 7 ) 46,750 - (7.948)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year L 37,927 = 45875
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 84,677 37,927

The notes on pages 155 to 158 form an integral part of the financial statements,
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Notes to the Company
financial statements

as at 31 March 2019

1. Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 ('the Act').

The Company’s financial accounting policies are consistent with those described in the consolidated accounts of the
British Business Bank plc. Disclosures in relation to share capital have not been repeated here as there are no differences
1o those provided in the consolidated accounts (note 22),

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are measured at cost less impairment in accordance with 1AS 27.

These financial statements have heen prepared on the going concern basis as descrioed in the consolidated financial
statements of the British Business Bank plz, and under the historical cost convention. The financial statements are
presented in pounds sterling, which is the Company’s functional currency.

2. Amounts owed by shareholder

2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts owed by Shareholder 525.000 -

0On 31 August 2018 the Company lent £350 million to BEIS, its sharehalder, under the terms of a Loan Agreement.
The amount lent is repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate. In the year ending 31 March 2019, £75 million
was repaid under this Loan Agreement,

On 15 January 2019 the Company lent a further £250 million to BEIS under the terms of a separate Loan Agreement.
The amount lent is repayable on demand and has a zero-interest rate, In the year ending 31 March 2019, £nil was repaid
under this Laan Agreement,

3. Trade and other receivables
2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts receivable within one year
Trade receivabies 182 53
Accrued Income 375 -
Prepayments 541 385
Amaunts due from Group companies 16,748 15,784
Otherreceivables ) 7 14 1,994
Total trade and other receivables ' i 17,860 18,216

Trade receivables disclosed above are classified as amortised cost financial assets {(2018: loans and receivables) and a
measured at amortised cost.
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4. Investments

Notes to the Company financial statements

The Company acts as a holding company for the Group and has the following principal subsidiary under takings which

affected the Croup's results ar net assets:

Subsidiary
BBB Fatient Capital Holdings Limited
K British Business Finarce Limited (BBFL)

/f‘British Business Financial Services Limited (BBFSL)

Nature of Business

Holding company

Manages invesitment schemes on behalf of the Group.

The Start Up Loans Company (SULCo) which provides loans
to entrepreneursis a subsidiary of BBFL

Manages investment schemes on behalf of the Department
for Business, Energy and industrial Strategy

All subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and incarporated in the UK, all shareholdings are in the name of

British Business Bank pic,

During the year ended 31 March 2019 the company disposed of 1ts 100% shareholding in Britisi Business Investments
Limited (BBI) to BBB Patient Capita! Holdings Limited, which is a 100% owned subsidiary of the Company. British Business
Investments Limited and British Patient Capital Limited are 100% owned subsidiaries of BBB Patient Capitai Holdings

Limited.

See note 24 of the consolidated financial statements for details of all subsidiary holdings of the Company.

At 31 March 2019 )

BBl Holdings BBFL Total
Investmentin £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 1.203,117 - 41,143 1,244,260
Investment in year - 1,473,839 74,000 1,547,839
Disposalinyesr . @Q2e3nn - (20317
Closing Balance - 1,473,839 115,143 1,588,982
At 31March 2018 BBI BBFL Total
Investmentin £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 820,764 55,308 976.072
Investment in year 287,353 38,500 320,853
mpament - _(32665  _ (52865)
Closing Balance 1,203,117 41,143 1,244,260
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5. Trade and other payables
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2019 2018
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade payables 1,181 336
VAT and social security 542 664
Accrued expenditure 7,896 3,077
Amounts due to Group companies 127,709 -
Other payables 1.686 2,516
B 139,014 6.593
Amounts after more than one year
Accrued expenditure 845 807
o B 139,859 7,400
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of tracde payables approximates to their fair value.
6. Loans and other borrowings 2019 2018
£000 £000
Unsecured loans o 504,264 -
Total loans and other borrowings o 604,264 -

On 23 August 2018 the Company received a loan of £350m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund which is repayable in full on

23 August 2020,

On 28 December 2018 the Company received a second loan of £250m from the Nuclear Liabilities Fund for the purpose
of making investments on behalf of the Nuclear Liabilities Fund after 1 April 2019, The term of this loan is 4 years with

the value reduced as the Group makes investment payments on the Nuclear Liabilities Fund behalf. Any amount
unutilised at 28 December 2022 will be repaid on this date.

During the year repayments of £nil were made against these unsecured loans.
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7. Related party transactions

During the year under review British Business Bank plc was 100% owned by the UK Government, with the sharehoider
being the Secretary of State for the Department for Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy (BEIS). The Company has
elected to take the exemption under IAS 24 regarding disclosure of transactions with related parties because the UK
Government has control over both the Company and other related entities. Compensaticn paid to key management
perscnnelis disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

The Company trades with Government bodies on an arm’s length basis on commercial terms inline with contractual
agreements. The main Government bodies transacted with are BEIS and the Company’s principal subsidiary undertakings
BBEB Patient Capital Holdings Limited, British Business Finance Limited (BBFL) and British Business Financial Services
Lirnited (BBFSL).

The Group’s trading and other capital transactions with BEIS were all effected through the Company and are disclosed
in note 27 of the consolidated financial statements. The Company provided capital to BBB Patient Capital Holdings and
BBFL as shown in note 4. In addition, it made charges to its principal subsidiary undertakings in respect cof services
orovided on their behalf amounting to £40.1m (2018, £13.8m).

8. Controlling party

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company's ultimate controlling party is the Secretary of State for the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy. The consolidated financial statements of the Department for Business, Energy
and Industrial Strategy are available from the government departments’ website at GOV.UK. Copies of the group financial
statements of the British Business Bank plc are available frem Companies House, Crown Way, Maindy, Cardiff CF14 3UZ,




MiX
c " ; Paplgg from
1 Donald 4 :77 responsible sources
i Ew?c_gg FSC* C001785




BRITISH

V‘ BUSINESS

BANK

© British Business Bank plc july 2019
Al figures source British Business Bank 31 March 2019 unless otherwise stated.
This publication is available from british-business-bank.co.uk.

Any enquiries regarding this publication shouid be sent to:
British Business Bank plc

Steel City House

West Street

Sheffield 51 2GQ

British Business 8ank plc is 3 public jimited company registered in England and Wales (registration number 08616013, registered office at Steel City House
West Street Sheffield 51 2GQ). As the holding Company of the Group operating under the trading name of British Business Bank, it is a development bank
wholly owned by HM Government which is not autherised or regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority (PRA) or the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA),

It operates under its own trading name through a number of subsidiaries, one of which is authorised and regulated by the FCA. British Business Bank pic and
its subsidiary entities are not banking institutions and do not operate as such. Accordingly, none of the British Business Bank group of companies takes deposits
or offers banking services. A complete legal structure chart for British Business Bank plc and its subsidiaries can be found st www british-business-bank.co.uk



